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WILLIAM LYON HOMES

William Lyon Homes is one of the largest Western 
U.S. regional homebuilders. Headquartered in 
Newport Beach, California, the Company is primarily 
engaged in the design, construction, marketing and 
sale of single-family detached and attached homes in 
California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, Washington, 
Oregon and Texas. Its core markets include Orange 
County, Los Angeles, San Diego, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, the South and East Bay Areas of San 

Francisco, Phoenix, Las Vegas, Denver, Fort Collins, 
Portland, Seattle, Houston, Austin and San Antonio. 
The Company has a distinguished legacy of more 
than 60 years of homebuilding operations, over 
which time it has sold in excess of 106,000 homes. 
The Company markets and sells its homes under the 
William Lyon Homes brand in all of its markets except 
for Washington and Oregon, where the Company 
operates under the Polygon Northwest brand.



In 2018 William Lyon Homes continued its strategic growth plan by 

expanding its footprint into one of the best new home markets in 

the country in Central Texas. We pride ourselves on creating great 

homes for families and we continue our legacy of fulfilling dreams 

for homebuyers all across the Western United States.



DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

Five years ago, we declared our goal of becoming the premier Western regional homebuilder. In the 
years that followed, we have significantly grown our operations and added multiple markets achieving 
a scale and diversification never before seen in our Company’s 62 year history. We now have ten 
operating divisions across seven states, including California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, Oregon, 
Washington and Texas, serving sixteen core markets.

2018 was a landmark year for William Lyon Homes in many respects. In March, we completed the 
acquisition of RSI Communities which marked our entry into Central Texas, an enhancement of our 
strong position in Southern California and a further focus on attainable product. Despite a challenging 
market backdrop at the end of the year, we were able to set all-time Company annual records for 
orders, deliveries, homebuilding revenue and stockholder’s equity. Most importantly, we continued to 
position William Lyon Homes for a successful future in an increasingly competitive marketplace.

Orders increased by 24% year over year to 4,133, while deliveries were up an impressive 29% year over 
year to 4,186. Both of these figures have more than tripled since 2013, the year of our initial public 
offering. Homebuilding revenue of $2.1 billion was up 16% year over year, nearly four times the level it 
was five years ago. During this same period, stockholder’s equity has doubled to $863 million which 
represents an annual return on stockholder’s equity of more than 12% for 2018.  

Our additional size and scale have strengthened our subcontractor relationships and enabled us to 
build a national purchasing team to realize cost efficiencies across the William Lyon Homes platform.  
We also laid the foundation for a full suite of financial service offerings to our homebuyers, which will 
not only enhance potential earnings streams for the enterprise, but will also provide greater control 
over our backlog and deliver a higher quality of service to our customers. 

We ended the year with total liquidity, including cash, of approximately $345 million, $2.6 billion in real 
estate inventories, $2.9 billion in total assets, and total equity of $1 billion. Looking ahead, we intend to 
continue to drive balance sheet improvement through the accretion of earnings as well as a reduction 
in the principal amount of indebtedness as we remain focused on our long term leverage goals.

2012   
Entry into the Denver 
market

2013
Initial public offering

2014 
Entry into Seattle and Portland 
markets through acquisition of 
Polygon Northwest Homes

TIMELINE OF SIGNIFICANT MILESTONES



We have remained focused on opening communities that offer attainable housing at or below market 
medians. The fact that 82% of our 29,541 lots owned or controlled at year-end were targeted to 
the entry level or first time move up buyer segments demonstrates that we are well positioned to 
execute on this strategy. We also see continued demand for our Ovation active adult product which 
represented 9% of our lots at year-end, and came into its own in 2018, with the highest absorption rates 
of any market segment in the Company. Finally, we have increased the percentage of lots controlled 
versus owned to over 40% at the end of 2018 from approximately 24% at the end of 2017.

In closing, we would like to thank all of those who have been part of our incredible growth and 
success. This includes all of our stakeholders, including our investors, trade partners and customers. 
We would also like to thank all of the talented and hardworking members of the William Lyon Homes 
team. Without them, none of these records would be possible. We look forward to making the most 
of 2019 and writing the next successful chapter in William Lyon Homes history.

With pride and appreciation,

WILLIAM H. LYON
Executive Chairman and Chairman Of The Board

MATTHEW R. ZAIST
President and Chief Executive 0fficer

2018 
Entry into Texas market

2018 
Achieve all-time records in  
orders, deliveries and revenues



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2018 2017 2016

Sales  $2,081,721  $1,795,074   $1,402,203  

Cost of Sales (1,703,298)   (1,478,549)   (1,162,337)

Gross Profit   378,423   316,525    239,866  

Gross Margin 18.2% 17.6% 17.1%

Sales & Marketing Expense   (114,495)   (86,226)   (72,509)

General & Administrative Expense   (119,272)   (90,206)   (73,398)

Transaction Expense   (3,907)   –   – 

Other Income and Expense  3,989   2,419   8,858 

Income Before Extinguishment of Debt    144,738    142,512     102,817   

Gain (loss) on Extinguishment of Debt    1,015 (21,828)   – 

Pre-tax Income   145,753    120,684   102,817  

Income Tax Expense   (30,620)   (62,933)   (34,850)

Net Income   115,133   57,751    67,967  

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests   (23,537)   (9,616)   (8,271)

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders   91,596    48,135   59,696  

Income per Common Share

Basic  $2.42  $1.30  $1.62 

Diluted  $2.32  $1.24  $1.55 

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic   37,832,073   37,040,137    36,764,799 

Diluted  39,419,059  38,663,667 38,474,900

Dollar Value of Orders

($ in millions)

$1,783

$2,012

$1,391

$1,185

$811

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

$1,796.5

$2,087.2

$1,406.0

$1,104.1

$894.8

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Revenues

($ in millions)



SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

$780.5

$863.3

$697.1

$632.1

2015 2016 2017 2018

Book Value of Shareholders’ Equity ($ in millions)

+12% Y-O-Y

+11% Y-O-Y

+10% Y-O-Y

$2.21(3)

$2.42(4)

$1.55$1.48

2015 2016 2017 2018

Diluted Earnings Per Share

+43% Y-O-Y

+10% Y-O-Y

+5% Y-O-Y

$85.3 (1)

$95.5 (2)

$59.7$57.3

$44.6

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Net Income ($ in millions)

+43% Y-O-Y

+12% Y-O-Y

+4% Y-O-Y

+28% Y-O-Y
84

106

74
68

44

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Average Community Count 

+26% Y-O-Y

+14% Y-O-Y

+9% Y-O-Y

+55% Y-O-Y

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

3,239

4,186

2,781

2,314

1,753

New Home Deliveries

+16% Y-O-Y

+20% Y-O-Y

+32% Y-O-Y

+29% Y-O-Y

3,328

4,133

2,775
2,575

1,677

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Net New Home Orders

+20% Y-O-Y

+8% Y-O-Y

+54% Y-O-Y

+24% Y-O-Y

(1) Adjusted net income for 2017 excludes $14.1 million of loss from extinguishment of debt, net of income tax and the impact of tax reform of $23.1 million. On a GAAP basis, net income available to common stockholders 
for 2017 was $48.1 million.
(2) Adjusted net income for 2018 excludes $3.1 million of transaction expenses, $1.6 million of project abandonment costs and $0.8 million of gain from extinguishment of debt, net of income tax. On a GAAP basis, net 
income available to common stockholders for 2018 was $91.6 million.
(3) Adjusted diluted earnings per share for 2017 excludes $14.1 million of loss from extinguishment of debt, net of income tax and the impact of tax reform of $23.1 million. On a GAAP basis, diluted earnings per share for 2017 was $1.24. 
(4) Adjusted diluted earnings per share for 2018 excludes $3.1 million of transaction expenses, $1.6 million of project abandonment costs and $0.8 million of gain from extinguishment of debt, net of income tax. On a GAAP 
basis, diluted earnings per share for 2018 was $2.32.



OUR FOOTPRINT

Washington segment consists of operations in the Seattle Metropolitan Area and operates under the “Polygon 

Northwest” Brand

 Oregon segment consists of operations in the Portland Metropolitan Area and operates under the “Polygon 

Northwest” Brand

California segment consists of operations in the South and East Bay of San Francisco and Orange, Los Angeles, 

Riverside, San Diego and San Bernardino counties

Nevada segment consists of operations in the Las Vegas Metropolitan Area

Arizona segment consists of operations in the Phoenix Metropolitan Area

Colorado segment consists of operations in the Denver and Fort Collins Metropolitan Areas

Texas segment consists of operations in Austin, Houston and San Antonio

SEATTLE

PORTLAND

EAST BAY

SOUTH BAY

LAS VEGAS

SAN BERNARDINO

LOS ANGELES RIVERSIDE
ORANGE COUNTY

SAN DIEGO
PHOENIX

DENVER

AUSTIN HOUSTON
SAN 
ANTONIO

FORT COLLINS



› 1,172 New Home Delivererieiess

› 1,109 Net New Home Orders

› 252 Units in Backlog at 12/31/18

›  $786,801,000 Total Homebuilding 

Revenue

›  4,783 Lots Owned and Controlled

›  $175,205,000 Dollar Value of  

Backlog at 12/31/18

CACALIFORNNNIAAI



› 495 New Home Deliveries

› 445 Net New Home Orders

› 41 Units in Backlog at 12/31/18

›  $311,111,000 Total Homebuilding 

Revenue

›  2,253 Lots Owned and Controlled 

›  $23,060,000 Dollar Value of  

Backlog as of 12/31/18

WASHINGTON

› 585 New Home Deliveries

› 641 Net New Home Orderss

› 128 Units in Backlog at 12/31/18

›  $247,878,000 Total Homebuilding

Revenue

› 4,342 Lots Owned and Controlled 

› $51,181,000 Dollar Value of  

Backlog as of 12/31/18

OREGON



› 364 New Home Deliveries

›››› 377222 NNete  New Home OrO ders

›› 94949 Units in Backklologg at 12/31/18

› $214,237,0000 TTotottalal Homebuilding 

Revenue

› 2,626 Lots Owned and Controlled 

›  $52,604,0000 DDolo lar VaV lue of  

Backc log as of 12/3/ 1/18

NEVADA

› 531 New Home Deliveries

› 493 3 NeN t Neew Hoome Orders

›› 1344 UUninitsts in Backlog at 12/31/18

›  $2$22626,5, 24,000 Total Homebuildingg 

ReRevevenun e

››  3,,202099 Lots Owned and Controlled 

›  $62,091,000 Dollar Value of 

Backklol g as of 12/31/18

COLORADO



› 600 New Homem DDeliveries

› 637 Net NNew HHome Orders

› 234 Units in Backlog at 12/31/18

›  $158,260,000 Total Homebuilding 

ReR venue

›  8,015 Lots Owned and Controlled 

›  $61,230,000 Dollar Value of  

Backlog as of 1212/31/18

TEXAS

› 439 New Home Deliveries

› 436 Net New Home Orders

› 158 Units in Backlog at 12/31/18

›  $136,910,000 Total Homebuilding 

Revenun e

› 4,31133 LLoto s Owned and Controlled 

› $53,581,000 Dollar Value of  

Backlog as of 12/31/18

ARIZONA



We know you’re looking for more than a house. You’re looking for a 

home where you can create a lifetime of memories. At William Lyon 

Homes, we do more than just build homes, we build the foundation 

for happy lives.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

 Investors are cautioned that certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as some 
statements by the Company in periodic press releases and information included in oral statements or other written statements 
by the Company are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Statements which are predictive in nature, which 
depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or which include words such as “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, 
“plans”, “believes”, “estimates”, “hopes”, and similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements. Such statements may 
include, but are not limited to, information related to: anticipated operating results; home deliveries and backlog conversion; 
financial resources and condition; cash needs and liquidity; timing of project openings; leverage ratios and compliance with 
debt covenants; revenues and average selling prices of deliveries; sales price ranges for active and future communities; backlog 
conversion; global and domestic economic conditions; market and industry trends; cycle times; profitability and gross margins; 
cost of revenues; selling, general and administrative expenses and leverage; interest expense; inventory write-downs; 
unrecognized tax benefits; land acquisition spending and timing; debt maturities; business and operational strategies and the 
anticipated effects thereof; the Company's ability to achieve tax benefits and utilize its tax attributes; sales pace; effects of 
home buyer cancellations; community count; joint ventures; the Company's ability to acquire land and pursue real estate 
opportunities; the Company's ability to gain approvals and open new communities; the Company's ability to sell homes and 
properties; the Company's ability to secure materials and subcontractors; the Company's ability to produce the liquidity and 
capital necessary to expand and take advantage of opportunities; and legal proceedings, insurance and claims. Forward-looking 
statements are based upon expectations and projections about future events and are subject to assumptions, risks and 
uncertainties about, among other things, the Company, economic and market factors and the homebuilding industry. There is no 
guarantee that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements in this annual report on Form 10-K will occur, or 
if any of the events occur, there is no guarantee what effect it will have on the Company's operations, financial condition or 
share price. The Company's past performance, and past or present economic conditions in its housing markets, are not 
indicative of future performance or conditions. Investors are urged not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. 
The Company will not, and undertakes no obligation to, update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed 
assumptions, the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or changes to projections over time unless required by 
federal securities laws. 
 
 Actual events and results may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements 
due to a number of factors. While it is impossible to identify all such factors, the major risks and uncertainties, and assumptions 
that are made, that affect the Company's business and may cause actual results to differ materially from those estimated by the 
Company include, but are not limited to: changes in mortgage and other interest rates; our ability to integrate successfully the 
operations from our strategic acquisitions with our existing operations; the availability of skilled subcontractors, labor and 
homebuilding materials and increased construction cycle times; the availability and timing of mortgage financing; adverse 
weather conditions; the Company’s financial leverage and level of indebtedness and any inability to comply with financial and 
other covenants under its debt instruments; continued volatility and worsening in general economic conditions either 
internationally, nationally or in regions in which the Company operates; changes in governmental laws and regulations and 
increased costs, fees and delays associated therewith; government actions, policies, programs and regulations directed at or 
affecting the housing market (including the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Cuts and Job Act”), the Dodd-Frank Act, tax 
benefits associated with purchasing and owning a home, and the standards, fees and size limits applicable to the purchase or 
insuring of mortgage loans by government-sponsored enterprises and government agencies), the homebuilding industry, or 
construction activities; defects in manufactured products or other homebuilding materials; utility company delays; changes in 
existing tax laws or enacted corporate income tax rates, including pursuant to the Tax Cuts and Job Act; worsening in markets 
for residential housing; the impact of construction defect, product liability and home warranty claims, including the adequacy 
of self-insurance accruals, and the applicability and sufficiency of the Company’s insurance coverage; decline in real estate 
values resulting in impairment of the Company’s real estate assets; volatility in the banking industry, credit and capital markets; 
the timing of receipt of regulatory approvals and the opening of projects; the availability and cost of land for future 
development; terrorism or other hostilities involving the United States; building moratorium or “slow-growth” or “no-growth” 
initiatives that could be implemented in states in which the Company operates; conditions in the capital, credit and financial 
markets, including mortgage lending standards and the availability of mortgage financing; changes in generally accepted 
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accounting principles or interpretations of those principles; changes in prices of homebuilding materials; competition for home 
sales from other sellers of new and resale homes; cancellations and the Company’s ability to convert its backlog into deliveries; 
the occurrence of events such as landslides, soil subsidence and earthquakes that are uninsurable, not economically insurable or 
not subject to effective indemnification agreements; increased outside broker costs; changes in governmental laws and 
regulations; limitations on the Company’s ability to utilize its tax attributes; whether an ownership change occurred that could, 
under certain circumstances, have resulted in the limitation of the Company’s ability to offset prior years’ taxable income with 
net operating losses; and other factors, risks and uncertainties described in Item 1A. "Risk Factors" in this report. 
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EXPLANATORY NOTE 
 

 In this annual report on Form 10-K, unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, the “Company,” “we,” 
“our,” and “us” refer to William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries. In addition, unless otherwise stated 
or the context otherwise requires, “Parent” refers to William Lyon Homes, and “California Lyon” refers to William Lyon 
Homes, Inc., a California corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent. 
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PART I 
 
Item 1. Business 

Overview 

William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, together with its subsidiaries, is one of the largest Western U.S. regional 
homebuilders. Headquartered in Newport Beach, California, the Company is primarily engaged in the design, construction, 
marketing and sale of single-family detached and attached homes in California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, Washington, 
Oregon and Texas. The Company's core markets currently include Orange County, Los Angeles, the Inland Empire, the San 
Francisco Bay Area, Phoenix, Las Vegas, Denver, Seattle, Portland, Austin and San Antonio. The Company has a distinguished 
legacy of more than 62 years of homebuilding operations, over which time it has sold in excess of 106,000 homes.  The 
Company believes that its markets are characterized by attractive long-term housing fundamentals and that it has a significant 
land supply, with 29,541 lots owned or controlled. 

The Company has significant expertise in understanding the needs of its homebuyers and designing its product offerings 
to meet those needs. This allows the Company to maximize the return on its land investments by tailoring its home offerings to 
meet the buyer demands in each of its markets. The Company builds and sells across a diverse range of product lines at a 
variety of price points with sales to entry-level, first-time move-up, second-time move-up homebuyers, as well as a signature 
luxury brand and an active adult target segment. The Company is committed to achieving the highest standards in design, 
quality and customer satisfaction and has received numerous industry awards and commendations throughout its operating 
history in recognition of its achievements. 

In 2018, the Company delivered 4,186 homes, with an average selling price ("ASP") of approximately $497,300, and 
recognized home sales revenues of $2.1 billion.  As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a consolidated backlog of 1,041 
sold but unclosed homes, with an associated sales value of $479.0 million, representing a 11% increase in value as compared to 
its backlog as of December 31, 2017. The average selling price of homes in backlog as of December 31, 2018 was 
approximately $460,100. 

 
The Company’s Markets 

The Company is currently operating in seven reportable operating segments: California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, 
Washington, Oregon and Texas. Each of the segments has responsibility for the management of the Company’s homebuilding 
and development operations within its geographic footprint.  See Note 5 to the financial statements for further information. 

The following table sets forth homebuilding revenue from each of the Company’s homebuilding segments for the years 
ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 (in thousands): 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

California (1) $ 786,801  $ 682,806  $ 490,352 
Arizona (2) 136,910  158,534  125,951 
Nevada (3) 214,237  176,355  191,711 
Colorado (4) 226,524  124,456  128,530 
Washington (5) 311,111  332,302  154,600 
Oregon (6) 247,878  320,621  311,059 
Texas (7) 158,260  N/A  N/A 
 $ 2,081,721  $ 1,795,074  $ 1,402,203 

 

(1) The California Segment consists of operations in Orange, Los Angeles, San Diego, Alameda, Contra Costa, Santa Clara, 
Riverside and San Bernardino counties. The offices are located in leased office spaces at 4695 MacArthur Court, 8th 
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Floor, Newport Beach, CA 92660, 680 Newport Center Drive, 3rd Floor, Newport Beach, CA 92660, and 2603 Camino 
Ramon, Suite 450, San Ramon, CA 94583. 

(2) The Arizona Segment consists of operations in the Phoenix metropolitan area. The offices are located in a leased office 
building at 8840 E. Chaparral Road, Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 85250. 

(3) The Nevada Segment consists of operations in Clark and Nye counties. The offices are located in a leased office 
building at 1980 Festival Plaza Drive, Suite 500, Las Vegas, NV 89135. 

(4) The Colorado Segment consists of operations in Douglas, Grand, Jefferson, and Larimer counties. The offices are 
located in a leased office building at 400 Inverness Parkway, Suite 350, Englewood, CO 80112. 

(5) The Washington Segment consists of operations in King, Snohomish, and Pierce counties.  The offices are located in a 
leased office building at 11624 SE 5th Street, Bellevue, WA 98005. 

(6) The Oregon Segment consists of operations in Clackamas and Washington counties.  The offices are located in a leased 
office building at 703 Broadway Street, Suite 510, Vancouver, WA 98660. 

(7) The Texas Segment consists of operations in Travis and Bexar counties.  The offices are located in a leased office 
building at 810 Hester’s Crossing Road, Suite 235, Round Rock, TX 78681. 

Strategy and Lot Position 

The Company owned approximately 17,649 lots and had options to purchase an additional 11,892 lots as of 
December 31, 2018. As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “entitled” land typically has a development agreement 
and/or vesting tentative map, or a final recorded plat or map from the appropriate county or city government. Development 
agreements and vesting tentative maps generally provide for the right to develop the land in accordance with the provisions of 
the development agreement or vesting tentative map unless an issue arises concerning health, safety or general welfare. The 
Company’s sources of developed lots for its homebuilding operations are (1) purchase of smaller projects with shorter life 
cycles (merchant homebuilding) and (2) development of larger scale projects to perform land development activities for the 
purpose of (i) merchant homebuilding or (ii) selling lots to other builders, and/or master-planned communities. 

The Company intends to continue to utilize its current inventory of lots and future land acquisitions to conduct its 
operating strategy, which consists of: 

1. converting our lot supply into active projects; 

2. maximizing revenue at communities; 

3. maintaining a low cost structure; 

4. acquiring land positions through disciplined acquisition strategies near employment centers or transportation corridors; 

5. leveraging an experienced management team;  

6. deleveraging the balance sheet; and 

7. generating positive cash flows and strong returns for shareholders. 

Land Acquisition and Development 

To manage the risks associated with land ownership and development, the Company has a Corporate Land Committee, 
which is comprised of certain members of its senior executive management team whom are key operational and financial 
executives. As potential land acquisitions are being analyzed, the Corporate Land Committee must approve all land 
acquisitions. Further, the Company's board of directors must also approve land purchases over certain dollar thresholds. The 
Company’s long-term strategy consists of the following elements: 
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•  completing due diligence prior to contracting to acquire land; 

•  reviewing the status of entitlements and other governmental processing to mitigate or eliminate zoning and other 
entitlement or development risk; 

•  maximizing density to achieve more units per acre; 

•  analyzing project pricing compared to the market's median home price; 

•  focusing on land as a component of a home’s cost structure, rather than on the land’s speculative value; 

•  limiting land acquisition size to reduce investment levels in any one project where possible; 

•  utilizing option, joint venture and other non-capital intensive structures to control land and reduce risk where feasible; 

•  funding land acquisitions whenever possible with non-recourse seller financing; 

•  employing centralized control of approval over all land transactions; and 

•  diversifying with respect to market segments and product types. 
 

Prior to committing to the acquisition of land, the Company conducts feasibility studies covering pertinent aspects of the 
proposed commitment. These studies may include a variety of elements from technical aspects such as title, zoning, soil and 
seismic characteristics, to marketing studies that review population and employment trends, schools, transportation access, 
buyer profiles, sales forecasts, projected profitability, cash requirements, and assessment of geo-political risk and other factors. 
Prior to acquiring land, the Company considers assumptions concerning the needs of the targeted customer and determines 
whether the underlying land price enables the Company to meet those needs at an affordable price. Before purchasing land, the 
Company attempts to project the commencement of construction and sales over a reasonable time period. The Company utilizes 
architects and outside consultants, under close supervision, to help review acquisitions and design products. 

Homebuilding and Market Strategy 

The Company currently has a wide variety of product lines which enables it to meet the specific needs of each of its 
markets.  The Company creates product for the entry-level, first time move-up, second time move-up, luxury home and active 
adult markets, and believes that a diversified product strategy enables it to best serve a wide range of buyers and adapt quickly 
to a variety of market conditions. The Company’s markets are geographically diverse in order to mitigate market risk. 

Because the decision as to which product to develop is based on the Company’s assessment of market conditions and the 
restrictions imposed by government regulations, home styles and sizes vary from project to project.  The Company generally 
standardizes and limits the number of home designs within any given product line. This standardization allows on-site mass 
production techniques and bulk purchasing of materials and components, thus enabling the Company to better control and 
sometimes reduce construction costs and home construction cycles. 

The Company contracts with a number of architects and other consultants who are involved in the design process of the 
Company’s homes. Designs are constrained by zoning requirements, building codes, energy efficiency laws and local 
architectural guidelines, among other factors. Engineering, landscaping, master-planning and environmental impact analysis 
work are subcontracted to independent firms which are familiar with local requirements. 

Substantially all construction work is done by subcontractors with the Company acting as the general contractor. The 
Company manages subcontractor activities with on-site supervisory employees and management control systems. The 
Company does not have long-term contractual commitments with its subcontractors or suppliers, and instead it contracts 
development work by project and where possible by phase size of 10 to 25 home sites or by building/structure for attached 
product. The Company generally has been able to obtain sufficient materials and subcontractors during times of material 
shortages, though it has experienced skilled labor shortages in certain markets during times of peak demand. The Company 
believes its relationships with its suppliers and subcontractors are in good standing. 
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Description of Projects and Communities Under Development 

The Company’s homebuilding projects usually take two to five years to develop. The following table presents project 
information relating to each of the Company’s homebuilding operating segments as of December 31, 2018, which includes lots 
owned as of December 31, 2018, lots consolidated in accordance with certain accounting principles as of December 31, 2018, 
homes either closed or in backlog as of or for the period ended December 31, 2018, and lots controlled as of December 31, 
2018. The following table includes certain information that is forward-looking or predictive in nature and is based on 
expectations and projections about future events. Such information is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and actual 
results may differ materially from those expressed or forecast in the table below. In addition, we undertake no obligation to 
update or revise the information in the table below to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of anticipated or 
unanticipated events or changes to projections over time. See "CAUTIONARY NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING 
STATEMENTS" included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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Estimated 
Number of  
Homes at  

Completion  
(1)  

Cumulative 
Homes Closed 

as of 
December 31, 

2018 (2)  
Backlog at 

December 31,  
2018 (3) (4)  

Lots Owned 
or Controlled 

as of  
December 31,  

2018 (5)  

Homes Closed 
for the Year 

Ended 
December 31, 

2018  
Estimated Sales 

Price  
Range (6) 

California 7,025  2,242  252  4,783  1,172  $302,000 - 2,991,000 
Arizona 5,710  1,397  158  4,313  439  $179,990 - 487,990 
Nevada 2,458  1,081  94  2,626  364  $181,500 - 1,572,900 
Colorado 4,305  1,096  134  3,209  531  $271,000 - 584,000 
Washington 3,267  1,014  41  2,253  495  $284,990 - 1,329,990 
Oregon 5,822  1,480  128  4,342  585  $194,990 - 779,990 
Texas 8,543  600  234  8,015  600  $192,990 - 454,990 

GRAND TOTALS 37,130  8,910  1,041  29,541  4,186   
 

 
(1) The estimated number of homes to be built at completion is approximate and includes home sites in our backlog. Such 

estimated amounts are subject to change based on, among other things, future site planning, as well as zoning and 
permit changes, and there can be no assurance that the Company will build these homes. Further, certain projects may 
include lots that the Company controls, and that are also reflected in "Lots Owned or Controlled as of December 31, 
2018". 

(2) “Cumulative Homes Closed” represents homes closed since the project opened, and may include prior years, in addition 
to the homes closed during the current year presented. 

(3) Backlog consists of homes sold under sales contracts that have not yet closed, and there can be no assurance that 
closings of sold homes will occur. 

(4) Of the total homes subject to pending sales contracts as of December 31, 2018, 628 represent homes that are completed 
or under construction. 

(5) Lots owned or controlled as of December 31, 2018 include lots in backlog at December 31, 2018 and projects with lots 
owned as of December 31, 2018 that are expected to open for sale and have an estimated year of first delivery of 2019 
or later, as well as lots controlled as of December 31, 2018, and parcels of undeveloped land held for future sale. 
Certain lots controlled are under land banking arrangements which may become owned and produce deliveries 
during 2019. Actual homes at completion may change prior to the marketing and sales of homes in these projects and 
the sales price ranges for these projects are to be determined and will be based on current market conditions and other 
factors upon the commencement of active selling. There can be no assurance that the Company will acquire any of the 
controlled lots reflected in these amounts. 

(6) Estimated sales price range reflects the most recent pricing updates of the base price only and excludes any lot 
premium, buyer incentive and buyer selected options, which vary from project to project. Sales prices reflect current 
pricing estimates and might not be indicative of past or future pricing. Further, any potential benefit to be gained from 
an increase in sales price ranges as compared to previously estimated amounts may be offset by increases in costs, profit 
participation, and other factors. 

 

Sales and Marketing 

Each segment's management team develops a sales and marketing strategy for each project, which includes: 

•  market studies of existing home sales, both re-sale and new homes, as well as competition market analysis to 
establish pricing; 

•  developing the advertising program based on the product segmentation; and 

•  understanding the buyer profile to target marketing efforts. 
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The Company makes use of marketing tactics that include promotional events as well as on-line and off-line advertising 
channels.  Advertising channels include primarily off-site signage programs that serve as way-finding to individual 
neighborhood model complexes, online digital advertising specifically targeting potential homebuyers and on-site promotional 
events to support new neighborhood grand openings, new phase releases and/or homeowner referrals. 

The Company normally builds, decorates, furnishes and landscapes three to seven model homes for each product line and 
maintains on-site sales offices, which typically are open seven days a week, however, in some cases the Company will operate 
out of an on-site sales trailer prior to model home construction. Management believes that model homes and sales trailers play a 
particularly important role in the Company’s marketing efforts. Consequently, the Company expends a significant amount of 
effort in creating an attractive atmosphere at its model homes. Interior decorations vary among the Company’s models and are 
carefully selected based upon the lifestyles of targeted buyers. Structural changes in design from the model homes are not 
generally permitted, but home buyers may select various other optional construction and design amenities. 

The Company employs in-house commissioned sales personnel to sell its homes, and outside brokers are also involved in 
the selling of the Company’s homes. The Company typically engages its sales personnel on a long-term, rather than a project-
by-project basis, which it believes results in a more motivated sales force with an extensive knowledge of the Company’s 
operating policies and products. Sales personnel are trained by the Company and attend regular meetings to be updated on the 
availability of financing, construction schedules and marketing and advertising plans. 

The Company strives to provide a high level of customer help service throughout the entire sales process and after a 
home has closed escrow. The participation of the sales representatives, on-site construction supervisors and the post-closing 
customer service personnel, working in a team effort, is intended to foster the Company’s reputation for quality and service, 
and ultimately lead to an overall better customer home-buying experience that will benefit not only the customer directly, but 
also benefit the company in improving buyer retention and future homeowner referrals. 

The Company’s homes are typically sold before or during construction through sales contracts which are usually 
accompanied by a small cash deposit. Such sales contracts are usually subject to certain contingencies such as the buyer’s 
ability to qualify for financing. The cancellation rate of buyers who contracted to buy a home but did not close escrow at the 
Company and its joint ventures’ projects was approximately 16% during 2018 and 15% during 2017. Cancellations are caused 
by a variety of factors beyond the Company’s control such as buyer’s change in ability to secure financing over time, individual 
life changing events, or overall economic market conditions. 

Warranty 

The Company provides its homebuyers with a one to three year limited warranty, depending upon the timing of close of 
escrow and location of the project, covering workmanship and materials. The Company also provides its homebuyers with a 
limited warranty that covers “construction defects,” as defined in the limited warranty agreement provided to each home buyer, 
for the length of its legal liability for such defects (which may be up to ten years in some circumstances), as determined by the 
law of the state in which the Company builds. The limited warranty covering construction defects is transferable to subsequent 
buyers not under direct contract with the Company and requires that homebuyers agree to the definitions and procedures set 
forth in the warranty, including the submission of unresolved construction-related disputes to binding arbitration. In connection 
with the limited warranty covering construction defects, the Company maintains general liability insurance coverage.  The 
Company believes that its insurance policies will respond to construction defect claims on homes that close during each policy 
period for the duration of the Company’s legal liability, upon satisfaction of the applicable self-insured retention. In all of our 
geographic markets with the exception of Texas, where we maintain and require our subcontractors to maintain a separate 
general liability policy, each of our insurance policies provides a single wrap-up policy of insurance to the Company and its 
subcontractors. As a result, the Company is not required to obtain proof of insurance from its subcontractors nor be named as 
an additional insured under their individual insurance policies regarding the subcontractors' general liability policies for work 
on the Company's projects. The subcontractors still must provide proof of insurance regarding general liability coverage for off-
site work, worker's compensation and auto coverage.  Furthermore, the Company generally requires that each subcontractor and 
design professional agreement provide the Company with an indemnity, subject to various limitations. 

There can be no assurance, however, that the terms and limitations of the limited warranty will be enforceable against the 
homebuyers, that the Company will be able to renew its insurance coverage or renew it at reasonable rates, that the Company 
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will not be liable for damages, the cost of repairs, and/or the expense of litigation surrounding possible construction defects, 
soil subsidence or building-related claims or that claims will not arise out of uninsurable events not covered by insurance and 
not subject to effective indemnification agreements with the Company’s subcontractors and design professionals or that such 
subcontractors and design professionals will be viable entities at the time of the claim. 

Raw Materials 

 Typically, all of the raw materials and most of the components used in our business are readily available in the United 
States.  Most are standard items carried by major suppliers.  However, a rapid increase in the number of homes started or other 
market conditions could cause delays in the delivery of, shortages in, or higher prices for necessary materials.  Delivery delays 
or the inability to obtain necessary materials could result in delays in the delivery of homes under construction.  We have 
established national purchase programs for certain materials and we continue to monitor the supply markets to achieve the best 
prices available. 

Sale of Lots and Land 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company continually evaluates land sales and has sold, and expects that it will 
continue to sell, land as market and business conditions warrant. The Company may also sell both multiple lots to other 
builders (bulk sales) and improved individual lots for the construction of custom homes where the presence of such homes adds 
to the quality of the community. In addition, the Company may acquire sites with commercial, industrial and multi-family 
parcels which will generally be sold to third-party developers. 

Customer Financing 

The Company seeks to assist its home buyers in obtaining mortgage financing for qualified buyers. Substantially all 
home buyers utilize long-term mortgage financing to purchase a home and mortgage lenders will usually make loans only to 
qualified borrowers.  In connection with the Polygon Acquisition in 2014, the Company acquired a membership interest in an 
unconsolidated joint venture which provides certain mortgage brokerage services, in part, to its customers in Washington and 
Oregon.  In addition, in 2015 the Company announced the formation of a separate unconsolidated joint venture, of which it 
holds a membership interest, which provides a variety of mortgage banking services, in part, to its customers in California, 
Nevada, Arizona, Colorado and Texas.  While the Company's affiliated mortgage ventures may offer or provide certain 
mortgage services to the Company's homebuyers, the Company's homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing to purchase its 
homes from any lender or other provider of their choice. 

Information Systems and Controls 

The Company assigns a high priority to the development and maintenance of its budget and cost control systems and 
procedures. The Company’s segment offices are connected to corporate headquarters through a fully integrated accounting, 
financial and operational management information system. Through this system, management regularly evaluates the status of 
its projects in relation to budgets to determine the cause of any variances and, where appropriate, adjusts the Company’s 
operations to capitalize on favorable variances or to limit adverse financial impacts. 

Regulation 

The Company and its competitors are subject to various local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations 
concerning zoning, building design, construction and similar matters, including local regulation which imposes restrictive 
zoning and density requirements in order to limit the number of homes that can ultimately be built within the boundaries of a 
particular project. The Company and its competitors may also be subject to periodic delays or may be precluded entirely from 
developing in certain communities due to building moratoriums or “slow-growth” or “no-growth” initiatives that could be 
implemented in the future in the states in which it operates. Because the Company usually purchases land with entitlements, the 
Company believes that the moratoriums would adversely affect the Company only if they arose from unforeseen health, safety 
and welfare issues such as insufficient water or sewage facilities. Local and state governments also have broad discretion 
regarding the imposition of development fees for projects in their jurisdiction. However, these are normally locked-in when the 
Company receives entitlements. 



 

12 

The Company and its competitors are also subject to a variety of local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations concerning protection of health and the environment. The particular environmental laws which apply to any given 
community vary greatly according to the community site, the site’s environmental conditions and the present and former uses 
of the site. These environmental laws may result in delays, may cause the Company and its competitors to incur substantial 
compliance and other costs, and may prohibit or severely restrict development in certain environmentally sensitive regions or 
areas. Environmental laws and regulations can also have an adverse impact on the availability and price of certain raw 
materials such as lumber. The Company’s projects in California are especially susceptible to restrictive government regulations 
and environmental laws. However, environmental laws have not, to date, had a material adverse impact on the Company’s 
operations. The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, California Lyon, is licensed as a general building contractor in 
California, Arizona and Nevada, in various municipalities within Colorado as required, and in Oregon. California Lyon holds a 
corporate real estate license under the California Real Estate Law. In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company hold general 
contractor licenses and/or real estate broker licenses as necessary under the relevant jurisdictions. 

Competition 

The homebuilding industry is highly competitive and fragmented. Homebuilders compete for, among other things, 
homebuyers, desirable land parcels, financing, raw materials and skilled labor. The Company competes for homebuyers 
primarily on the basis of a number of interrelated factors including home design and location, construction quality, customer 
service and satisfaction, and reputation. The Company believes that it competes effectively in its existing markets as a result of 
its product and geographic diversity, substantial development expertise and its reputation as a low-cost producer of quality 
homes. Further, the Company believes that it sometimes gains a competitive advantage in locations where changing regulations 
make it difficult for competitors to obtain entitlements and/or government approvals which the Company has already obtained. 

Seasonality 

The Company’s operations are historically seasonal, with the highest new order activity typically occurring in the spring 
and summer, which is impacted by the timing of project openings and competition in surrounding projects, among other factors. 
In addition, a majority of the Company’s home deliveries typically occur in the third and fourth quarter of each fiscal year, 
based on the construction cycle times of our homes between five and eight months. As a result, the Company’s revenues, cash 
flow and profitability are higher in that same period. 

Financing 

The Company provides for its ongoing cash requirements principally from internally generated funds from the sales of 
real estate, outside borrowings and by forming new joint ventures with venture partners that provide a substantial portion of the 
capital required for certain projects. In addition, the Company makes use of the funds received from certain recent corporate 
transactions including the Company's initial public offering of equity securities, senior notes offerings and other capital markets 
transactions. 

As of December 31, 2018, California Lyon has outstanding its 7% Senior Notes due 2022, 6% Senior Notes due 2023, 
5.875% Senior Notes due 2025, certain construction notes payable, borrowings under its revolving credit facility and a letter of 
credit from its revolving credit facility. In addition to these borrowings, the Company had availability of $311.4 million under 
its revolving credit facility. Parent, California Lyon and their subsidiaries and joint ventures have financed, and may in the 
future finance, certain project and land acquisitions with construction loans secured by real estate inventories, seller-provided 
financing, lot option agreements and land banking transactions. 

Corporate Organization and Personnel 

The Company combines decentralized management in those aspects of its business where detailed knowledge of local 
market conditions is important (such as governmental processing, construction, land development and sales and marketing), 
with centralized management in those functions where the Company believes central control is required (such as approval of 
land acquisitions, finance, treasury, human resources and legal matters - corporate governance). 
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As of December 31, 2018, the Company employed 870 full-time employees, including corporate staff, supervisory 
personnel of construction projects, warranty service personnel for completed projects, as well as persons engaged in 
administrative, finance and accounting, engineering, sales and marketing activities. 

The Company believes that its relations with its employees are good. Some employees of the subcontractors the 
Company utilizes are unionized, but none of the Company’s employees are union members. 

Available Information 

The Company’s Internet address is http://www.lyonhomes.com. The information contained on the Company's website is 
not incorporated by reference into this report and should not be considered part of this report.  The Company makes available 
free of charge on or through its Internet website its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current 
reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after such material was electronically filed with, or 
furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.  The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 4695 
MacArthur Court, 8th Floor, Newport Beach, California 92660 and its telephone number is (949) 833-3600. The Company was 
incorporated in the State of Delaware on July 15, 1999. 

 
Item 1A. Risk Factors 

An investment in the Company entails the following risks and uncertainties. These risk factors should be carefully 
considered when evaluating any investment in the Company. Any of these risks and uncertainties could cause the actual results 
to differ materially from the results contemplated by the forward-looking statements set forth herein, and could otherwise have 
a significant adverse impact on the Company’s business, prospects, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, 
please read “Cautionary Note About Forward-Looking Statements” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, where we describe 
additional uncertainties associated with our business and the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. 

Risks Related to Our Business 
 

The homebuilding industry is cyclical and affected by changes in general economic, real estate and other business 
conditions that could reduce the demand for new homes and, as a result, negatively impact the Company's results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
 
 Certain economic, real estate and other business conditions that have significant effects on the homebuilding industry 
include: 
 

•  employment levels and job and personal income growth;  
 

•  availability and pricing of financing for homebuyers;  
 

•  short and long-term interest rates;  
 

•  overall consumer confidence and the confidence of potential homebuyers in particular;    
 

•  demographic trends;  
 

•  changes in energy prices;   
 

•  housing demand from population growth, household formation and other demographic changes, among other factors;  
 

•  U.S. and global financial system, market volatility and credit market stability;  
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•  private party and governmental residential consumer mortgage loan programs, and federal and state regulation of 

lending and appraisal practices;  
 
•  federal and state personal income tax rates and provisions, and government actions, policies, programs and regulations 

directed at or affecting the housing market (including the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“Tax Cuts and Job Act”), the Dodd-
Frank Act, tax benefits associated with purchasing and owning a home, and the standards, fees and size limits 
applicable to the purchase or insuring of mortgage loans by government-sponsored enterprises and government 
agencies), the homebuilding industry, or construction activities; 

 
•  the supply of and prices for available new or existing homes, including lender-owned homes acquired through 

foreclosures and short sales and homes held for sale by investors and speculators, and other housing alternatives, such 
as apartments and other residential rental property;  

 
•  homebuyer interest in our current or new product designs and community locations, and general consumer interest in 

purchasing a home compared to choosing other housing alternatives; and  
 

•  real estate taxes.  
 
 These above conditions, among others, are complex and interrelated. Adverse changes in such conditions may have a 
significant negative impact on our business, as they did during the recent downturn. The negative impact may be national in 
scope but may also negatively and acutely affect some of the regions or markets in which we operate more than others. In 
addition, adverse economic conditions in markets outside the U.S., such as Asia, India and Canada, as well as any restrictive 
economic policies in such overseas regions, may have an adverse impact on our financial results to the extent such factors 
decrease the amount of potential homebuyers from such regions in our markets.  For example, the capital markets in China 
experienced a high level of volatility in recent years and such volatility and economic uncertainty, as well as capital constraints 
and restrictions imposed by the government, may adversely affect our sales to the extent any potential homebuyers become 
more hesitant, or unable, to purchase a home.  When such adverse conditions affect any of our markets, those conditions could 
have a proportionately greater impact on us than on some other homebuilding companies. We cannot predict their occurrence or 
severity, nor can we provide assurance that our strategic responses to their impacts would be successful. 
 
 Further, the prior recession and downturn in the homebuilding industry had a significant adverse effect on us. While 
we believe that the housing market began to recover in fiscal year 2012 from the significant slowdown and that the 
fundamentals of the underlying broader domestic economy remain positive, we cannot predict the pace or scope of the 
recovery, and we have experienced a more tempered home price appreciation and moderate sales pace during recent years, with 
a good deal of variation between our markets, following the steep rebound of home prices in 2012 and 2013. We cannot predict 
the timing, duration or ultimate magnitude of any economic downturn or the continuation of the current recovery, nor can we 
provide assurance that should the recovery not continue, our response would be successful.  The recent improvement in housing 
market conditions following a prolonged and severe housing downturn may not continue, and any slowing or reversal of the 
present housing recovery may materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations. For example, during the 
fourth quarter of 2018, we experienced reduced demand for homes from consumers largely due to affordability concerns 
stemming from rising mortgage interest rates and steady home price appreciation over the past several years in certain of our 
markets, which negatively impacted our operations. We can provide no assurance as to the duration of this reduced demand, or 
that consumers will resume purchasing our homes at the rates they did in the recent recovery periods. 
 
Shortages in the availability of subcontract labor may delay construction schedules and increase our costs. 

 The Company's business and results of operations are dependent on the availability and skill of subcontractors, as 
substantially all construction work is done by subcontractors with the Company acting as the general contractor. Accordingly, 
the timing and quality of construction depend on the availability and skill of the Company’s unaffiliated, third party 
subcontractors. As the homebuilding market returns to full capacity, we have previously experienced and may again experience 
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skilled labor shortages.  Throughout the homebuilding cycle, we have experienced shortages of skilled labor in a number of our 
markets which has led to increased labor costs and increased the cycle times of completion of home construction and our ability 
to convert home sales into closings.  The cost of labor may also be adversely affected by shortages of qualified trades people, 
changes in laws and regulations relating to union activity and changes in immigration laws and trends in labor migration. We 
cannot be assured that there will be a sufficient supply of, or satisfactory performance by, these unaffiliated third-party 
consultants and subcontractors, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

The residential construction industry also experiences labor shortages and disruptions from time to time, including: work 
stoppages, labor disputes, shortages in qualified trades people, lack of availability of adequate utility infrastructure and 
services, our need to rely on local subcontractors who may not be adequately capitalized or insured, and delays in availability 
of building materials. Additionally, the Company could experience labor shortages as a result of subcontractors going out of 
business or leaving the residential construction market due to low levels of housing production and volumes. Any of these 
circumstances could give rise to delays in the start or completion of the Company’s communities, increase the cost of 
developing one or more of the Company’s communities and increase the construction cost of the Company’s homes. To the 
extent that market conditions prevent the recovery of increased costs, including, among other things, subcontracted labor, 
finished lots, building materials, and other resources, through higher sales prices, the Company’s gross margins from home 
sales and results of operations could be adversely affected. 

In addition, some of the subcontractors engaged by us are represented by labor unions or are subject to collective 
bargaining arrangements that require the payment of prevailing wages that are typically higher than normally expected on a 
residential construction site.  A strike or other work stoppage involving any of our subcontractors could also make it difficult 
for us to retain subcontractors for their construction work. In addition, union activity could result in higher costs for us to retain 
our subcontractors. Access to qualified labor at reasonable rates may also be affected by other circumstances beyond our 
control, including: (i) shortages of qualified tradespeople, such as carpenters, roofers, electricians and plumbers; (ii) high 
inflation; (iii) changes in laws relating to employment and union organizing activity; (iv) changes in trends in labor force 
migration; and (v) increases in contractor, subcontractor and professional services costs. The inability to contract with skilled 
contractors and subcontractors at reasonable rates on a timely basis could materially and adversely affect our financial 
condition and operating results. 

Further, the enactment and implementation of federal, state or local statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations requiring the 
payment of prevailing wages on private residential developments would materially increase our costs of development and 
construction, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial conditions. 

Limitations on the availability and increases in the cost of mortgage financing can adversely affect demand for housing, 
which could materially and adversely affect us. 

In general, housing demand is negatively impacted by the unavailability of mortgage financing, as a result of declining 
customer credit quality, tightening of mortgage loan underwriting standards and factors that increase the upfront or monthly 
cost of financing a home such as increases in interest rates, insurance premiums or limitations on mortgage interest 
deductibility.  Most of our buyers finance their home purchases through one of our mortgage ventures or third-party lenders 
providing mortgage financing.  If mortgage rates increase and, consequently, the ability of prospective buyers to finance home 
purchases is adversely affected, home sales, gross margins and cash flow may also be adversely affected and the impact may be 
material.  The U.S. Federal Open Market Committee has raised the target range for the federal funds rate several times in the 
last few years, and may continue to do so based on expectations regarding inflation, the labor market and economic expansion. 
We are unable to predict if, or when, the Federal Open Market Committee will announce further increases or the impact of any 
such increases on home mortgage interest rates, and mortgage interest rates during 2019 and beyond may prove to be more 
volatile than in recent years. Rising interest rates, decreased availability of mortgage financing or of certain mortgage 
programs, higher down payment requirements or increased monthly mortgage costs may lead to reduced demand for our 
homes.  Increased interest rates can also hinder our ability to realize our backlog because our home purchase contracts provide 
homebuyers with a financing contingency.  Financing contingencies may allow homebuyers to cancel their home purchase 
contracts in the event that they cannot arrange for adequate financing.  Further, even if potential customers do not need 
financing, changes in the availability of mortgage products or increases in mortgage costs may make it harder for them to sell 
their current homes to potential buyers who need financing, which has in some cases led to lower demand for new homes.  As a 
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result, rising interest rates can decrease our home sales.  Any of these factors could have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's business and results of operations. 

In addition, as a result of the turbulence in the credit markets and mortgage finance industry, the federal government has 
taken on a significant role in supporting mortgage lending through its conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, both of 
which purchase home mortgages and mortgage-backed securities originated by mortgage lenders, and its insurance of 
mortgages originated by lenders through the FHA and the VA.  The availability and affordability of mortgage loans, including 
consumer interest rates for such loans, could be adversely affected by a curtailment or cessation of the federal government's 
mortgage-related programs or policies.  The FHA may continue to impose stricter loan qualification standards, raise minimum 
down payment requirements, impose higher mortgage insurance premiums and other costs, and/or limit the number of 
mortgages it insures.  Due to federal budget deficits, the U.S. Treasury may not be able to continue supporting the mortgage-
related activities of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, the FHA and the VA at present levels, or it may revise significantly the federal 
government's participation in and support of the residential mortgage market.  For example, the FHA significantly reduced the 
limits on loans eligible for insurance by the FHA in 2014, which has impacted the availability and cost of financing in our 
markets.  Because the availability of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHA- and VA-backed mortgage financing is an important 
factor in marketing and selling many of our homes, any limitations, restrictions or changes in the availability of such 
government-backed financing could reduce our home sales, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's 
business and results of operations. 

 Furthermore, in July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was signed into 
law.  This legislation provides for a number of new requirements relating to residential mortgages and mortgage lending 
practices, many of which are to be developed further by implementing rules.  These include, among others, minimum standards 
for mortgages and lender practices in making mortgages, limitations on certain fees and incentive arrangements, retention of 
credit risk and remedies for borrowers in foreclosure proceedings.  The effect of such provisions on lending institutions will 
depend on the rules that are ultimately adopted.  However, these requirements, as and when implemented, are expected to 
reduce the availability of loans to borrowers and/or increase the costs to borrowers to obtain such loans.  Any such reduction 
could result in a decline of our home sales, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business and results of 
operations. 

In addition, future legislation, executive orders or changes in government policies could significantly affect the 
availability and cost of mortgage financing, including further changes to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act. We are unable to predict the impact, if any, of these potential changes on our home sales or financial 
performance. 

Ultimately, if these trends continue and mortgage loans continue to be difficult or costly to obtain, the ability and 
willingness of prospective buyers to finance home purchases or to sell their existing homes would be adversely affected, which 
would adversely affect the Company’s results of operations through reduced home sales revenue, gross margin and cash flow. 
 
Third-party lenders may not complete mortgage loan originations for the Company's homebuyers in a timely manner 
or at all, which can lead to cancellations and a lower backlog of orders, or to significant delays in the Company's 
delivering homes and recognizing revenues from those homes. 
 

The Company's buyers may obtain mortgage financing for their home purchases from any lender or other provider of their 
choice, including one of the Company's mortgage ventures or an unaffiliated lender. If, due to credit or consumer lending market 
conditions, regulatory requirements, or other factors or business decisions, these lenders refuse or are unable to provide mortgage 
loans to the Company's buyers, the number of homes that the Company delivers, the Company's business and its consolidated 
financial statements may be materially and adversely affected. 

The Company can provide no assurance as to a lenders’ ability or willingness to complete, in a timely fashion or at all, the 
mortgage loan originations they start for the Company's homebuyers. Such inability or unwillingness may result in mortgage 
loan funding issues that slow deliveries of the Company's homes and/or cause cancellations, which in each case may have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's business and its consolidated financial statements. In addition, recent changes to 
mortgage loan disclosure requirements to consumers may potentially delay lenders’, including the Company's mortgage ventures', 
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completion of the mortgage loan funding process for borrowers.  Specifically, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) 
has adopted a rule governing the content and timing of mortgage loan disclosures to borrowers, commonly known as TILA-
RESPA Integrated Disclosures or TRID, which became effective on October 3, 2015.  Lender compliance with TRID could result 
in delays in loan closings and the delivery of homes that materially and adversely affect the Company's financial results and 
operations. 

 
The Company may not have access to other capital resources to fund its liquidity needs, and difficulty in obtaining 
sufficient capital could result in increased costs and delays in completion of projects. 
 

The homebuilding industry is capital-intensive and requires significant up-front expenditures to acquire land and begin 
development. There is no assurance that cash generated from the Company's operations, borrowings incurred under its credit 
agreements or project-level financing arrangements, or proceeds raised in capital markets transactions, will be sufficient to 
finance the Company's capital projects or otherwise fund its liquidity needs.  If the Company's future cash flows from operations 
and other capital resources are insufficient to finance its capital projects or otherwise fund its liquidity needs, the Company may 
be forced to: 
 

•  reduce or delay its business activities, land acquisitions and capital expenditures;   
 

•  sell assets;   
 

•  obtain additional debt or equity capital; or   
 

•  restructure or refinance all or a portion of its debt, including the notes, on or before maturity.   
 
These alternative measures may not be successful and the Company may not be able to accomplish any of these alternatives on 
a timely basis or on satisfactory terms, if at all.  In addition, the terms of the Company's existing debt, including the notes and 
its credit agreements, will limit its ability to pursue these alternatives.  Further, the Company may seek additional capital in the 
form of project-level financing from time to time.  The availability of borrowed funds, especially for land acquisition and 
construction financing, may be greatly reduced nationally, and the lending community may require increased amounts of equity 
to be invested in a project by borrowers in connection with both new loans and the extension of existing loans. Land 
acquisition, development and construction activities may be adversely affected by any shortage or increased cost of financing 
or the unwillingness of third parties to engage in joint ventures. Any difficulty in obtaining sufficient capital for planned 
development expenditures could cause project delays and any such delay could result in cost increases and may adversely affect 
the Company’s sales and future results of operations and cash flows. 
 
The Company’s business is geographically concentrated, and therefore, the Company’s sales, results of operations, 
financial condition and business would be negatively impacted by a decline in the general economy or the homebuilding 
industry in such regions. 

The Company presently conducts most of its business in the following geographic areas within the Western U.S. region: 
Southern California, Northern California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, Washington, Oregon and Texas. The Company’s 
geographic concentration in the Western U.S. could adversely impact the Company if the homebuilding business in its current 
markets should decline, since there may not be a balancing opportunity in a stronger market in other geographic regions. 

In addition, a prolonged economic downturn in one or more of these areas, or in any sector of employment on which the 
residents in such areas are substantially dependent, could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, liquidity, 
financial condition and results of operations, and a disproportionately greater impact on us than other homebuilders with more 
diversified operations. For example, much of the employment base in the Pacific Northwest and Northern California markets 
are dependent upon the technology sector, and Nevada the hospitality and gaming sector, and the local economies in certain 
Colorado and Texas markets are to a large extent driven by the oil and gas industry.  Further, during the downturn from 2008 to 
2010, land values, the demand for new homes and home prices declined substantially in California, negatively impacting the 
Company’s profitability and financial position. In addition, in the past the state of California has experienced severe budget 
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shortfalls and taken measures such as raising taxes and increasing fees to offset the deficit. Accordingly, the Company's sales, 
results of operations, financial condition and business would be negatively impacted by a decline in the economy, the job sector 
or the homebuilding industry in the Western U.S. regions in which our operations are concentrated. 
 
Negative environmental impacts from, and legal and regulatory requirements in response to, severe and prolonged 
drought conditions in California, Arizona and Nevada could adversely affect our business and results of operations in 
those regions and our consolidated financial statements. 

 
Certain areas in which we operate, particularly California and parts of Arizona and Nevada, have experienced extreme or 

exceptional drought conditions from time to time. In response to these conditions and concerns that they may continue for an 
extended period of time or worsen, government officials have taken, or have proposed taking, a number of steps to preserve 
potable water supplies, such as the actions taken by governmental entities and agencies in the State of California in recent years.  
While the Governor of California lifted an emergency drought declaration in 2017, and California experienced significant snow 
and rainfall in more recent periods, urban water use reporting requirements and prohibitions on wasteful water practices are still 
in effect.  To address the state’s mandate and their own available potable water supplies, local water agencies/suppliers could 
potentially restrict, delay the issuance of, or proscribe new water connection permits for homes or businesses, increase the costs 
for securing such permits, either directly or by requiring participation in impact mitigation programs, adopt higher efficiency 
requirements for water-using appliances or fixtures, limit or ban the use of water for construction activities, impose requirements 
as to the types of allowed plant material or irrigation for outdoor landscaping that are more strict than state standards and less 
desired by consumers, and/or impose fines and penalties for noncompliance with any such measures, all of which may adversely 
impact our new home deliveries. These local water agencies/suppliers could also increase rates and charges to residential users 
for the water they use, potentially increasing the cost of homeownership. We can offer no assurance whether, where and the extent 
to which these or additional conservation measures might be imposed by local water agencies or suppliers in California or by 
other federal, state or local lawmakers or regulators in Arizona, California and Nevada. Further, if potable water supplies become 
further constrained due to persistent drought conditions, tighter conservation requirements may be imposed that could limit, 
impair or delay our ability to acquire and develop land, or build and deliver homes, increase our production costs, or cause the 
fair value of affected land or land interests in our inventory to decline, which could result in inventory impairment or land option 
contract abandonment charges, or both, or negatively affect the economies of, or diminish consumer interest in living in, water-
constrained areas. These impacts, individually or collectively, could adversely affect our business and consolidated financial 
statements, and the effect could be material. 

 
Changes to applicable tax laws could have an adverse effect on our business. 
 

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act was enacted, which contains substantial changes to the Internal Revenue 
Code, effective January 1, 2018, some of which could have an adverse effect on our business and continuing operations.  Prior 
to the Tax Cuts and Job Act’s enactment, significant expenses of owning a home, including mortgage loan interest costs and real 
estate taxes, generally were deductible expenses for the purpose of calculating an individual’s or household’s federal, and in 
some cases state, taxable income, subject to various limitations. The Tax Cuts and Job Act established new limits on the federal 
tax deductions individual taxpayers may take on mortgage loan interest payments and on state and local taxes, including real 
estate taxes. The Tax Cuts and Job Act also raised the standard deduction. These changes could reduce the perceived affordability 
of homeownership, and therefore the demand for homes, and/or have a moderating impact on home sales prices, in areas with 
relatively high housing prices and/or high state and local income taxes and real estate taxes, including in certain of our served 
markets in California. As a result, some communities in our California operations could experience lower net orders and/or a 
tempering of average sales prices in future periods depending on how homebuyers react to the tax law changes under the Tax 
Cuts and Job Act. In addition, if the federal government further changes, or a state government changes, its income tax laws by 
eliminating or substantially reducing the income tax benefits associated with homeownership, the after-tax cost of owning a home 
could measurably increase. Any increases in personal income tax rates and/or tax deduction limits or restrictions enacted at the 
federal or state levels, including those enacted under the Tax Cuts and Job Act, could adversely impact demand for and/or selling 
prices of new homes, including our homes, and the effect on our consolidated financial statements could be adverse and material. 
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Increases in the Company’s cancellation rate could have a negative impact on the Company’s home sales revenue and 
home building gross margins. 

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, the Company experienced cancellation rates of 16%, 15%, 
and 16%, respectively. Cancellations negatively impact the number of closed homes, net new home orders, home sales revenue 
and the Company’s results of operations, as well as the number of homes in backlog. Home order cancellations can result from 
a number of factors, including but not limited to declines or slow appreciation in the market value of homes, increases in the 
supply of homes available to be purchased, increased competition, higher mortgage interest rates, buyer's remorse, homebuyers’ 
inability to sell their existing homes, homebuyers’ inability to obtain suitable financing, including providing sufficient down 
payments, and adverse changes in economic conditions. Many of these factors are beyond the Company’s control. Increased 
levels of home order cancellations would have a negative impact on the Company’s home sales revenue and financial and 
operating results. 
 
If we are not able to develop our communities successfully and in a timely manner, our revenues, financial condition and 
results of operations may be adversely impacted. 
 
 Before a community can open for sale, significant expenditures are required to acquire land, to obtain or renew 
permits, development approvals and entitlements and to construct significant portions of project infrastructure, amenities, 
model homes and sales facilities. There may be a lag between the time we acquire land or options for land for development or 
developed home sites and the time we can bring the communities to market and sell homes. We can also experience significant 
delays in obtaining permits, development approvals and entitlements, delays resulting from local, state or federal government 
approvals (including due to an extended failure of lawmakers to agree on a budget or appropriation legislation to fund relevant 
operations or programs) and utility company constraints or delays, or delays in a land seller's lot deliveries or from rights or 
claims asserted by third parties, which may be outside of our control. For example, in January 2019, in response to potential 
liabilities arising from a series of recent catastrophic wildfires in Northern California, PG&E Corporation, a major gas and 
electric utility company servicing various geographic markets, including Northern California, initiated voluntary bankruptcy 
proceedings, which may result in potential service disruptions, or constraints or delays in providing such utilities in the markets 
in which PG&E Corporation currently operates. Additionally, we may also have to renew existing permits and there can be no 
assurances that these permits will be renewed. Lag time varies on a project-by-project basis depending on the complexity of the 
project, its stage of development when acquired, and the regulatory and community issues involved. As a result of these 
possible delays, we face the risk that demand for housing may decline during this period and we will not be able to open 
communities and sell homes at expected prices or within anticipated time frames or at all. The market value of home 
inventories, undeveloped land, options for land and developed home sites can fluctuate significantly because of changing 
market conditions. Each of these factors may have a significant negative impact on our financial and operational results. 
 
Our long-term growth depends upon our ability to acquire land at reasonable prices. 
 
 The Company’s business depends on its ability to obtain land for the development of its residential communities at 
reasonable prices and with terms that meet its underwriting criteria. The Company’s ability to obtain land for new residential 
communities may be adversely affected by changes in the general availability of land, the willingness of land sellers to sell land 
at reasonable prices, competition for available land, availability of financing to acquire land, zoning, regulations that limit 
housing density, and other market conditions. If the supply of land appropriate for development of residential communities is 
limited because of these factors, or for any other reason, the number of homes that the Company builds and sells may decline. 
Additionally, the ability of the Company to open new projects could be impacted if the Company elects not to purchase lots 
under option contracts. To the extent that the Company is unable to purchase land timely or enter into new contracts for the 
purchase of land at reasonable prices, due to the lag time between the time the Company acquires land and the time the 
Company begins selling homes, the Company’s home sales revenue and results of operations could be negatively impacted 
and/or the Company could be required to scale back the Company’s operations in a given market. 

Financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by any decrease in the value of land inventory, 
as well as by the associated carrying costs. 



 

20 

The Company continuously acquires land for replacement and expansion of land inventory within the markets in which it 
builds. The risks inherent in purchasing and developing land increase as consumer demand for housing decreases, and thus, the 
Company may have bought and developed land on which homes cannot be profitably built and sold. The Company employs 
measures to manage inventory risks which may not be successful. 

We incur many costs even before we begin to build homes in a community, including costs of preparing land and 
installing roads, sewage and other utilities, as well as taxes and other costs related to ownership of the land on which we plan to 
build homes. In addition, inventory carrying costs can be significant and can result in losses in a poorly performing project or 
market, and the Company may have to sell homes at significantly lower margins or at a loss, which conditions may persist for 
extended periods of time. If the rate at which we sell and deliver homes slows or falls, or if we delay the opening of new home 
communities for sales due to adjustments in our marketing strategy or other reasons, each of which occurred throughout the 
previous housing downturn, we may incur additional costs and it will take a longer period of time for us to recover our costs, 
including the costs we incurred in acquiring and developing land. 

Construction defect, home warranty, soil subsidence and building-related and other claims may be asserted against the 
Company in the ordinary course of business, and the Company may be subject to liability for such claims. 

As a homebuilder, we have been, and continue to be, subject to construction defect, product liability and home warranty 
claims, including moisture intrusion and related claims, arising in the ordinary course of business, in addition to other 
potentially significant lawsuits, arbitration proceedings and other claims, including breach of contract claims, contractual 
disputes, personal injury claims and disputes related to defective title or property misdescription. These claims are common to 
the homebuilding industry and can be costly. 

There can be no assurance that any current or future developments undertaken by us will be free from defects once 
completed. Construction defects may occur on projects and developments and may arise during a significant period of time 
after completion. Defects arising on a development attributable to us may lead to significant contractual or other liabilities. We 
also currently conduct a significant portion of our business in California, one of the most highly regulated and litigious 
jurisdictions in the United States, which imposes a ten year, strict liability tail on many construction liability claims and 
therefore, our potential losses and expenses due to litigation, new laws and regulations may be greater than those of our 
competitors who have smaller or no California operations. For these and other reasons, we establish warranty, claim and 
litigation reserves that we believe are adequate based on historical experience in the markets in which we operate and judgment 
of the risks associated with the types of homes, lots and land we sell. We also obtain certain indemnities from contractors and 
subcontractors generally covering claims related to damages resulting from faulty workmanship and materials and enroll a 
majority of these contractors and subcontractors in our Owner Controlled Insurance Program providing general liability 
coverage for these types of claims, subject to self-insured retentions. 

With respect to certain general liability exposures, including construction defect claims, product liability claims and 
related claims, assessment of claims and the related liability and reserve estimation process is highly judgmental due to the 
complex nature of these exposures, with each exposure exhibiting unique circumstances. Furthermore, once claims are asserted 
for construction defects, it can be difficult to determine the extent to which the assertion of these claims will expand. Plaintiffs 
may seek to consolidate multiple parties in one lawsuit, bring suit on behalf of a homeowners association, or HOA, or seek 
class action status in some of these legal proceedings with potential class sizes that vary from case to case. Consolidated, HOA 
and class action lawsuits can be costly to defend and, if we were to lose any consolidated, HOA or certified class action suit, it 
could result in substantial liability. 

In addition to difficulties with respect to claim assessment and liability and reserve estimation, some types of claims may 
not be covered by insurance or may exceed applicable coverage limits. Furthermore, contractual indemnities with contractors 
and subcontractors can be difficult to enforce, and we may also be responsible for applicable self-insured retentions with 
respect to our insurance policies, and we include our subcontractors on our general liability insurance and our ability to seek 
indemnity for insured claims is significantly limited. Furthermore, any product liability or warranty claims made against us, 
whether or not they are viable, may lead to negative publicity, which could impact our reputation and future home sales. In 
addition, manufactured product defects may result in delays, additional costs and remediation efforts which could have a 
negative impact on our new home deliveries and financial and operating results. 
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 Although we have obtained insurance for construction defect claims subject to applicable self-insurance retentions, such 
policies may not be available or adequate to cover liability for damages, the cost of repairs, and/or the expense of litigation 
surrounding current claims, and future claims may arise out of events or circumstances not covered by insurance and not 
subject to effective indemnification agreements with our subcontractors. 
 
 For these reasons, although we actively manage our claims and litigation and actively monitor our reserves and 
insurance coverage, because of the uncertainties inherent in these matters, we cannot provide assurance that our insurance 
coverage, indemnity arrangements and reserves will be adequate to cover liability for any damages, the cost of repairs and 
litigation, or any other related expenses surrounding the current claims to which we are subject or any future claims that may 
arise. Such damages and expenses, to the extent that they are not covered by insurance or redress against contractors and 
subcontractors, could materially and adversely affect our consolidated financial statements and results. 

Adverse weather and geological conditions may increase costs, cause project delays and reduce consumer demand for 
housing, all of which could materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, financial 
condition or results of operations. 

As a homebuilder, the Company is subject to numerous risks, many of which are beyond management’s control, such as 
droughts, floods, wildfires, landslides, soil subsidence, earthquakes and other weather-related and geologic events which could 
damage projects, cause delays in completion of projects, or reduce consumer demand for housing, and shortages in labor or 
materials, which could delay project completion and cause increases in the prices for labor or materials, thereby affecting the 
Company’s sales and profitability. Many of the Company’s projects are located in California, which has experienced significant 
earthquake activity and seasonal wildfires. Areas in Colorado have also been subjected to seasonal wildfires and soil 
subsidence, as well as periods of extremely cold weather and snow.  Further, the Company operates in markets in the Pacific 
Northwest that experience high levels of rain, and there may be significant rainfall from a strong El Nino weather pattern in 
California and other Western U.S. regions. In addition, certain Texas markets have experienced significant flooding in recent 
years. In addition to directly damaging the Company’s projects, earthquakes or other geologic events could damage roads and 
highways providing access to those projects, thereby adversely affecting the Company’s ability to market homes in those areas 
and possibly increasing the costs of completion. 

There are some risks of loss for which the Company may be unable to purchase insurance coverage. For example, losses 
associated with landslides, earthquakes and other geologic events may not be insurable and other losses, such as those arising 
from terrorism, may not be economically insurable. A sizable uninsured loss could adversely affect the Company’s business, 
prospects, liquidity, results of operations or financial condition. 

The Company may not be able to compete effectively against competitors in the homebuilding industry. 

The homebuilding industry is highly competitive and there are relatively low barriers to entry. Homebuilders compete for, 
among other things, homebuying customers, desirable properties, financing, raw materials and skilled labor. The Company 
competes both with large homebuilding companies, some of which have greater financial, marketing and sales resources than 
the Company, and with smaller local builders. Our competitors may independently develop land and construct housing units 
that are substantially similar to our products and may employ increased sales incentives for such products. Many of these 
competitors also have long-standing relationships with subcontractors and suppliers in the markets in which we operate. We 
currently build in several of the top markets in the nation and, therefore, we expect to continue to face additional competition 
from new entrants into our markets. The Company also competes for sales with individual resales of existing homes and 
available rental housing. These competitive conditions can result in: 

•  our delivering fewer homes; 

•  our selling homes at lower prices; 

•  our offering or increasing sales incentives, discounts or price concessions for our homes; 

•  our experiencing lower housing gross profit margins, particularly if we cannot raise our selling prices to cover 
increased land development, home construction or overhead costs; 
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•  our selling fewer homes or experiencing a higher number of cancellations by homebuyers; 

•  impairments in the value of our inventory and other assets; 

•  difficulty in acquiring desirable land that meets our investment return or marketing standards, and in selling our 
interests in land that no longer meet such standards on favorable terms; 

•  difficulty in our acquiring raw materials and skilled management and trade labor at acceptable prices; 

•  delays in the development of land and/or the construction of our homes; and/or 

•  difficulty in securing external financing, performance bonds or letter of credit facilities on favorable terms. 

These competitive conditions may have a material adverse effect on our business and consolidated financial statements 
by decreasing our revenues, impairing our ability to successfully implement our current strategies, increasing our costs and/or 
diminishing growth in our local or regional homebuilding businesses. 

In addition, existing and increased competition could prevent the Company from acquiring attractive land parcels on 
which to build homes or make such acquisitions more expensive, hinder its growth efforts, and lead to pricing pressures on the 
Company's homes that may adversely impact its margins and revenues. Furthermore, a number of the Company’s competitors 
have larger staffs, larger marketing organizations and substantially greater financial resources than those of the Company, and 
accordingly, they may be able to compete more effectively in one or more of the markets in which the Company operates. 
Many of these competitors also have longstanding relationships with subcontractors and suppliers in the markets in which the 
Company operates. The Company also competes for sales with individual resales of existing homes and with available rental 
housing. 

Labor and raw materials and building supply shortages and price fluctuations could delay or increase the cost of home 
construction and reduce our sales and earnings. 

The residential construction industry experiences serious material shortages from time to time, including shortages in 
labor, insulation, drywall, cement, steel and lumber. These labor and material shortages can be more severe during periods of 
strong demand for housing and during periods where the regions in which we operate experience natural disasters that have a 
significant impact on existing residential and commercial structures. From time to time, we have experienced volatile price 
swings in the cost of labor and materials, including in particular, the cost of labor, lumber, cement, steel and drywall. In 
addition, environmental and other regulations and import tariffs and trade restrictions have had, and in the future could continue 
to have, an adverse impact on the cost of certain raw materials such as lumber. The Company generally is unable to pass on 
increases in construction costs to customers who have already entered into sales contracts, as those sales contracts generally fix 
the price of the homes at the time the contracts are signed, which may be in advance of the construction of the home.  During 
the most recent economic downturn, a large number of qualified tradespeople went out of business or otherwise exited the 
market, which may limit capacity for new construction until the labor base grows.  Additionally, the cost of petroleum products, 
which are used to deliver our materials, fluctuates and may be subject to increased volatility as a result of geopolitical events or 
accidents, which could affect the price of our important raw materials.  Shortages could cause delays in and increase our costs 
of home construction, and increases in construction costs may, over time, erode the Company’s gross margins from home sales, 
particularly if pricing competition restricts the ability to pass on any additional costs of materials or labor, thereby decreasing 
gross margins from home sales, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

Recent and potential changes in U.S. trade policies and retaliatory responses from other countries may significantly 
increase the costs or limit supplies of building materials and products used in our homes. 

The federal government has recently imposed new or increased tariffs or duties on an array of imported materials and 
goods that are used in connection with the construction and delivery of our homes, including steel, aluminum, lumber, solar 
panels and washing machines, raising our costs for these items (or products made with them), and has threatened to impose 
further tariffs, duties and/or trade restrictions on imports. Foreign governments, including China and Canada, and the European 
Union, have responded by imposing or increasing tariffs, duties and/or trade restrictions on U.S. goods, and are reportedly 
considering other measures. These trading conflicts and related escalating governmental actions that result in additional tariffs, 
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duties and/or trade restrictions could increase our construction costs further, cause disruptions or shortages in our supply chains 
and/or negatively impact the U.S., regional or local economies, and, individually or in the aggregate, materially and adversely 
affect our business and our consolidated financial statements. 

We may not be successful in integrating acquisitions or implementing our growth strategies. 

In August 2014, we closed the Polygon Acquisition, marking our entry into the Washington and Oregon markets, and in 
March 2018, we closed the RSI Acquisition, marking our entry into the Texas market. We may in the future consider growth or 
expansion of our operations in our current markets or in new markets, whether through strategic acquisitions of homebuilding 
companies or otherwise. The magnitude, timing and nature of any future expansion will depend on a number of factors, 
including our ability to identify suitable additional markets and/or acquisition candidates, the negotiation of acceptable terms, 
our financial capabilities and general economic and business conditions. Our expansion into new or existing markets, whether 
through acquisition or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition 
or results of operations, and any future acquisitions could result in the dilution of existing shareholders if we issue our common 
shares as consideration. Acquisitions also involve numerous risks, including difficulties in the assimilation of the acquired 
company’s operations, the incurrence of unanticipated liabilities or expenses, the risk of impairing inventory and other assets 
related to the acquisition, the diversion of management’s attention and resources from other business concerns, risks associated 
with entering markets in which we have limited or no direct experience and the potential loss of key employees of the acquired 
company. 
 
We may write-off intangible assets, such as goodwill. 
 
 We have recorded intangible assets, including goodwill in connection with the Polygon and RSI Acquisitions.  On an 
ongoing basis, we will evaluate whether facts and circumstances indicate any impairment of the value of intangible assets.  As 
circumstances change, we cannot assure that the value of these intangible assets will be realized by us.  If we determine that a 
significant impairment has occurred, we will be required to write-off the impaired portion of intangible assets, which could 
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations in the period in which the write-off occurs. 

The Company’s success depends on key executive officers and personnel. 

The Company’s success is dependent upon the efforts and abilities of its executive officers and other key employees, 
many of whom have significant experience in the homebuilding industry and in the Company’s divisional markets. In 
particular, the Company is dependent upon the services of William H. Lyon, Executive Chairman and Chairman of the Board, 
and Matthew R. Zaist, Chief Executive Officer and President, as well as the services of the corporate senior management, 
division presidents and division management teams and other personnel in the corporate office. The loss of the services or 
limitation in the availability of any of these executives or key personnel, for any reason, could hinder the execution of our 
business strategy and have a material adverse effect upon the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition or 
results of operation. Further, such a loss could be negatively perceived in the capital markets. 

Moreover, our employment agreements with certain members of senior management provide that if their employment 
terminates under certain circumstances, we may be required to pay them significant amounts of severance compensation.  In 
addition, we have not obtained key man life insurance that would provide us with proceeds in the event of death or disability of 
any of our key personnel. 

Power and natural resource shortages or price increases could have an adverse impact on operations. 

Certain of the markets in which we operate, including California, have experienced power and resource shortages, 
including mandatory periods without electrical power, changes to water availability and significant increases in utility and 
resource costs. These conditions may cause us to incur additional costs and we may not be able to complete construction on a 
timely basis if they were to continue for an extended period of time.  Shortages of natural resources, particularly water and 
power, may make it more difficult to obtain regulatory approval of new developments. The Company may incur additional 
costs and may not be able to complete construction on a timely basis if such power shortages and utility rate increases continue. 
Furthermore, power shortages and rate increases may adversely affect the regional economies in which the Company operates, 
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which may reduce demand for housing. The Company’s operations may be adversely impacted if further rate increases and/or 
power shortages occur. 

Increased insurance costs and reduced insurance coverages may affect the Company’s results of operations and increase 
the potential exposure to liability. 

Recently, lawsuits have been filed against builders asserting claims of personal injury and property damage, including 
arising from the presence of mold or other materials in residential dwellings. Some of these lawsuits have resulted in 
substantial monetary judgments or settlements against these builders. The Company’s insurance may not cover all of the 
potential claims, including personal injury claims, or such coverage may become prohibitively expensive. If the Company is 
unable to obtain adequate insurance coverage, a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, results 
of operations or financial condition could result. 

The costs of insuring against construction defect, product liability and director and officer claims are substantial and the 
cost of insurance for the Company’s operations has risen, deductibles and retentions have increased and the availability of 
insurance has diminished. Significant increases in the cost of insurance coverage or significant limitations on coverage could 
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, results of operations or financial condition from 
such increased costs or from liability for significant uninsurable or underinsured claims. 

We provide certain mortgage-related services to our customers and other homebuyers, which ventures are subject to 
extensive government regulations. 

The business operations of our mortgage ventures and additional current or future financial services operations such as 
title operations, are heavily regulated and subject to the rules and regulations promulgated by a number of governmental and 
quasi-governmental agencies.  The mortgage industry remains under intense scrutiny and continues to face increasing 
regulation at the federal, state and local level. If any of the financial services ventures are determined to have violated federal or 
state regulations, they may face the loss of licenses or other required approvals or could be subject to fines, penalties, civil 
actions or could be required to suspend their activities, and we may face the same consequences for any violations of 
regulations applicable to us, each of which could have an adverse effect on the ventures’, and our, reputation, results and 
operations.  In addition, to the extent that any of our mortgage ventures were faced with any claims for losses or liabilities 
arising from the services performed that were in excess of any reserve levels, then there may be an adverse impact on the 
ventures’ financial condition or ability to operate, or cause us to recognize losses with respect to our equity interest in the 
ventures, or cause our customers to seek mortgage loans from other lenders and/or experience mortgage loan funding issues 
that could delay our delivering homes to them and/or cause them to cancel their home purchase contracts with us. 

We could be responsible for employment-related liabilities with respect to our contractors’ employees. 

Several other homebuilders have received inquiries from regulatory agencies concerning whether homebuilders using 
contractors are deemed to be employers of the employees of such contractors under certain circumstances. Although contractors 
are independent of the homebuilders that contract with them under normal management practices and the terms of trade 
contracts and subcontracts within the homebuilding industry, if regulatory agencies reclassify the employees of contractors as 
employees of homebuilders, homebuilders using contractors could be responsible for wage and hour labor laws, workers’ 
compensation and other employment-related liabilities of their contractors.  Even if we are not deemed to be joint employers 
with our contractors, we may be subject to legislation that requires us to share liability with our contractors for the payment of 
wages and the failure to secure valid workers’ compensation coverage.  In addition, California’s Governor recently signed 
legislation, AB 1701, that requires direct construction contractors to assume and be liable for unpaid wages, fringe or other 
benefit payments or contributions, including interest, incurred by a subcontractor at any tier for contracts entered into on or 
after January 1, 2018, which may result in increased costs. 
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Inflation could adversely affect the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition or results of operations, 
particularly in a period of oversupply of homes or declining home sale prices. 

Inflation can adversely affect the Company by increasing costs of land, materials and labor. However, the Company may 
be unable to offset these increases with higher sales prices. In addition, inflation is often accompanied by higher interest rates, 
which have a negative impact on housing demand. In such an environment, the Company may be unable to raise home prices 
sufficiently to keep up with the rate of cost inflation, and, accordingly, its margins could decrease. Furthermore, if we need to 
lower the price of our homes to meet demand, the value of our land inventory may decrease. Moreover, with inflation, the costs 
of capital can increase and purchasing power of the Company’s cash resources can decline. 

The Company’s business is seasonal in nature and quarterly operating results can fluctuate. 

The Company’s quarterly operating results generally fluctuate by season. The Company typically achieves its highest 
new home sales orders in the spring and summer, although new homes sales order activity is also highly dependent on the 
number of active selling communities and the timing of new community openings. Because it typically takes the Company four 
to eight months to construct a new home, the Company delivers a greater number of homes in the second half of the calendar 
year as sales orders convert to home deliveries. As a result, the Company’s revenues from homebuilding operations are 
typically higher in the second half of the year, particularly in the fourth quarter, and the Company generally experiences higher 
capital demands in the first half of the year when it incurs construction costs. If, due to construction delays or other causes, the 
Company cannot close its expected number of homes in the second half of the year, the Company’s financial condition and full 
year results of operations may be adversely affected. 

The Company may be unable to obtain suitable bonding for the development of its communities. 

The Company provides bonds in the ordinary course of business to governmental authorities and others to ensure the 
completion of its projects and/or in support of obligations to build community improvements such as roads, sewers, water 
systems and other utilities, and to support similar development activities by certain of our joint ventures. As a result of the 
deterioration in market conditions during the recent downturn, surety providers became increasingly reluctant to issue new 
bonds and some providers were requesting credit enhancements (such as cash deposits or letters of credit) in order to maintain 
existing bonds or to issue new bonds, which trends may continue. The Company may also be required to provide performance 
bonds and/or letters of credit to secure our performance under various escrow agreements, financial guarantees and other 
arrangements. If the Company is unable to obtain performance bonds and/or letters of credit when required or the cost or 
operational restrictions or conditions imposed by issuers to obtain them increases significantly, the Company may not be able to 
develop or may be significantly delayed in developing a community or communities and/or may incur significant additional 
expenses, and, as a result, the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition or results of operation could be 
materially and adversely affected. 

The Company is the managing member in certain joint venture limited liability companies and may become a managing 
member or general partner in future joint ventures, and therefore may be liable for joint venture obligations. 

Certain of the Company’s active joint ventures, or JVs, are organized as limited liability companies. The Company is the 
managing member in some of these and may serve as the managing member or general partner, in the case of a limited 
partnership JV, in future JVs. As a managing member or general partner, the Company may be liable for a JV’s liabilities and 
obligations should the JV fail or be unable to pay these liabilities or obligations. These risks include, among others, that a 
partner in the JV may fail to fund its share of required capital contributions, that a partner may make poor business decisions or 
delay necessary actions, or that a partner may have economic or other business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our 
own. 
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Fluctuations in real estate values may require us to write–down the book value of our real estate assets. 

The homebuilding industry is subject to significant variability and fluctuations in real estate values. As a result, the 
Company may be required to write-down the book value of certain real estate assets in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP, and some of those write downs could be material. Any material write–downs of assets 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition or results of operations. 

The Company assesses its projects on a quarterly basis, when indicators of impairment exist. Indicators of impairment 
include a decrease in demand for housing due to soft market conditions, competitive pricing pressures which reduce the 
average sales price of homes, which includes sales incentives for home buyers, sales absorption rates below management 
expectations, a decrease in the value of the underlying land and a decrease in projected cash flows for a particular project. 

Because real estate investments are relatively illiquid, our ability to promptly sell one or more properties for reasonable 
prices in response to changing economic, financial and investment conditions may be limited and we may be forced to 
hold non-income producing properties for extended periods of time. 

Real estate investments are relatively difficult to sell quickly.  As a result, our ability to promptly sell one or more 
properties in response to changing economic, financial and investment conditions is limited and we may be forced to hold non-
income producing assets for an extended period of time.  We cannot predict whether we will be able to sell any property for the 
price or on the terms that we set or whether any price or other terms offered by a prospective purchaser would be acceptable to 
us.  We also cannot predict the length of time needed to find a willing purchaser and to close the sale of a property. 

Governmental laws and regulations may increase the Company’s expenses, limit the number of homes that the 
Company can build or delay completion of projects. 

The Company is subject to numerous local, state, federal and other statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations concerning 
zoning, development, building design, construction and similar matters which impose restrictive zoning and density 
requirements in order to limit the number of homes that can eventually be built within the boundaries of a particular area, as 
well as governmental taxes, fees and levies on the acquisition and development of land parcels. These regulations often provide 
broad discretion to the administering governmental authorities as to the conditions we must meet prior to being approved, if 
approved at all. We are subject to determinations by these authorities as to the adequacy of water and sewage facilities, roads 
and other local services. New housing developments may also be subject to various assessments for schools, parks, streets, 
other public improvements, other development or impact fees, and fees imposed on developers to provide low- and moderate-
income housing. Although we do not typically purchase land that is not entitled, to the extent that projects are not entitled, 
purchased lands may be subjected to periodic delays, changes in use, less intensive development or elimination of development 
in certain specific areas due to government regulations. The Company may also be subject to periodic delays, may be precluded 
entirely from developing in certain communities or may otherwise be restricted in our business activities due to building 
moratoriums or “slow-growth” or “no-growth” initiatives that could be implemented in the future in the states in which the 
Company operates. Such moratoriums can occur prior or subsequent to commencement of our operations, without notice or 
recourse. Local and state governments also have broad discretion regarding the imposition of development fees for projects in 
their jurisdiction. Projects for which the Company has received land use and development entitlements or approvals may still 
require a variety of other governmental approvals and permits during the development process and can also be impacted 
adversely by unforeseen health, safety, and welfare issues, which can further delay these projects or prevent their development. 
As a result of any of these factors, home sales could decline, costs increase, and projects could be materially delayed, any of 
which could negatively affect the Company’s business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. 

The Company is subject to environmental laws and regulations, which may increase costs, limit the areas in which the 
Company can build homes and delay completion of projects. 

The Company is also subject to a variety of local, state, federal and other statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations 
concerning the environment. The particular environmental laws which apply to any given homebuilding site vary according to 
the site’s location, its environmental conditions and the present and former uses of the site, as well as adjoining properties. 
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Environmental laws and conditions may result in delays, may cause the Company to incur substantial compliance and other 
costs, including significant fines and penalties for any violation, and can prohibit or severely restrict homebuilding activity in 
environmentally sensitive regions or areas, which could negatively affect the Company’s results of operations. 

Under various environmental laws, current or former owners of real estate, as well as certain other categories of parties, 
may be required to investigate and clean up hazardous or toxic substances or petroleum product releases, and may be held 
liable to a governmental entity or to third parties for property damage and for investigation and clean-up costs incurred by such 
parties in connection with the contamination. In addition, in those cases where an endangered species is involved, 
environmental rules and regulations can result in the elimination of development in identified environmentally sensitive areas. 

We may become subject to litigation, which could materially and adversely affect us. 
 
 In the future, we may become subject to litigation, including claims relating to our operations, breach of contract, 
securities offerings or otherwise in the ordinary course of business. Some of these claims may result in significant defense costs 
and potentially significant judgments against us, some of which are not, or cannot be, insured against. We cannot be certain of 
the ultimate outcomes of any claims that may arise in the future. Resolution of these types of matters against us may result in 
significant fines, judgments or settlements, which, if uninsured, or if the fines, judgments and settlements exceed insured levels, 
could adversely impact our earnings and cash flows, thereby materially and adversely affecting us. Litigation or the resolution 
of litigation may affect the availability or cost of our insurance coverage, which could materially and adversely impact us, 
expose us to increased risks that would be uninsured, and materially and adversely impact our ability to attract directors and 
officers. 
 
Changes in global or regional climate conditions and governmental response to such changes may limit, prevent or 
increase the costs of our planned or future growth activities. 
 
 Projected climate change, if it occurs, may exacerbate the scarcity or presence of water and other natural resources in 
affected regions, which could limit, prevent or increase the costs of residential development in certain areas. In addition, a 
variety of new legislation is being enacted, or considered for enactment, at the federal, state and local level relating to energy 
and climate change, and as climate change concerns continue to grow, legislation and regulations of this nature are expected to 
continue. This legislation relates to items such as carbon dioxide emissions control and building codes that impose energy 
efficiency standards. Government mandates, standards or regulations intended to mitigate or reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
or projected climate change impacts could result in prohibitions or severe restrictions on land development in certain areas, 
increased energy and transportation costs, and increased compliance expenses and other financial obligations to meet 
permitting or land development or home construction-related requirements that we may be unable to fully recover (due to 
market conditions or other factors), any of which could cause a reduction in our homebuilding gross margins and materially and 
adversely affect our financial performance. Energy-related initiatives could similarly affect a wide variety of companies 
throughout the United States and the world, and because our results of operations are heavily dependent on significant amounts 
of raw materials, these initiatives could have an indirect adverse impact on our financial performance to the extent the 
manufacturers and suppliers of our materials are burdened with expensive cap and trade or other climate related regulations. 

As a result, climate change impacts, and laws and land development and home construction standards, and/or the manner 
in which they are interpreted or implemented, to address potential climate change concerns could increase our costs and have a 
long-term adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition. This is a particular concern in the western United 
States, where some of the most extensive and stringent environmental laws and residential building construction standards in 
the country have been enacted, and where our business operations are geographically concentrated. 

Information technology failures, data security breaches and other similar adverse events could harm our business. 
 
 We rely on information technology and other computer resources to perform important operational and marketing 
activities as well as to maintain our business and employee records and financial data. Our computer systems are subject to 
damage or interruption from power outages, computer attacks by hackers, viruses, catastrophes, hardware and software failures 
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and breach of data security protocols by our personnel or third-party service providers. Although we have implemented 
administrative and technical controls and taken other actions to minimize the risk of cyber incidents and otherwise protect our 
information technology, computer intrusion efforts are becoming increasingly sophisticated and even the controls that we have 
installed might be breached. Further, many of these computer resources are provided to us or are maintained on our behalf by 
third-party service providers pursuant to agreements that specify certain security and service level standards, but which are 
ultimately outside of our control.  If we were to experience a significant period of disruption in our information technology 
systems that involve interactions with customers or suppliers, it could result in the loss of sales and customers and significant 
incremental costs, which could adversely affect our business. Additionally, security breaches of our information technology 
systems could result in the misappropriation or unauthorized disclosure of proprietary, personal and confidential information, 
which could result in significant financial or reputational damage to us. 

A major health and safety incident relating to our business could be costly in terms of potential liabilities and 
reputational damage. 
 
 Building sites are inherently dangerous, and operating in the homebuilding and land development industry poses 
certain inherent health and safety risks to those working at such sites. Due to health and safety regulatory requirements and the 
number of our projects, health and safety performance is critical to the success of all areas of our business.  Any failure in 
health and safety performance may result in penalties for non-compliance with relevant regulatory requirements or litigation, 
and a failure that results in a major or significant health and safety incident is likely to be costly in terms of potential liabilities 
incurred as a result. Such a failure could generate significant negative publicity and have a corresponding impact on our 
reputation, our relationships with relevant regulatory agencies, governmental authorities and local communities, and our ability 
to win new business, which in turn could materially and adversely affect our operating results and financial condition. 

Risks Related to Our Capital Structure 

We have substantial outstanding indebtedness and may incur additional debt in the future. 
 
 We are highly leveraged.  At December 31, 2018, the total outstanding principal amount of our debt was 
approximately $1,321.3 million.  In addition, we have the ability to incur additional indebtedness under our Revolving Credit 
Facility, subject to a borrowing base formula, and under our project-level financing facilities.  As of December 31, 2018, we 
would have had up to approximately $416.3 million of additional borrowing capacity under our Revolving Credit Facility and 
our project-level financing facilities. Moreover, the terms of the indentures governing our outstanding Senior Notes and the 
Revolving Credit Facility permit us to incur additional debt, in each case, subject to certain restrictions.  Our high level of 
indebtedness could have detrimental consequences, including the following: 
 

•  our ability to obtain additional financing as needed for working capital, land acquisition costs, building costs, other 
capital expenditures, or general corporate purposes, or to refinance existing indebtedness before its scheduled 
maturity, may be limited;  
 

•  we will need to use a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to pay interest and principal on our 
indebtedness, which will reduce the funds available for other purposes;   

 
•  if we are unable to comply with the terms of the agreements governing our indebtedness, the holders of that 

indebtedness could accelerate that indebtedness and exercise other rights and remedies against us;   
 

•  if we have a higher level of indebtedness than some of our competitors, it may put us at a competitive disadvantage 
and reduce our flexibility in planning for, or responding to, changing conditions in the industry, including increased 
competition;  

 
•  the terms of any refinancing may not be as favorable as the debt being refinanced; and 
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•  some of our current debt has, and any additional debt we incur may have, a floating rate of interest.  The FOMC 

recently raised the target range for the federal funds rate.  We are unable to predict if, or when, the FOMC will 
announce further increases and the impact of any such increases on our floating rate interest rates. 

 
 We cannot be certain that cash flow from operations will be sufficient to allow us to pay principal and interest on our 
debt, support operations and meet other obligations.  If we do not have the resources to meet these and other obligations, we 
may be required to refinance all or part of our outstanding debt, sell assets or borrow more money.  We may not be able to do so 
on acceptable terms, in a timely manner, or at all. If we are unable to refinance our debt on acceptable terms, we may be forced 
to dispose of our assets on disadvantageous terms, potentially resulting in losses. Defaults under our debt agreements could 
have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, liquidity, financial condition or results of operations. 

The agreements governing our debt impose significant operating and financial restrictions, which may prevent us from 
capitalizing on business opportunities and taking some corporate actions. 
 
 The agreements governing our debt impose significant operating and financial restrictions. These restrictions limit our 
ability, among other things, to: 
 

•  incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue certain equity interests;   
 

•  pay dividends or distributions, repurchase equity or prepay subordinated debt;   
 

•  make certain investments;   
 

•  sell assets;   
 

•  incur liens;   
 

•  create certain restrictions on the ability of restricted subsidiaries to transfer assets;   
 

•  enter into transactions with affiliates;   
 

•  create unrestricted subsidiaries; and   
 

•  consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets.   
 
 As a result of these restrictions, our ability to obtain additional financing as needed for working capital, land 
acquisition costs, building costs, other capital expenditures, or general corporate purposes, or to refinance existing indebtedness 
before its scheduled maturity, may be limited. In addition, our Revolving Credit Facility contains a maximum leverage ratio 
that decreased to 62.5% effective as of December 31, 2018 through and including December 30, 2019. Our leverage ratio as of 
December 31, 2018, as calculated under the Revolving Credit Facility, was approximately 59.2%. Failure to have sufficient 
borrowing base availability in the future or be in compliance with our maximum leverage ratio under the Revolving Credit 
Facility could have a material adverse effect on our operations and financial condition. 
 
 In addition, we may in the future enter into other agreements refinancing or otherwise governing indebtedness which 
impose yet additional restrictions and covenants, including covenants limiting our ability to incur additional debt, make certain 
investments, reduce liquidity below certain levels, make distributions to our stockholders and otherwise affect our operating 
policies. These restrictions may adversely affect our ability to finance future operations or capital needs or to pursue available 
business opportunities. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default in respect of the related indebtedness. If a 
default occurs, the relevant lenders could elect to declare the indebtedness, together with accrued interest and other fees, to be 
immediately due and payable and proceed against any collateral securing that indebtedness. 
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A breach of the covenants under the indentures governing our notes or any of the other agreements governing our 
indebtedness could result in an event of default under the indentures governing our notes or other such agreements. 
 
 A default under the indentures governing our outstanding Senior Notes, Revolving Credit Facility or other agreements 
governing our indebtedness may allow our creditors to accelerate the related debt and may result in the acceleration of any 
other debt to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies.  In addition, an event of default under the credit 
agreement governing the Revolving Credit Facility would permit the lenders thereunder to terminate all commitments to extend 
further credit under the Revolving Credit Facility.  Furthermore, if we were unable to repay the amounts due and payable under 
our Revolving Credit Facility or other future secured credit facilities, those lenders could proceed against the collateral granted 
to them to secure that indebtedness. In the event our lenders or the holders of our notes accelerate the repayment of our 
borrowings, we cannot assure that we and our subsidiaries would have sufficient assets to repay such indebtedness. As a result 
of these restrictions, we may be: 
 

•  limited in how we conduct our business;   
 

•  unable to raise additional debt or equity financing to operate during general economic or business downturns; or   
 

•  unable to compete effectively or to take advantage of new business opportunities.   
 
These restrictions may affect our ability to grow in accordance with our plans. 

Potential future downgrades of our credit ratings could adversely affect our access to capital and could otherwise have a 
material adverse effect on us. 
 
 In the past, rating agencies have downgraded our corporate credit rating due to the deterioration in our homebuilding 
operations, credit metrics and other earnings-based metrics, as well as our high leverage and a significant decrease in our 
tangible net worth.  These ratings and our current credit condition affect, among other things, our ability to access new capital, 
especially debt, and negative changes in these ratings may result in more stringent covenants and higher interest rates under the 
terms of any new debt. Our credit ratings could be downgraded or rating agencies could issue adverse commentaries in the 
future, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. In 
particular, a weakening of our financial condition, including a significant increase in our leverage or decrease in our 
profitability or cash flows, could adversely affect our ability to obtain necessary funds, result in a credit rating downgrade or 
change in outlook, or otherwise increase our cost of borrowing. 

We may not have access to other capital resources to fund our liquidity needs. 
 
 There is no assurance that cash generated from our operations, proceeds raised in our capital markets transactions, or 
borrowings incurred under our credit agreements will be sufficient to finance our capital projects or otherwise fund our 
liquidity needs. If our future cash flows from operations and other capital resources are insufficient to finance our capital 
projects or otherwise fund our liquidity needs, we may be forced to: 
 

•  reduce or delay our business activities and capital expenditures;   
 

•   sell assets;   
 

•  obtain additional debt or equity capital; or   
 

•   restructure or refinance all or a portion of our debt, including the notes, on or before maturity.   
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These alternative measures may not be successful and we may not be able to accomplish any of these alternatives on a timely 
basis or on satisfactory terms, if at all. In addition, the terms of our debt, including the notes and our credit agreements, will 
limit our ability to pursue these alternatives. 

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common Stock 

Concentration of ownership of the voting power of our capital stock may prevent other stockholders from influencing 
corporate decisions and create perceived conflicts of interest. 

Our common stock consists of two classes: Class A and Class B. Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to one 
vote per share, and holders of Class B Common Stock are entitled to five votes per share, on all matters entitled to be voted on 
by our common stockholders. Based on the number of shares outstanding as of February 22, 2019, William H. Lyon, 
individually or through affiliated entities, holds approximately 51% of the voting power of the Company's common stock, 
assuming exercise in full of the warrant to purchase additional shares of Class B Common Stock, through ownership of 100% 
of the outstanding Class B Common Stock, a warrant to purchase 1,907,550 additional shares of Class B Common Stock and 
ownership of shares of Class A Common Stock. In addition, our Amended and Restated Certificates of Incorporation provides 
for certain preemptive rights to the holders of our Class B Common Stock, which would permit such holders to purchase 
additional shares of Class B Common Stock up to a certain amount in order to preserve their then-current voting power in the 
event of certain issuances of our Class A Common Stock, subject to certain exceptions. 

William H. Lyon may have interests that differ from yours and may vote in a way with which you disagree and which 
may be adverse to your interests. This ownership concentration may adversely impact the trading of our capital stock because 
of a perceived conflict of interest that may exist, thereby depressing the value of our capital stock. 

Future sales of our common stock by existing stockholders could cause the price of our Class A Common Stock to 
decline. 

Any sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales 
might occur, may cause the market price for our Class A Common Stock to decline. We had 32,690,378 shares of Class A 
Common Stock and 4,817,394 shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding as of February 22, 2019, excluding 
1,907,550 shares of Class B Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of a warrant held by the holder of our Class B Common 
Stock and shares of unvested restricted stock and Class A Common Stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options. 
All of these shares, other than the shares of Class B Common Stock beneficially owned by William H. Lyon through Lyon 
Shareholder 2012, LLC, and certain shares of Class A Common Stock held by our directors and officers and other “affiliates”, 
as defined in Rule 144 of the Securities Act, or Rule 144, are freely tradeable without restriction under the Securities Act. 
Based on current ownership trends, the Company believes that Stockholders holding up to approximately 4,817,394 shares of 
our common stock as of February 22, 2019, which includes the Class A Common Stock that may be issued upon conversion of 
the outstanding Class B Common Stock on a one-to-one basis, have exercised their registration rights to include their shares of 
common stock in registration statements related to our securities, including our Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 
333-194517) that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 20, 2014.  Shares of common 
stock sold under this shelf registration statement can be freely sold in the public market, and even if not sold pursuant to an 
effective registration statement, shares held by affiliates may be sold under Rule 144 subject to the volume and manner of sale, 
and other, requirements thereunder.  Any sale of a large number of shares of common stock by our existing stockholders could 
reduce the trading price of our common stock.  In addition, investors would incur dilution upon the exercise of stock options or 
other equity-based awards under our equity incentive plan, and upon any exercise of preemptive rights granted pursuant to our 
Certificate of Incorporation to holders of our Class B Common Stock upon the issuance of Class A Common Stock in potential 
future offerings.  We may issue equity securities in the future for a number of reasons, including to finance our operations and 
business strategy, to adjust our ratio of debt to equity, to satisfy our obligations upon exercise of outstanding options or for 
other reasons. Any such future issuances of our common stock or convertible or other equity-linked securities will dilute the 
ownership interest of the holders of our Class A Common Stock. We cannot predict the size of future issuances of our common 
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stock or other equity-related securities or the effect, if any, that they may have on the market price of our Class A Common 
Stock. 

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on our common stock. 

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and we do not plan to do so in the foreseeable 
future. Any determination to pay dividends to the holders of our common stock will be at the discretion of our board of 
directors. Further, the payment of cash dividends is restricted under the terms of the agreements governing our debt instruments 
and may be restricted under the terms of our future debt agreements. Therefore, you are not likely to receive any dividends on 
your common stock for the foreseeable future. 

The price of our Class A Common Stock is subject to volatility related or unrelated to our operations. 

The market price of the Class A Common Stock may fluctuate substantially due to a variety of factors, including: 

•  actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results; 

•  changes in market valuations of similar companies; 

•  adverse market reaction to the level of our indebtedness; 

•  market reaction to our capital markets transactions; 

•  additions or departures of key personnel; 

•  actions by stockholders; 

•  increased volatility as a result of the relative size of our public float; 

•  speculation in the press or investment community; 

•  general market, economic and political conditions, including an economic slowdown or dislocation in the global 
credit markets; 

•  our operating performance and the performance of other similar companies; 

•  changes in accounting principles; and 

•  passage of legislation or other regulatory developments that adversely affect us or the homebuilding industry. 

In addition, the stock market itself is subject to extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has had a 
significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies for reasons related and unrelated to their 
operating performance and could have the same effect on our common stock. 

Further, securities class action litigation has often been initiated against companies following periods of volatility in their 
stock price. This type of litigation could result in substantial costs and divert our management’s attention and resources, and 
could also require us to make substantial payments to satisfy judgments or to settle litigation. The threat or filing of class action 
litigation lawsuits could cause the price of our Class A Common Stock to decline. 

Any of these factors could have a material adverse effect on your investment in our Class A Common Stock and, as a 
result, you could lose some or all of your investment. 

We incur substantial costs and demands upon management as a result of complying with the laws and regulations 
affecting public companies, which could harm our operating results. 

As a public company, we are required to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses, including costs associated 
with public company reporting requirements. We also incur costs associated with current corporate governance requirements, 
including requirements under Section 404 and other provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, or the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as rules implemented by the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange. The expenses incurred by 
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public companies for reporting and corporate governance purposes have increased dramatically in recent years. We expect these 
rules and regulations to substantially increase our legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time-
consuming and costly.  Our efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards result in increased administrative 
expenses and a diversion of management’s time and attention from revenue-generating activities. In addition, if we fail to 
implement or maintain the requirements with respect to our internal accounting and audit functions, our ability to continue to 
report our operating results on a timely and accurate basis could be impaired and we could be subject to sanctions or 
investigation by regulatory authorities, such as the SEC or NYSE. Any such action could harm our reputation and the 
confidence of investors and customers in our company and could materially adversely affect our business and cause the price of 
our Class A Common Stock to decline. 

If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls, our ability to produce accurate and timely financial 
statements could be impaired, which could harm our operating results, our ability to operate our business and investors’ 
views of us. 

Ensuring that we have adequate internal financial and accounting controls and procedures in place to enable the Company 
to produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis is a costly and time-consuming effort that needs to be re-evaluated 
frequently. Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal 
controls over financial reporting, and, commencing with the year ended December 31, 2014, our auditors have begun attesting 
to and reporting on our internal controls and could, as part of that documentation and testing, identify areas for further attention 
or improvement. Implementing any appropriate changes to our internal controls may require additional personnel, specific 
compliance training of our directors, officers and employees, entail substantial costs in order to modify our existing accounting 
systems and require a significant period of time to complete. 

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. We may 
in the future discover areas of our internal controls that need improvement. We cannot be certain that we will be successful in 
implementing or maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting and financial processes. Furthermore, as we 
grow our business, our internal controls will become more complex, and we will require significantly more resources to ensure 
our internal controls remain effective. Additionally, the existence of any material weakness or significant deficiency would 
require management to devote significant time and incur significant expense to remediate any such material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and management may not be able to remediate any such material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
in a timely manner. The existence of any material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting could also result in 
errors in our financial statements that could require us to restate our financial statements, cause us to fail to meet our reporting 
obligations and cause stockholders to lose confidence in our reported financial information, all of which could materially and 
adversely affect us. 

Anti-takeover provisions in our corporate organizational documents, under Delaware law and in our debt covenants 
could make an acquisition of our company more difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our 
current management and limit the market price of our capital stock. 

Provisions in our corporate organizational documents may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control 
or changes in our management. Such provisions include, but are not limited to: 

•  authorizing the issuance of undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and shares of which 
may be issued without stockholder approval; 

•  any action to be taken by holders of our common stock must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting 
and not by written consent; 

•  special meetings of our stockholders can be called only by our board of directors, the Chairman of our board of 
directors, our Chief Executive Officer or our lead independent director; 

•  our dual-class voting structure that provides for five-to-one voting rights for holders of our Class B Common Stock; 
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•  holders of our Class B Common Stock possess certain preemptive rights allowing them to purchase additional 
shares of Class B Common Stock in the event of certain issuances of Class A Common Stock, subject to certain 
exceptions; 

•  vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be 
filled by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, but 
not by stockholders; 

•  our bylaws require advance notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations; 

•  an amendment to our bylaws requires a supermajority vote of stockholders; and 

•  after the conversion of all Class B Common Stock, our board of directors will be staggered into three separate 
classes, with classes fixed by the board, and, once staggered, the removal of directors requires a supermajority vote 
of stockholders. 

These provisions may frustrate or prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by 
making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors, which is responsible for appointing the 
members of our management. In addition, we are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation 
Law, or the DGCL, which generally prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any of a broad range of business 
combinations with any “interested” stockholder for a period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became 
an “interested” stockholder. In addition, some of our debt covenants contained in the agreements governing our debt may delay 
or prevent a change in control. 

Future offerings of debt securities, which would rank senior to our common stock upon our liquidation, and future 
offerings of equity securities, which may be senior to our common stock for purposes of liquidating and dividend 
distributions, may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. 

In the future, we may attempt to increase our capital resources by making offerings of debt securities or additional 
offerings of equity securities. Upon bankruptcy or liquidation, holders of our debt securities and shares of preferred stock, if 
any, and lenders with respect to other borrowings will receive a distribution of our available assets prior to the holders of our 
common stock. Additional equity offerings may dilute the holdings of our existing stockholders or reduce the market price of 
our common stock, or both. Our preferred stock, if issued, could have a preference on liquidating distributions or a preference 
on dividend payments or both that could limit our ability to make a dividend distribution to the holders of our common stock. 
Our decision to issue securities in any future offering will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control. 
As a result, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings, and purchasers of our common 
stock bear the risk of our future offerings reducing the market price of our common stock and diluting their ownership interest 
in our company. 

If securities or industry analysts do not publish, or cease publishing, research or reports about us, our business or our 
market, or if they change their recommendations regarding our stock adversely, our stock price and trading volume 
could decline. 

The trading market for our Class A Common Stock depends in part on the research and reports that securities or industry 
analysts publish about us or our business. If one or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our Class A Common Stock 
or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, the price of our Class A Common Stock would likely 
decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our 
Class A Common Stock could decrease, which could cause the price of our Class A Common Stock and trading volume to 
decline. 
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Non-U.S. holders may be subject to United States federal income tax on gain realized on the sale or disposition of shares 
of our Class A Common Stock. 

The Company believes that it is a “United States real property holding corporation,” or USRPHC, for United States 
federal income tax purposes. If the Company is a USRPHC, non-U.S. holders may be subject to United States federal income 
tax (including withholding tax) upon a sale or disposition of our Class A Common Stock, if (i) our Class A Common Stock is 
not regularly traded on an established securities market, or (ii) our Class A Common Stock is regularly traded on an established 
securities market, and the non-U.S. holder owned, actually or constructively, Class A Common Stock with a fair market value 
of more than 5% of the total fair market value of such common stock throughout the shorter of the five-year period ending on 
the date of the sale or other disposition or the non-U.S. holder’s holding period for such common stock. 

There is no assurance that our stock repurchase program will result in further repurchases of our common stock or 
enhance long term stockholder value, and repurchases, if any, could affect our stock price and increase its volatility and 
will diminish our cash reserves. 

As announced on February 22, 2017, our board of directors approved a $50 million stock repurchase program.  
Repurchases pursuant to a stock repurchase program could affect our stock price and increase its volatility and will reduce the 
market liquidity for our stock.  The existence of a stock repurchase program could also cause our stock price to be higher than it 
would be in the absence of such a program.  Additionally, these repurchases will diminish our cash reserves, which could 
impact our ability to pursue possible future strategic opportunities and acquisitions and would result in lower overall returns on 
our cash balances.  The Company has conducted certain repurchases under the stock repurchase program, and additional 
capacity remains for future repurchases. There can be no assurance that any further stock repurchases will, in fact, occur, or, if 
they occur, that they will enhance stockholder value.  Although stock repurchase programs is intended to enhance long term 
stockholder value, short-term stock price fluctuations could reduce the effectiveness of these repurchases. 

Other Risks 

The Company may not be able to benefit from its tax attributes. 

In connection with our emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings, we were able to retain the tax basis in our 
assets as well as a portion of our U.S. net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, or the Tax Attributes. Sections 382 and 
383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, provide an annual limitation with respect to the ability of 
a corporation to utilize its Tax Attributes against future U.S. taxable income in the event of a change in ownership. 
Implementation of the Plan upon our emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings triggered a change in ownership for 
purposes of Section 382 and our annual Section 382 limitation is $3.6 million. As a result, our future U.S. taxable income may 
not be fully offset by the Tax Attributes if such income exceeds our annual limitation, and we may incur a tax liability with 
respect to such income. In addition, subsequent changes in ownership for purposes of the Code could further diminish our 
ability to utilize Tax Attributes. 

Geopolitical risks and market disruption could adversely affect our business, liquidity, financial condition and results of 
operations. 
 
 Geopolitical events, acts of war or terrorism or any outbreak or escalation of hostilities throughout the world or health 
pandemics, may have a substantial impact on the economy, consumer confidence, the housing market, our employees and our 
customers. Historically, perceived threats to national security and other actual or potential conflicts or wars and related 
geopolitical risks have also created significant economic and political uncertainties. If any such events were to occur, or there 
was a perception that they were about to occur, they could have a material adverse impact on our business, liquidity, financial 
condition and results of operations. 
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

None. 

 
Item 2. Properties 

Headquarters 

The Company leases its corporate headquarters, which are located at 4695 MacArthur Court, 8th floor, Newport Beach, 
California. The Company leases properties for its segment offices located in the markets where the Company conducts its 
business.  The Company believes that such properties, including the equipment located therein, are suitable and adequate to 
meet the needs of its business. For information about properties owned by the Company for use in its homebuilding activities, 
see Item 1 of Part I of this Annual Report, “Business.” 

 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings, most of which relate to routine litigation and some of which are 
covered by insurance. These matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcomes of these matters are not within our 
control and may not be known for prolonged periods of time.  Nevertheless, in the opinion of the Company’s management, 
none of the uninsured claims involves claims which are material and unreserved or will have a material adverse effect on the 
financial condition of the Company. 

 
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure 

Not Applicable. 
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PART II 
 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 

Securities 

 Shares of the Company's Class A Common Stock have been listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol 
"WLH" since May 16, 2013, the day after our initial public offering.  The following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters 
indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of the Company's Class A Common Stock, as reported on the NYSE. 

  2018  2017 
Calendar Quarter Ended  High  Low  High  Low  
March 31  $ 32.43  $ 23.65   $ 21.20  $ 16.37   
June 30  29.36  22.62   24.51  19.76   
September 30  24.86  15.89   25.18  18.85   
December 31  15.54  10.32   30.79  22.77   

As of February 22, 2019, the Company had approximately 56 stockholders of record, 55 of which were holders of the 
Company's Class A Common Stock, including shares of unvested restricted stock awards, and one of which was a holder of the 
Company's Class B Common Stock. The number of stockholders of record is based upon the actual number of stockholders 
registered at such date and does not include holders of shares in "street name" or persons, partnerships, associates, corporations 
or other entities identified in security position listings maintained by depositories. 

 

Stock Performance Graph 

The following graph compares the five-year cumulative total return of the Company's Class A Common Stock, the S&P 
500 Index and the S&P Composite 1500 Homebuilding Index for the periods ended December 31. 

The performance graph and related information shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any filing under the 
Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing. 
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 12/31/2013  12/31/2014  12/31/2015  12/31/2016  12/31/2017  12/31/2018 
William Lyon Homes $ 100   $ 91.55  $ 74.53  $ 85.95   $ 131.35  $ 48.28 
S&P 500 Index 100  113.69  115.26  129.05  157.22  150.33 

S&P Composite 1500 Homebuilding 
Index 100

 
 104.27

 
 111.06

 
 106.51

 
 187.28

 
 126.08

 

 The above graph is based on the Company's Class A common stock and index prices calculated as of the dates 
indicated. The closing price of the Company's Class A common stock on the New York Stock Exchange was $10.69 per share 
on December 31, 2018 and $29.08 per share on December 31, 2017. Total return assumes $100 invested at market close on 
May 16, 2013 in the Company's Class A common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P Composite 1500 Homebuilding Index, 
and the re-investment of all dividends. The performance of our common stock as presented above reflects past performance 
only and is not indicative of future performance. 

 

Dividends 

Our Class A Common Stock began trading on May 16, 2013, following our initial public offering. Since that time, the 
Company has not declared any cash dividends.  The Company does not intend to declare cash dividends in the near future.  
Future cash dividends, if any, will depend upon the financial condition, results of operations, and capital requirements of the 
Company, as well as compliance with Delaware law, certain restrictive debt covenants, as well as other factors considered 
relevant by the Company's board of directors. 
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities 

Other than the sales of unregistered securities that we reported in Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on 
Form 8-K during fiscal year 2018, we did not make any sales of unregistered securities during 2018. 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

The table below summarizes the number of shares of our Class A Common Stock that were repurchased during the three 
month period ended December 31, 2018. 

Month Ended  

Total Number of 
Shares 

Purchased (1)  

Average 
Price 

Paid Per 
Share  

Total Number of 
Shares Purchased 
under the Stock 

Repurchase 
Program (1)  

Approximate Dollar Value of Shares 
that may yet be Repurchased under the 

Stock Repurchase Program 
October 31, 2018  284,708  $ 14.51  284,708  $ 31,537,306 

November 30, 2018  —  N/A  —  31,537,306 

December 31, 2018  —  N/A  —  31,537,306 

Total  284,708    284,708   

(1) As announced on February 22, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved a stock repurchase 
program, authorizing the repurchase of up to an aggregate of $50 million of the Company's Class A common stock. 
The program allows the Company to repurchase shares of Class A common stock from time to time for cash in the 
open market or privately negotiated transactions or other transactions, as market and business conditions warrant and 
subject to applicable legal requirements.  The stock repurchase program does not obligate the Company to repurchase 
any particular amount of common stock, and it could be modified, suspended or discontinued at any time. 
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Item 6. Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data 

The following table sets forth certain of the Company’s historical financial data. The selected historical consolidated 
financial data as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 
has been derived from the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere 
herein. The selected historical consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2016, and as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2015, and 2014 have been derived from the Company’s audited financial statements for such years, which are 
not included herein. 

You should read this summary in conjunction with the discussion under the heading “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and the historical consolidated financial statements and 
accompanying notes included elsewhere herein. 
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 Year Ended December 31, 

 2018  2017  2016  2015  2014 

(in thousands except number of 
shares, per share data and number 
of homes)          
Statement of Operations 
Data:          

Revenues          
Home sales $ 2,081,721   $ 1,795,074  $ 1,402,203  $ 1,078,928   $ 857,025 

Construction 
services 5,450 

 
 1,454

 
 3,837

 
 25,124 

 
 37,728

 

Total 
revenues 2,087,171 

 
 1,796,528

 
 1,406,040

 
 1,104,052 

 
 894,753

 

Operating income 138,905   137,956  93,968  80,247   75,473 
Income before 
extinguishment of 
debt and 
provision for 
income taxes 144,738 

 

 142,512

 

 102,817

 

 87,067 

 

 78,323

 

Provision for 
income taxes (30,620 )  (62,933)  (34,850)  (26,806 )  (23,797) 

Net income 115,133   57,751  67,967  60,261   54,526 

Net income available to 
common stockholders 91,596 

 
 48,135

 
 59,696

 
 57,336 

 
 44,625

 

Income per common 
share:          

Basic $ 2.42   $ 1.30  $ 1.62  $ 1.57   $ 1.41 

       Diluted $ 2.32   $ 1.24  $ 1.55  $ 1.48   $ 1.34 

Weighted average 
common shares 
outstanding:          

Basic 37,832,073   37,040,137  36,764,799  36,546,227   31,753,110 

Diluted 39,419,059   38,663,667  38,474,900  38,767,556   33,263,343 

Operating Data (including 
consolidated joint 
ventures) (unaudited):          

Number of net new 
home orders 4,133 

 
 3,328

 
 2,775

 
 2,575 

 
 1,677

 

Number of homes 
closed 4,186 

 
 3,239

 
 2,781

 
 2,314 

 
 1,753

 

Average sales price of 
homes closed $ 497 

 
 $ 554

 
 $ 504

 
 $ 466 

 
 $ 489

 

Cancellation rates 16 % 15% 16% 20 % 18%
Backlog at end of 
period, number of 
homes 1,041 

 

 822

 

 733

 

 739 

 

 478

 

Backlog at end of 
period, aggregate sales 
value $ 478,952 

 

 $ 433,012

 

 $ 410,675

 

 $ 391,770 

 

 $ 260,127
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 December 31, 

 2018  2017  2016  2015  2014 
(in thousands)          
Balance Sheet Data:          
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,779   $ 182,710  $ 42,612  $ 50,203   $ 52,771 

Real estate inventories—Owned 2,333,207   1,699,850  1,771,998  1,675,106   1,404,639 

Real estate inventories—Not owned 315,576   —  —  —   — 

Total assets 2,929,774   2,061,104  2,011,280  1,923,450   1,659,724 

Total debt 1,321,345   1,030,184  1,080,650  1,105,776   925,398 

Total William Lyon Homes 
stockholders’ equity 863,322 

 
 780,472

 
 697,086

 
 632,095 

 
 569,915

 

Noncontrolling interests 151,005   80,158  66,343  39,374   27,231 
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

The following discussion of results of operations and financial condition should be read in conjunction with Item 6 of 
Part II of this Annual Report, “Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data,” Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report, 
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. This discussion contains forward-looking statements reflecting current expectations that involve risks and 
uncertainties. See the section titled, "Cautionary Note Concerning Forward-Looking Statements" included elsewhere in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these 
forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and 
elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.  As used herein, “on a consolidated basis” means the total of operations in 
wholly-owned projects and in consolidated joint venture projects. 

Overview 

 The Company is one of the largest Western U.S. regional homebuilders. Headquartered in Newport Beach, California, 
the Company is primarily engaged in the design, construction, marketing and sale of single-family detached and attached 
homes in California, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, Washington Oregon, and Texas. The Company's core markets currently 
include Orange County, Los Angeles, the Inland Empire, the San Francisco Bay Area, Phoenix, Las Vegas, Denver, Portland, 
Seattle, Austin and San Antonio. The Company has a distinguished legacy of more than 62 years of homebuilding operations, 
over which time we have sold in excess of 106,000 homes.  The Company believes that its markets are characterized by 
attractive long-term housing fundamentals. The Company believes that it holds leading market share positions in most of its 
markets and has a significant land supply. 

 Although the Company experienced a robust start to the year, the latter half was followed by an industry-wide 
softening in demand and reduction in sales pace. While the long-term fundamentals remain positive in the broader economy as 
well as our local markets, the cost of home ownership has increased with the significant price appreciation in several of our 
markets over the last few years, combined with the recent rise in mortgage interest rates. In combination, these conditions have 
caused some recent moderation of demand for new homes; however, the supportive economic conditions including high 
consumer confidence and robust employment, in conjunction with a relatively limited supply of new homes in all of our 
markets, suggests a favorable environment for strong demand in the long-term. 

On March 9, 2018, the Company completed its acquisition of the residential homebuilding operations of RSI 
Communities and its affiliates, such operations being referred herein as "RSI Communities", which marked the beginning of 
the Texas operating segment, in addition to expanding the Company's footprint in the California operating segment. Financial 
data herein as of December 31, 2018, and for the year ended December 31, 2018 include operations for these operating 
segments for the period from March 9, 2018 (date of acquisition) through December 31, 2018, respectively. 

 The Company experienced a record homebuilding revenue year in 2018, with homebuilding revenue of $2.1 billion,  
demonstrating strong growth over 2017, against a backdrop of tight labor markets and geo-political change.  In 2018, the 
Company opened 31 new home communities in the legacy operating segments, while adding 30 communities in conjunction 
with the acquisition of RSI Communities.  As of December 31, 2018, our average community count for the period then ended 
was 106 locations, which is a 26% increase from the previous period. 
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Results of Operations 

In the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company delivered 4,186 homes, with an average selling price of 
approximately $497,300, and recognized home sales revenues and total revenues of $2.1 billion. The Company generated net 
income available to common shareholders of $91.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, and income per share of 
$2.42. The Company's net income was reduced by the transaction expenses of $3.9 million entirely related to one-time, non-
recurring costs incurred in the acquisition of RSI Communities on March 9, 2018. 

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a consolidated backlog of 1,041 sold but unclosed homes, with an associated 
sales value of $479.0 million, representing a 27% increase in units, and an 11% increase in dollars, as compared to the backlog 
at December 31, 2017.  The Company believes that the attractive fundamentals in its markets, its leading market share 
positions, its long-standing relationships with land developers, its significant land supply and its focus on providing the best 
possible customer experience, positions the Company to capitalize on meaningful growth. 

Homebuilding gross margin percentage and adjusted homebuilding gross margin percentage was 18.2% and 23.1%, 
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2018, as compared to 17.6% and 22.3%, respectively, for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. 

 

Comparisons of the Year Ended December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2017 
 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2018  2017  Amount  % 

Number of Net New Home Orders        
California 1,109  935  174  19 %
Arizona 436  496  (60)  (12)%
Nevada 372  305  67  22 %
Colorado 493  337  156  46 %
Washington 445  555  (110)  (20)%
Oregon 641  700  (59)  (8)%
Texas 637  N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total 4,133  3,328  805  24 %

The 24% increase in the number of net new home orders was driven by a 26% increase in the average number of sales 
locations to 106 average locations in 2018, compared to 84 average locations in the 2017 period, which is driven by the 30 
communities added in conjunction with the acquisition of RSI Communities and opening of 32 new communities in the legacy 
operating segments, less any projects that closed out. The decrease in net new home orders in Washington of 20% is due to the 
decrease in the segment's monthly absorption rate to 3.7 in the 2018 period from 4.6 in the 2017 period. 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2018  2017  Amount 

Cancellation Rates      
California 17% 18% (1)%
Arizona 11% 9% 2 %
Nevada 21% 18% 3 %
Colorado 13% 15% (2)%
Washington 10% 14% (4)%
Oregon 15% 16% (1)%
Texas 19% N/A  N/M 

Overall 16% 15% 1 %
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Cancellation rates during the 2018 period slightly increased to 16% from 15% during the 2017 period. The first half of 
the 2018 period experienced a decline in cancellation rates year-over-year, while the latter half of the year transitioned into 
more leveled, then eventual increase in rates across periods. Cancellation rates typically are driven by personal factors affecting 
buyers and may not be indicative of any overarching trends affecting regions. 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

2018 2017 Amount % 

Average Number of Sales Locations        
California 30  23  7   30 %
Arizona 6  7  (1 )  (14)%
Nevada 13  13  —   — %
Colorado 14  15  (1 )  (7)%
Washington 10  10  —   — %
Oregon 15  16  (1 )  (6)%
Texas 18  N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total 106  84  22   26 %
 

The average number of sales locations for the Company increased to 106 locations for the year ended December 31, 2018 
compared to 84 for the year ended December 31, 2017.  As of December 31, 2018, the Company was selling out of 120 
locations, up from 77 at December 31, 2017, driven by the 30 communities added in conjunction with the acquisition of RSI 
Communities.  During the 2018 period, on a consolidated basis, the Company opened 32 communities, while closing out 32 in 
the legacy operating segments. 
 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2018  2017  Amount 

Monthly Absorption Rates      
California 3.1  3.4  (0.3) 
Arizona 6.1  5.9  0.2 

Nevada 2.4  2.0  0.4 

Colorado 2.9  1.9  1.0 
Washington 3.7  4.6  (0.9) 
Oregon 3.6  3.6  — 

Texas 2.9  N/A  N/M 
Overall 3.2  3.3  (0.1) 

The Company's consolidated monthly absorption rate, representing number of net new home orders divided by average 
sales locations for the period, slightly decreased to 3.2 sales per project for the 2018 period from 3.3 for the 2017 period. This 
is primarily driven by slower absorption rates in California and Washington, both segments that have experienced significant 
price appreciation over the last two years. 
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  December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 
2018 2017 Amount % 

Backlog (units)         
California  252  240  12  5 %
Arizona  158  161  (3)  (2)%
Nevada  94  86  8  9 %
Colorado  134  172  (38)  (22)%
Washington  41  91  (50)  (55)%
Oregon  128  72  56  78 %
Texas  234  N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total  1,041  822  219  27 % 

The Company’s backlog at December 31, 2018 increased 27% to 1,041 units from 822 units at December 31, 2017. The 
increase in backlog is primarily driven by the 24% increase in new home orders over prior period. 
 

  December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

  2018  2017  Amount  % 

  (dollars in thousands)   
Backlog (dollars)         

California  $ 175,205   $ 167,938  $ 7,267   4 %
Arizona  53,581   49,656  3,925   8 %
Nevada  52,604   62,105  (9,501 )  (15)%
Colorado  62,091   65,716  (3,625 )  (6)%
Washington  23,060   55,583  (32,523 )  (59)%
Oregon  51,181   32,014  19,167   60 %
Texas  61,230   N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total  $ 478,952   $ 433,012  $ 45,940   11 %

The dollar amount of backlog of homes sold but not closed as of December 31, 2018 was $479.0 million, up 11% from 
$433.0 million as of December 31, 2017.  The increase is primarily the result of the increase in net orders described above, 
partially offset by the 13% decrease in the average sales price of homes in backlog when compared with the prior period.  The 
increase in the dollar amount of backlog of homes sold but not closed as described above generally results in an increase in 
operating revenues in the subsequent period as compared to the previous period. 

In California, the dollar amount of backlog increased 4% to $175.2 million as of December 31, 2018 from $167.9 million 
as of December 31, 2017, which is attributable to the 5% increase in the number of homes in backlog resulting from our 
expansion in the Inland Empire through the RSI acquisition. The increase was slightly offset by the decrease in average selling 
price of homes in backlog to $695,300 as of December 31, 2018 compared to $699,700 as of December 31, 2017, which is 
related to product mix. 

In Arizona, the dollar amount of backlog increased 8% to $53.6 million as of December 31, 2018 from $49.7 million as 
of December 31, 2017, which is attributable to a 10% increase in the average selling price of homes in backlog as of 
December 31, 2018 to $339,100 from $308,400 at December 31, 2017. The increase was partially offset by a 2% decrease in 
the number of units in backlog at December 31, 2018, to 158 from 161 as of December 31, 2017. 

In Nevada, the dollar amount of backlog decreased 15% to $52.6 million as of December 31, 2018 from $62.1 million as 
of December 31, 2017, which is attributable to a decrease in the average selling price of homes in backlog to $559,600 as of 
December 31, 2018, down 23% from $722,200 as of December 31, 2017. The decrease is partially offset by a 9% increase in 
the number of units in backlog as December 31, 2018, to 94 from 86 as of December 31, 2017. 

In Colorado, the dollar amount of backlog decreased 6% to $62.1 million as of December 31, 2018, from $65.7 million as 
of December 31, 2017, which is attributable to a 22% decrease in the number of units in backlog at December 31, 2018, to 134 
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from 172 at December 31, 2017. The decrease was mostly offset by an increase in average selling price of homes in backlog of 
21% to $463,400 as of December 31, 2018 from $382,100 as of December 31, 2017. 

In Washington, the dollar amount of backlog decreased 59% to $23.1 million as of December 31, 2018, from $55.6 
million as of December 31, 2017.  The decrease is attributable to a 55% decrease in the number of units in backlog as of 
December 31, 2018, to 41 from 91 at December 31, 2017, in addition to an 8% decrease in the average selling price of homes 
in backlog as of December 31, 2018 to $562,400 from $610,800 at December 31, 2017. 

In Oregon, the dollar amount of backlog increased 60% to $51.2 million as of December 31, 2018, from $32.0 million as 
of December 31, 2017.  The increase is attributable to a 78% increase in the number of units in backlog at December 31, 2018, 
to 128 from 72 at December 31, 2017, which was partially offset by a 10% decrease in the average selling price of homes in 
backlog as of December 31, 2018 to $399,900 from $444,600 at December 31, 2017. 

In Texas, which is a new operating segment resulting from the acquisition of RSI Communities, the dollar amount of 
backlog was $61.2 million, with units in backlog of 234, for which there are no comparable amounts as of December 31, 
2017.   

 December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2018  2017  Amount  % 

Number of Homes Closed        
California 1,172  919  253  28 %
Arizona 439  539  (100)  (19)%
Nevada 364  278  86  31 %
Colorado 531  240  291  121 %
Washington 495  516  (21)  (4)%
Oregon 585  747  (162)  (22)%
Texas 600  N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total 4,186  3,239  947  29 %

 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the number of homes closed increased 29% to 4,186 in the 2018 period from 

3,239 in the 2017 period, the highest since 2007. The increase is attributable to an increase in net new orders by 24% in the 
2018 period, partly due to the new home deliveries resulting from the acquisition of RSI Communities, in addition to an 
increase of 26% in the average number of sales locations to 106 locations during the 2018 period compared to 84 locations 
during the 2017 period. 

 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2018  2017  Amount  % 

 (dollars in thousands) 

Home Sales Revenue        
California $ 786,801  $ 682,806  $ 103,995  15 %
Arizona 136,910  158,534  (21,624)  (14)%
Nevada 214,237  176,355  37,882  21 %
Colorado 226,524  124,456  102,068  82 %
Washington 311,111  332,302  (21,191)  (6)%
Oregon 247,878  320,621  (72,743)  (23)%
Texas 158,260  N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total $ 2,081,721  $ 1,795,074  $ 286,647  16 %

The increase in homebuilding revenue of 16% to $2,081.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $1,795.1 
million for the year ended December 31, 2017 is primarily attributable to a 29% increase in the number of homes closed to 
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4,186 during the 2018 period from 3,239 in the 2017 period, partly offset by a 10% decrease in the average sales price of homes 
closed to $497,300 during the 2018 period from $554,200 during the 2017 period. 
 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2018  2017  Amount  % 

Average Sales Price of Homes Closed        
California $ 671,300  $ 743,000  $ (71,700)  (10)%
Arizona 311,900  294,100  17,800  6 %
Nevada 588,600  634,400  (45,800)  (7)%
Colorado 426,600  518,600  (92,000)  (18)%
Washington 628,500  644,000  (15,500)  (2)%
Oregon 423,700  429,200  (5,500)  (1)%
Texas 263,800  N/A  N/M  N/M 

Total average $ 497,300  $ 554,200  $ (56,900)  (10)% 
 

The average sales price of homes closed for the 2018 period decreased 10% compared to the 2017 period primarily due to 
product and geographical mix, and was impacted by the lower price point from the new Texas operating segment. On a same 
store basis (projects that were open in both periods presented), the average sales price increased 6% for the 2018 period 
compared to the 2017 period. 
 
Gross Margin 

Homebuilding gross margins increased to 18.2% for the year ended December 31, 2018 from 17.6% in the 2017 period, 
primarily driven by product and geographic mix for home deliveries, as well as new projects with closings above the previous 
Company averages. In addition, the increase is partially due to the Company's adoption of ASC 606, which resulted in the 
reclass of the amortization of capitalized costs associated with model homes and sales offices to Sales and marketing expense, 
previously recorded in Cost of sales - homes, as described in more detail in the notes to the financial statements. 

For the comparison of the year ended December 31, 2018 and the year ended December 31, 2017, adjusted homebuilding 
gross margin percentage, which excludes previously capitalized interest included in cost of sales as well as the effect of 
adjustments recorded in relation to purchase accounting, was 23.1% for the 2018 period compared to 22.3% for the 2017 
period. The increase was primarily a result of the increase in homebuilding gross margins described above, coupled with the 
increase in the impact of interest in cost of sales. 

Adjusted homebuilding gross margin is a non-GAAP financial measure. The Company believes this information is 
meaningful as it isolates the impact that interest and purchase accounting have on homebuilding gross margin and permits 
investors to make better comparisons with the Company's competitors, who also break out and adjust gross margins in a similar 
fashion. For comparative purposes, purchase accounting is the net adjustment in basis related to the RSI Acquisition, 
specifically recorded to the California and Texas operating segments. In the comparative presentation below, purchase 
accounting amounts related to previous acquisitions have been excluded from both periods. See table set forth below 
reconciling this non-GAAP measure to homebuilding gross margin. 
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 Year Ended December 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (dollars in thousands) 

Home sales revenue $ 2,081,721  $ 1,795,074 

Cost of home sales 1,703,298  1,478,549 

Homebuilding gross margin 378,423  316,525 
Homebuilding gross margin percentage 18.2% 17.6%

Add: Interest in cost of sales 89,756  83,455 

Add: Purchase accounting adjustments 13,391  — 

Adjusted homebuilding gross margin $ 481,570  $ 399,980 

Adjusted homebuilding gross margin percentage 23.1% 22.3%

    Construction Services Revenue 

Construction services revenue was $5.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to $1.5 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2017.  The increase is due to a new project started in Washington towards the end of 2017 and 
continued for the full year ended December 31, 2018. 

 

    Sales and Marketing & General and Administrative Expense 

 Year Ended December 31,  
As a Percentage of Home Sales 

Revenue 

 2018  2017  2018  2017 

 (dollars in thousands)     
Sales and Marketing $ 114,495   $ 86,226  5.5%  4.8%
General and Administrative 119,272   90,206  5.7%  5.0%

Total Sales and Marketing & 
General and Administrative $ 233,767 

 
 $ 176,432

 
 11.2% 9.8%

Sales and marketing expense as a percentage of home sales revenue increased to 5.5% in the 2018 period compared to 
4.8% in the 2017 period, which is driven by an increase in advertising and outside broker commissions, as well as the adoption 
of ASC 606 resulting in the reclass of the amortization of certain capitalized costs associated with model homes and sales 
offices to Sales and marketing expense, previously recorded in Cost of sales - homes, as described in more detail in the notes to 
the financial statements. General and administrative expense as a percentage of home sales revenues increased to 5.7% in the 
2018 period compared to 5.0% in the 2017 period as a result of continued investment in our growing operating business, 
incremental information technology investment and further investment in building out our financial services group. 

Equity in Income of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 

 Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures decreased to $3.1 million during the 2018 period from $3.7 million 
during the 2017 period. 

Other Items 

Combined, other operating costs decreased to $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to $2.3 
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Interest activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows (in thousands): 
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 Year Ended December 31, 

 2018  2017 

Interest incurred $ 92,077  $ 73,729 
Less: Interest capitalized (92,077)  (73,729) 
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized $ —  $ — 

Cash paid for interest $ 82,129  $ 62,679 

The increase in interest incurred for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to the year ended December 31, 
2017 was due to the Company's increase in borrowings in the 2018 period. In addition, the increase in cash paid for interest for 
the 2018 period compared to the 2017 period was due to timing of payments on interest for the Company's Senior Notes. The 
Company capitalized all of the interest it incurred during both periods presented due to its qualifying assets exceeding its 
outstanding debt. 

During the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had seven land parcel sales that 
resulted in a $1.9 million gain and four land parcel sale that resulted in a $0.8 million gain, respectively. 

Provision for Income Taxes 

During the year ended December 31, 2018 the Company recorded a provision for income taxes of $30.6 million, 
reflecting an effective tax rate of 21.0%.  During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded a provision for 
income taxes of $62.9 million for an effective tax rate of 52.1%.  The decrease in the current year tax rate is primarily due to 
the overall favorable impact of the Tax Cuts and Job Act ("Tax Act"). 

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest 

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest increased to $23.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2018, 
compared to $9.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 due to the increase in active projects the Company participates 
in through the joint ventures. 

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders 

As a result of the preceding factors, net income available to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017 was $91.6 million and $48.1 million, respectively. 
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Lots Owned and Controlled 

The table below summarizes the Company’s lots owned and controlled as of the periods presented: 
 

  December 31,   
  2018  2017  Amount  % 

Lots Owned         
California  3,450  1,551  1,899  122 %
Arizona  3,653  4,221  (568)  (13 )%
Nevada  2,626  2,981  (355)  (12 )%
Colorado  857  1,276  (419)  (33 )%
Washington  1,414  1,334  80  6 %
Oregon  2,668  1,893  775  41 %
Texas  2,981  —  2,981  N/M 

Total  17,649  13,256  4,393  33 %
Lots Controlled (1)         

California  1,333  1,051  282  27 %
Arizona  660  —  660  N/M 
Nevada  —  17  (17)  (100 )%
Colorado  2,352  769  1,583  206 %
Washington  839  849  (10)  (1 )%
Oregon  1,674  1,494  180  12 %
Texas  5,034  —  5,034  N/M 

Total  11,892  4,180  7,712  184 %
Total Lots Owned and Controlled  29,541  17,436  12,105  69 %

 
(1) Lots controlled may be purchased by the Company as consolidated projects or may be purchased by newly formed joint 

ventures. 

Total lots owned and controlled has increased 69% to 29,541 lots owned and controlled at December 31, 2018 from 
17,436 lots at December 31, 2017, primarily due to the acquisition of RSI Communities. Certain lots included in lots owned in 
California and Texas are associated with a land banking transaction that is consolidated on the Company’s accompanying 
balance sheet in accordance with ASC 470, as further discussed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

Comparisons of the Year Ended December 31, 2017 to December 31, 2016 
 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount  % 

Number of Net New Home Orders        
California 935  752  183  24 %
Arizona 496  468  28  6 %
Nevada 305  275  30  11 %
Colorado 337  248  89  36 %
Washington 555  297  258  87 %
Oregon 700  735  (35)  (5)%

Total 3,328  2,775  553  20 % 

The 20% increase in the number of net new home orders was driven by a 14% increase in the average number of sales 
locations to 84 average locations in 2017, compared to 74 average locations in the 2016 period. In addition, the monthly 
absorption rate during the 2017 period increased to 3.3 compared to 3.1 in the prior year. 



 

52 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount 

Cancellation Rates      
California 18% 18% — %
Arizona 9% 12% (3)%
Nevada 18% 18% — %
Colorado 15% 13% 2 %
Washington 14% 16% (2)%
Oregon 16% 17% (1)%

Overall 15% 16% (1)%

Cancellation rates during the 2017 period decreased to 15% from 16% during the 2016 period. Cancellation rates 
typically are driven by personal factors affecting buyers and may not be indicative of any overarching trends affecting regions. 
The 2% increase in cancellation rates in Colorado was partially due to a manufactured product issue relating to fire rated I-
joists, which was announced by the manufacturer at the beginning of the 2017 third quarter and impacted certain homes in 
backlog and/or under construction in our Colorado segment, and for which we have implemented a remediation program. In 
addition, the cancellation rate in Arizona has decreased from the prior period, in part, due to the Company having more spec 
homes available to sell and close within a given period. 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount  % 

Average Number of Sales Locations        
California 23   20  3  15 %
Arizona 7   8  (1)  (13)%
Nevada 13   12  1  8 %
Colorado 15   10  5  50 %
Washington 10   6  4  67 %
Oregon 16   18  (2)  (11)%

Total 84   74  10  14 %
 

The average number of sales locations for the Company increased to 84 locations for the year ended December 31, 2017 
compared to 74 for the year ended December 31, 2016.  As of December 31, 2017, the Company was selling out of 77 
locations, down from 81 at December 31, 2016.  During the 2017 period, on a consolidated basis, the Company opened 35 new 
sales locations and closed 39. 
 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount 

Monthly Absorption Rates      
California 3.4  3.1  0.3 

Arizona 5.9  4.9  1.0 

Nevada 2.0  1.9  0.1 

Colorado 1.9  2.1  (0.2) 
Washington 4.6  4.1  0.5 
Oregon 3.6  3.4  0.2 

Overall 3.3  3.1  0.2 
 

The Company's consolidated monthly absorption rate, representing number of net new home orders divided by average 
sales locations for the period, increased to 3.3 sales per project for the 2017 period from 3.1 for the 2016 period. With all of our 
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markets, except Colorado, there was strong improvement over prior year. As mentioned previously, the Colorado I-joists issue 
increased our cancellation rates, therefore reducing net sales. The increase in absorption rates in Arizona was due to strong 
demand from the needs based entry level buyer compared to the prior period. 

  December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

  2017  2016  Amount  % 

Backlog (units)         
California  240  224  16  7 %
Arizona  161  204  (43)  (21)%
Nevada  86  59  27  46 %
Colorado  172  75  97  129 %
Washington  91  52  39  75 %
Oregon  72  119  (47)  (39)%

Total  822  733  89  12 %

The Company’s backlog at December 31, 2017 increased 12% to 822 units from 733 units at December 31, 2016. The 
increase in backlog is primarily driven by the 20% increase in new home orders over prior period, in addition to an increase in 
fourth quarter backlog conversion rate, from 84% during the fourth quarter of 2016 to 88% for the fourth quarter of 2017. 
 

  December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

  2017  2016  Amount  % 

  (dollars in thousands)   
Backlog (dollars)         

California  $ 167,938   $ 182,300  $ (14,362 )  (8)%
Arizona  49,656   59,563  (9,907 )  (17)%
Nevada  62,105   45,034  17,071   38 %
Colorado  65,716   39,569  26,147   66 %
Washington  55,583   34,789  20,794   60 %
Oregon  32,014   49,420  (17,406 )  (35)%

Total  $ 433,012   $ 410,675  $ 22,337   5 %

The dollar amount of backlog of homes sold but not closed as of December 31, 2017 was $433.0 million, up 5% from 
$410.7 million as of December 31, 2016.  The increase is primarily the result of the increase in net orders described above, 
partially offset by the decrease in average selling price in some reporting segments.  The increase in the dollar amount of 
backlog of homes sold but not closed as described above generally results in an increase in operating revenues in the 
subsequent period as compared to the previous period. 

In California, the dollar amount of backlog decreased 8% to $167.9 million as of December 31, 2017 from $182.3 million 
as of December 31, 2016, which is attributable to the decrease in average selling price of homes in backlog to $699,700 as of 
December 31, 2017 compared to $813,800 as of December 31, 2016, which is related to product mix. The decrease was 
partially offset by a 7% increase in the number of homes in backlog in California to 240 homes as of December 31, 2017 
compared to 224 homes as of December 31, 2016. 

In Arizona, the dollar amount of backlog decreased 17% to $49.7 million as of December 31, 2017 from $59.6 million as 
of December 31, 2016, which is attributable to a 21% decrease in the number of units in backlog at December 31, 2017, to 161 
from 204 as of December 31, 2016. The decrease was partially offset by a 6% increase in the average selling price of homes in 
backlog as of December 31, 2017 to $308,400 from $292,000 at December 31, 2016. 

In Nevada, the dollar amount of backlog increased 38% to $62.1 million as of December 31, 2017 from $45.0 million as 
of December 31, 2016, which is attributable to a 46% increase in the number of units in backlog as December 31, 2017, to 86 
from 59 as of December 31, 2016.  The increase is partially offset by a decrease in the average selling price of homes in 
backlog to $722,200 as of December 31, 2017, down 5% from $763,300 as of December 31, 2016. 
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In Colorado, the dollar amount of backlog increased 66% to $65.7 million as of December 31, 2017, from $39.6 million 
as of December 31, 2016.  The increase is attributable to a 129% increase in the number of units in backlog at December 31, 
2017, to 172 from 75 at December 31, 2016, partially offset by a decrease in average selling price of homes in backlog of 28% 
to $382,100 as of December 31, 2017 from $527,600 as of December 31, 2016. 

In Washington, the dollar amount of backlog increased 60% to $55.6 million as of December 31, 2017, from $34.8 
million as of December 31, 2016.  The increase is attributable to a 75% increase in the number of units in backlog as of 
December 31, 2017, to 91 from 52 at December 31, 2016, partially offset by a 9% decrease in the average selling price of 
homes in backlog as of December 31, 2017 to $610,800 from $669,000 at December 31, 2016. 

In Oregon, the dollar amount of backlog decreased 35% to $32.0 million as of December 31, 2017, from $49.4 million as 
of December 31, 2016.  The decrease is attributable to a 39% decrease in the number of units in backlog at December 31, 2017, 
to 72 from 119 at December 31, 2016, partially offset by a 7% increase in the average selling price of homes in backlog as of 
December 31, 2017 to $444,600 from $415,300 at December 31, 2016.   

 December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount  % 

Number of Homes Closed        
California 919  722  197  27 %
Arizona 539  473  66  14 %
Nevada 278  331  (53)  (16)%
Colorado 240  251  (11)  (4)%
Washington 516  289  227  79 %
Oregon 747  715  32  4 %

Total 3,239  2,781  458  16 %

 
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the number of homes closed increased 16% to 3,239 in the 2017 period from 

2,781 in the 2016 period, the highest since 2007. The increase is attributable to an increase in net new orders by 20% to 3,328 
orders in the 2017 period compared to 2,775 orders in the 2016 period, in addition to an increase of 14% in the average number 
of sales locations to 84 locations during the 2017 period compared to 74 locations during the 2016 period. 

 

 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount  % 

 (dollars in thousands) 

Home Sales Revenue        
California $ 682,806  $ 490,352  $ 192,454  39 %
Arizona 158,534  125,951  32,583  26 %
Nevada 176,355  191,711  (15,356)  (8)%
Colorado 124,456  128,530  (4,074)  (3)%
Washington 332,302  154,600  177,702  115 %
Oregon 320,621  311,059  9,562  3 %

Total $ 1,795,074  $ 1,402,203  $ 392,871  28 %

The increase in homebuilding revenue of 28% to $1,795.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 from $1,402.2 
million for the year ended December 31, 2016 is primarily attributable to a 16% increase in the number of homes closed to 
3,239 during the 2017 period from 2,781 in the 2016 period, in addition to a 10% increase in the average sales price of homes 
closed to $554,200 during the 2017 period from $504,200 during the 2016 period. 
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 Year Ended December 31,  Increase (Decrease) 

 2017  2016  Amount  % 

Average Sales Price of Homes Closed        
California $ 743,000  $ 679,200  $ 63,800  9 %
Arizona 294,100  266,300  27,800  10 %
Nevada 634,400  579,200  55,200  10 %
Colorado 518,600  512,100  6,500  1 %
Washington 644,000  534,900  109,100  20 %
Oregon 429,200  435,000  (5,800)  (1)%

Total average $ 554,200  $ 504,200  $ 50,000  10 %
 

The average sales price of homes closed for the 2017 period increased 10% compared to the 2016 period primarily due to 
a greater number of overall deliveries in the current period in California and Washington, which have higher price points, in 
addition to benefits from product mix and overall increases in sales prices. On a same store basis (projects that were open in 
both periods presented), the average sales price increased 5% for the 2017 period compared to the 2016 period. 
 
Gross Margin 

Homebuilding gross margins increased to 17.6% for the year ended December 31, 2017 from 17.1% in the 2016 period, 
primarily driven by price appreciation above costs appreciation, as well as new project openings with deliveries in 2017 with 
margins above previous company averages. 

For the comparison of the year ended December 31, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016, adjusted homebuilding 
gross margin percentage, which excludes previously capitalized interest included in cost of sales, was 22.3% for the 2017 
period compared to 21.2% for the 2016 period. The increase was primarily a result of the increase in homebuilding gross 
margins described above, coupled with the increase in the impact of interest in cost of sales. 

Adjusted homebuilding gross margin is a non-GAAP financial measure. The Company believes this information is 
meaningful as it isolates the impact that interest and permits investors to make better comparisons with our competitors, who 
also break out and adjust gross margins in a similar fashion. In the comparative presentation below, purchase accounting 
amounts related to previous acquisitions prior to the RSI acquisition have been excluded from both periods. See table set forth 
below reconciling this non-GAAP measure to homebuilding gross margin. 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2017  2016 

 (dollars in thousands) 

Home sales revenue $ 1,795,074  $ 1,402,203 

Cost of home sales 1,478,549  1,162,337 

Homebuilding gross margin 316,525  239,866 
Homebuilding gross margin percentage 17.6% 17.1%

Add: Interest in cost of sales 83,455  57,297 

Adjusted homebuilding gross margin $ 399,980  $ 297,163 

Adjusted homebuilding gross margin percentage 22.3% 21.2%

    Construction Services Revenue 

Construction services revenue was $1.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to $3.8 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2016.  The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in revenue attributable to one project in 
Northern California, which has closed out, which was partially offset by a new project started in Washington towards the end of 
2017. 
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    Sales and Marketing & General and Administrative Expense 

 Year Ended December 31,  
As a Percentage of Home Sales 

Revenue 

 2017  2016  2017  2016 

 (dollars in thousands)     
Sales and Marketing $ 86,226   $ 72,509  4.8%  5.2%
General and Administrative 90,206   73,398  5.0%  5.2%

Total Sales and Marketing & 
General and Administrative $ 176,432 

 
 $ 145,907

 
 9.8% 10.4%

Sales and marketing expense as a percentage of home sales revenue decreased to 4.8% in the 2017 period compared to 
5.2% in the 2016 period as a result of higher homebuilding revenue. In addition, the Company has been lowering advertising as 
a percentage of homebuilding revenue to 0.7% in the 2017 period from 0.8% in the 2016 period, by a more efficient advertising 
spending strategy through utilization of social media and mobile applications, in an effort to offset higher outside broker costs. 
General and administrative expense as a percentage of home sales revenues decreased to 5.0% in the 2017 period compared to 
5.2% in the 2016 period.  The decrease is driven by a lower relative cost structure due to the higher revenue and positive 
operating leverage. 

Equity in Income of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 

 Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures decreased to $3.7 million during the 2017 period from $5.6 million 
during the 2016 period as a result of declining performance at one of our mortgage joint ventures. 

Other Items 

Combined, other operating costs increased to $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to $0.3 
million for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Interest activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows (in thousands): 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2017  2016 

Interest incurred $ 73,729  $ 83,218 
Less: Interest capitalized (73,729)  (83,218) 
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized $ —  $ — 

Cash paid for interest $ 62,679  $ 79,734 

The decrease in interest incurred for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the interest incurred for the year 
ended December 31, 2016 reflects the impact of the effective refinancing transaction on January 31, 2017, in which the 
Company completed the sale to certain purchasers of $450.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.875% Senior Notes due 
2025 and concurrent retirement of the remaining outstanding 8.5% Notes, such that the entire aggregate $425.0 million of 
previously outstanding 8.5% Notes are now retired and extinguished. The Company capitalized all of the interest it incurred 
during both periods presented due to its qualifying assets exceeding its outstanding debt. 

Provision for Income Taxes 

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the Company recorded a provision for income taxes of $62.9 million, 
reflecting an effective tax rate of 52.1%.  During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recorded a provision for 
income taxes of $34.9 million for an effective tax rate of 33.9%.  The increase in the current year tax rate is driven by the new 
tax reform legislation signed into effect in December 2017, which resulted in remeasurement of our net deferred tax asset of 
$23.1 million. This increase was partially offset by the tax benefit of $7.8 million related to the loss on debt extinguishment. 

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest 
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Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest increased to $9.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2017, 
compared to $8.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, reflecting the stage in the project development cycle of a 
number of our recently entered into joint venture projects and an increase in deliveries. 

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders 

As a result of the preceding factors, net income available to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 
2017 and 2016 was $48.1 million and $59.7 million, respectively. 

Lots Owned and Controlled 

The table below summarizes the Company’s lots owned and controlled as of the periods presented: 
 

  December 31,   
2017 2016 Amount % 

Lots Owned         
California  1,551  1,484  67  5 %
Arizona  4,221  4,932  (711)  (14 )%
Nevada  2,981  3,028  (47)  (2 )%
Colorado  1,276  1,475  (199)  (13 )%
Washington  1,334  1,367  (33)  (2 )%
Oregon  1,893  1,340  553  41 %

Total  13,256  13,626  (370)  (3 )%
Lots Controlled (1)         

California  1,051  971  80  8 %
Arizona  —  —  —  — %
Nevada  17  43  (26)  (60 )%
Colorado  769  86  683  794 %
Washington  849  1,036  (187)  (18 )%
Oregon  1,494  2,096  (602)  (29 )%

Total  4,180  4,232  (52)  (1 )%
Total Lots Owned and Controlled  17,436  17,858  (422)  (2 )%

 
(1) Lots controlled may be purchased by the Company as consolidated projects or may be purchased by newly formed joint 

ventures. 

Total lots owned and controlled has decreased 2% to 17,436 lots owned and controlled at December 31, 2017 from 
17,858 lots at December 31, 2016. 
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Financial Condition and Liquidity 

In the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company delivered 4,186 homes, with an average selling price of 
approximately $497,300, and recognized home sales revenues and total revenues of $2.1 billion.  In the year ended 
December 31, 2018, net new home orders increased 24% to 4,133 in the 2018 period from 3,328 in the 2017 period and home 
closings increased 29% to 4,186 in the 2018 period from 3,239 in the 2017 period. On a consolidated basis, the cancellation 
rate slightly increased to 16% in the 2018 period compared to 15% in the 2017 period. Homebuilding gross margin percentage 
and adjusted homebuilding gross margin percentage increased to 18.2% and 23.1%, respectively, for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, as compared to 17.6% and 22.3%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

As of December 31, 2018, the Company was selling homes in 120 communities and had a consolidated backlog of 1,041 
sold but unclosed homes, with an associated sales value of $479.0 million, representing a 27% increase in units and 11% 
increase in dollars, as compared to the backlog at December 31, 2017.  The Company benefits from a sizable and well-located 
lot supply, and as of December 31, 2018, the Company owned 17,649 lots, all of which are entitled, and had options to 
purchase an additional 11,892 lots. The Company’s lot supply reflects its balanced approach to land investment. The Company 
has a diverse mix of finished lots available for near-term homebuilding operations and longer-term strategic land positions to 
support future growth. The Company believes that its current inventory of owned and controlled lots is sufficient to supply the 
vast majority of its projected future home closings for the next several years. 

Since our initial public offering, which raised approximately $163.7 million of net proceeds, the Company has access to 
the public equity and debt markets, which is a significant source of financing for investing in land in our existing markets or 
financing expansion into new markets, such as the Company’s acquisition of RSI Communities during 2018 and Polygon 
Northwest Homes during 2014. 

The Company ended the year with total liquidity of $345.2 million, including cash on hand of $33.8 million and 
availability under the Company's revolving credit facility of $311.4 million. The Company provides for its ongoing cash 
requirements with the proceeds identified above, as well as from internally generated funds from the sales of homes and/or land 
sales. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company generated cash from operations of $27.6 million, which 
included investment in land acquisitions of $554.3 million, for net cash generated by operations of $581.9 million, net of 
investment in land acquisitions.  In addition, the Company has the option to use additional outside borrowing, form new joint 
ventures with partners that provide a substantial portion of the capital required for certain projects, and buy land via lot options 
or land banking arrangements. The Company has financed, and may in the future finance, certain projects and land acquisitions 
with construction loans secured by real estate inventories, seller-provided financing and land banking transactions. The 
Company may also draw on its revolving line of credit to fund land acquisitions, as discussed below. We believe we are well-
positioned with a strong balance sheet and sufficient liquidity for supporting our ongoing operations. In addition, consistent 
with our favorable outlook of the market and long-term business strategy, the Company expects to use its capital to support 
growth initiatives. 

 Acquisition of RSI Communities 

 On March 9, 2018, the Company acquired the residential homebuilding operations of RSI Communities for an 
aggregate cash purchase price of $479.3 million, which is inclusive of approximately $15.2 million of net asset related 
adjustments at closing. The Company financed the RSI Acquisition with a combination of proceeds from its issuance of $350 
million in aggregate principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2023 and cash on hand including approximately $194.3 
million of aggregate proceeds from a land banking arrangement with respect to land parcels located in California and Texas, 
including parcels acquired in the RSI Acquisition. 

       5 3/4% Senior Notes Due 2019 

           On March 31, 2014, California Lyon completed its offering of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2019 (the "5.75% Notes"), in an 
aggregate principal amount of $150 million. The 5.75% Notes were issued at 100% of their aggregate principal amount. 
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         During the year ended December 31, 2018, Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from the offering 
of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023, as further described below, (i) together with cash generated from certain land banking 
arrangements, and cash on hand, to finance the RSI Acquisition and to pay related fees and expenses and (ii) to repay all of 
California Lyon's $150 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Notes such that the 5.75% Notes were satisfied and 
discharged prior to December 31, 2018. 

 8 1/2% Senior Notes Due 2020 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from its private 
placement with registration rights of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2024, as further described below, to purchase $395.6 million of 
the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 8.5% Notes, pursuant to a cash tender offer and consent solicitation. 
Subsequently, the Company used the remaining proceeds, together with cash on hand, for the retirement of the remaining 
outstanding 8.5% Notes, such that the entire aggregate $425 million of previously outstanding 8.5% Notes are retired and 
extinguished as of December 31, 2017.  The Company incurred certain costs related to the early extinguishment of debt of the 
8.5% Notes during the period ended December 31, 2017 in an amount of $21.8 million, which is included in the Consolidated 
Statement of Operations as Loss on extinguishment of debt. 

 7% Senior Notes due 2022 

 On August 11, 2014, WLH PNW Finance Corp., or the Escrow Issuer, completed its private placement with 
registration rights of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, or the initial 7.00% Notes, in an aggregate principal amount of $300 
million.  The initial 7.00% Notes were issued at 100% of their aggregate principal amount.  On August 12, 2014, in connection 
with the consummation of the Polygon Acquisition, Escrow Issuer merged with and into California Lyon, and California Lyon 
assumed the obligations of the Escrow Issuer under the 7.00% Notes and the related indenture by operation of law, or the 
Escrow Merger.  Following the Escrow Merger, California Lyon is the obligor under the initial 7.00% Notes.  In January 2015, 
we exchanged 100% of the initial 7.00% Notes for notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 

 On September 15, 2015, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of an additional 
$50.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, or the additional 7.00% Notes, and together 
with the initial 7.00% Notes, the 7.00% Notes, at an issue price of 102.0% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest from 
August 15, 2015, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $50.5 million.  In January 2016, we exchanged 100% of the 
additional 7.00% Notes for notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 

 As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal amount of the 7.00% Notes was $350 million, excluding 
unamortized premium of $0.6 million and deferred loan costs of $3.1 million. The 7.00% Notes bear interest at a rate of 
7.00% per annum, payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15, and mature on August 15, 2022. The 7.00% 
Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several unsecured basis by Parent and certain of its existing and future 
restricted subsidiaries.  The 7.00% Notes and the related guarantees are California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ unsecured senior 
obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future unsecured 
senior debt, including California Lyon’s $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes and $440.9 million 
in aggregate principal amount of 5.875% Senior Notes, each as described below.  The 7.00% Notes rank senior in right of 
payment to all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ future subordinated debt.  The 7.00% Notes and the guarantees are and 
will be effectively junior to California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future secured debt to the extent of the value of 
the collateral securing such debt. 

 
 6% Senior Notes Due 2023 

On March 9, 2018, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of 6.00% Senior Notes due 
2023 (the "6.00% Notes"), in an aggregate principal amount of $350 million. The 6.00% Notes were issued at 100% of their 
aggregate principal amount. Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from the 6.00% Notes offering to 
(i) together with cash generated from certain land banking arrangements, and cash on hand, to finance the RSI Acquisition and 
to pay related fees and expenses and (ii) to repay all of California Lyon's $150 million of the outstanding aggregate principal 
amount of the 5.75% Notes. In September and December 2018, the Company exchanged 100% of the initial 6.00% Notes for 
notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 
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As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal amount of the 6.00% Notes was $350 million, excluding deferred 
loan costs of $6.1 million. The 6.00% Notes bear interest at a rate of 6.00% per annum, payable semiannually in arrears on 
March 1 and September 1, and mature on September 1, 2023. The 6.00% Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and 
several unsecured basis by Parent and certain of its existing and future restricted subsidiaries. The 6.00% Notes and the related 
guarantees are California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all 
of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future unsecured senior debt, including California Lyon’s $350 million in 
aggregate principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, as described above and $440.9 million in aggregate principal 
amount of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2025, as described below. The 6.00% Notes rank senior in right of payment to all of 
California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ future subordinated debt. The 6.00% Notes and the guarantees are and will be effectively 
junior to California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future secured debt to the extent of the value of the collateral 
securing such debt. 

 
 5 7/8% Senior Notes Due 2025 

 On January 31, 2017, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of 5.875% Senior Notes 
due 2025 (the "5.875% Notes"), in an aggregate principal amount of $450 million. The 5.875% Notes were issued 
at 99.215% of their aggregate principal amount. Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from the 5.875% Notes 
offering to purchase the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 8.5% Notes such that the entire aggregate $425 
million of previously outstanding 8.5% Notes are retired and extinguished as of December 31, 2018. In May 2017, the 
Company exchanged 100% of the 5.875% Notes for notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of $9.1 million of the 
5.875% Notes such that they are now retired and extinguished. 

As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal amount of the 5.875% Notes was $440.9 million, excluding 
unamortized discount of $2.8 million and deferred loan costs of $6.1 million. The 5.875% Notes bear interest at a rate 
of 5.875% per annum, payable semiannually in arrears on January 31 and July 31, and mature on January 31, 2025. 
The 5.875% Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several unsecured basis by Parent and certain of its existing 
and future restricted subsidiaries. The 5.875% Notes and the related guarantees are California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ 
unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and 
future unsecured senior debt, including California Lyon’s $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes 
due 2022 and $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023, each as described above. 
The 5.875% Notes rank senior in right of payment to all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ future subordinated debt. 
The 5.875% Notes and the guarantees are and will be effectively junior to California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and 
future secured debt to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such debt. 

 

Senior Notes Covenant Compliance 

The indentures governing the 7.00% Notes, 6.00% Notes, and 5.875% Notes contain covenants that limit the ability of 
Parent, California Lyon, and their restricted subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur or guarantee certain additional 
indebtedness; (ii) pay dividends, distributions, or repurchase equity or make payments in respect of subordinated indebtedness; 
(iii) make certain investments; (iv) sell assets; (v) incur liens; (vi) enter into agreements restricting the ability of the Company’s 
restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends or transfer assets; (vii) enter into transactions with affiliates; (viii) create unrestricted 
subsidiaries; and (viii) consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of its assets. These covenants are subject to a number of 
important exceptions and qualifications as described in the indentures. The Company was in compliance with all such 
covenants as of December 31, 2018. 

 

Revolving Credit Facility 

On May 21, 2018, California Lyon and Parent entered into a new credit agreement providing for an unsecured revolving 
credit facility of up to $325.0 million (the “New Facility”) with the lenders party thereto, which New Facility replaces the 
Company’s previous $170.0 million revolving credit facility, as described below. The New Facility will mature on May 21, 
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2021, unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of the New Facility. The New Facility contains an uncommitted accordion 
feature under which its aggregate principal amount can be increased to up to $500.0 million under certain circumstances, as 
well as a sublimit of $50.0 million for letters of credit. Effective as of November 9, 2018, California Lyon increased the size of 
the commitment under its revolving credit facility by $40.0 million to an aggregate total of $365.0 million, through entry into a 
new lender supplement as of such date. 

On December 18, 2018, California Lyon, Parent and the lenders party thereto entered into an amendment to the New 
Facility, which amended the maximum leverage ratio to extend the timing of the gradual step-downs, such that the leverage 
ratio remained at 65% through and including December 30, 2018, decreased to 62.5% on the last day of the 2018 fiscal year 
through and including December 30, 2019, and further decreases to and remains at 60% on December 31, 2019 and thereafter. 
The amendment did not revise any of our other financial covenants thereunder. 

Borrowings under the New Facility, the availability of which is subject to a borrowing base formula, are required to be 
guaranteed by the Parent and certain of the Parent’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (such subsidiaries, the “Guarantors”), and may 
be used for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2018, the commitment fee on the unused portion of the New 
Facility accrues at an annual rate of 0.50%. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $45.0 million outstanding against the 
New Facility at an effective rate of 7.5%, as well as a letter of credit for $8.6 million. As of December 31, 2017, the Company 
had a letter of credit for $7.8 million but no outstanding balance against the previous Second Amended Facility. 

The New Facility contains certain financial maintenance covenants, including (a) a minimum tangible net worth 
requirement of $556.4 million (which is subject to increase over time based on subsequent earnings and proceeds from equity 
offerings, as well as deferred tax assets to the extent included on the Company's financial statements), (b) a maximum leverage 
covenant that prohibits the leverage ratio (as defined therein) from exceeding 65% as of December 30, 2018, further decreased 
to 62.5% effective as of December 31, 2018 through and including December 30, 2019, and further decreases to and remains 
at 60% on December 31, 2019 and thereafter, and (c) a covenant requiring us to maintain either (i) an interest coverage ratio 
(EBITDA to interest incurred, as defined therein) of at least 1.50 to 1.00 or (ii) liquidity (as defined therein) of an amount not 
less than the greater of our consolidated interest incurred during the trailing 12 months and $50.0 million. Our compliance with 
these financial covenants is measured by calculations and metrics that are specifically defined or described by the terms of the 
New Facility and can differ in certain respects from comparable GAAP or other commonly used terms. The New Facility also 
contains customary events of default, subject to cure periods in certain circumstances, including: nonpayment of principal, 
interest and fees or other amounts; violation of covenants; inaccuracy of representations and warranties; cross default to certain 
other indebtedness; unpaid judgments; and certain bankruptcy and other insolvency events. The occurrence of any event of 
default could result in the termination of the commitments under the New Facility and permit the Lenders to accelerate 
payment on outstanding borrowings under the New Facility and require cash collateralization of outstanding letters of credit. If 
a change of control (as defined in the New Facility) occurs, the Lenders may terminate the commitments under the New 
Facility and require that the Borrower repay outstanding borrowings under the New Facility and cash collateralize outstanding 
letters of credit. Interest rates on borrowings generally will be based on either LIBOR or a base rate, plus the applicable spread. 
The Company was in compliance with all covenants under the New Facility as of December 31, 2018. The following table 
summarizes these covenants pursuant to the New Facility, and our compliance with such covenants as of December 31, 2018: 

  
Covenant 

Requirements at  Actual at 
Financial Covenant  December 31, 2018  December 31, 2018 

Minimum Tangible Net Worth  $ 638.4million  $ 895.3million 
Maximum Leverage Ratio  62.5 %  59.2 %
Interest Coverage Ratio; or (1)  1.5  2.7 
   Minimum Liquidity (1)  $ 92.1million  $ 345.2million 

 
(1) We are required to meet either the Interest Coverage Ratio or Minimum Liquidity, but not both. 

Although the Company does not believe it is likely to breach any of the covenants listed above, including the maximum 
leverage ratio covenant, based on its current expectations and assumptions, there are certain steps that the Company could take 
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to decrease the likelihood of any breach in the event it was determined that a breach was reasonably likely. The Company 
remains focused on continuing to drive top line revenue growth which it believes will improve cash flow and generate earnings. 
In addition, there are certain discretionary levers that the Company has the ability to utilize to the extent it is determined that 
near-term steps are needed to manage to covenant requirements. For example, land acquisition and development is a strategic 
investment by the Company to support our future growth plans. While the Company intends to continue to acquire land that it 
believes is accretive to the Company, the Company's currently owned and controlled land position enables it to be selective and 
nimble in its future acquisition strategy. The Company also has the option to form new joint ventures with partners that could 
provide a substantial portion of the capital required for certain projects, purchase land through lot options or land banking 
arrangements, as well as utilizing such financing structures as a means to generate incremental cash flow, or adjust the timing 
of housing starts. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company paid approximately $554.3 million for 
land and land developments. Such spending related to land owned is a discretionary component that the Company can temper 
as needed to reduce cash outflow, and it believes it can do so without a significant impact on near-term operating results. 

The New Facility contains customary events of default, subject to cure periods in certain circumstances, including: 
nonpayment of principal, interest and fees or other amounts; violation of covenants, including those financial covenants 
identified above; inaccuracy of representations and warranties; cross default to certain other indebtedness; unpaid judgments; 
and certain bankruptcy and other insolvency events. 

The occurrence of any event of default could result in the termination of the commitments under the New Facility and 
permit the lenders to accelerate payment on outstanding borrowings under the New Facility and require cash collateralization of 
outstanding letters of credit, if we are unable to amend the New Facility, secure a waiver of the default from the lenders or 
otherwise cure the default. Further, acceleration of the New Facility borrowings may result in the acceleration of other debt to 
which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies, including but not limited to our senior notes as described above to 
the extent the acceleration is above certain threshold amounts, and the triggering default is not cured or waived or any 
acceleration rescinded, as well as certain notes payable. 

In addition, if a change in control (as defined in the New Facility) occurs, the lenders may terminate the commitments 
under the New Facility and require that the Company repay outstanding borrowings under the New Facility and cash 
collateralize outstanding letters of credit. 

The Company believes it has access to alternate sources of funding to pay off resulting obligations or replace funding 
under the New Facility should there be a likelihood of, or anticipated, breach of any covenants, including cash generated from 
operations and opportunistic land sales. In addition, the Company has capacity under the restrictive covenants of its senior 
notes indentures to incur additional indebtedness which it can do through access to the debt capital markets, and the Company 
believes it can also raise equity in the capital markets. 

Seller Financing 

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company paid in full prior to maturity, along with all accrued interest to 
date, a note payable outstanding related to one land acquisition for which seller financing was provided. The note bore interest 
at a rate of 7% per annum and was secured by the underlying land. 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company paid in full a note payable outstanding related to a land 
acquisition for which seller financing was provided. The note bore interest at a rate of 7% per annum, was secured by the 
underlying land, and was paid upon maturity in August 2017.  This note was entered into with a related party, which is 
described in more detail in the financial statements. 

Joint Venture Notes Payable 
 
           The Company and certain of its consolidated joint ventures have entered into construction notes payable agreements.  
The issuance date, facility size, maturity date and interest rate are listed in the table below as of December 31, 2018 (in 
millions): 
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Issuance Date  Facility Size  Outstanding  Maturity  Current Rate  
May, 2018  $ 128.0  $ 79.4   May, 2021  5.75% (2) 

May, 2018  13.3  9.4   June, 2020  5.42% (3) 

July, 2017  66.2  38.7   February, 2021  5.50% (2) 

January, 2016  35.0  15.2   August, 2019  5.77% (1) 

November, 2015  14.2  9.1   May, 2019  6.50% (4) 

  $ 256.7  $ 151.8       

(1)  Loan bears interest at LIBOR +3.25%. 
(2)  Loan bears interest at the greatest of the prime rate, federal funds effective rate +1.0%, or LIBOR +1.0%. 
(3)  Loan bears interest at LIBOR +2.90%. 
(4)  Loan bears interest at the prime rate +1.0%. 

In addition to the above, the Company had $1.2 million of construction notes payable outstanding related to projects that 
are wholly-owned by the Company. 

The joint venture notes payable contain certain financial maintenance covenants.  The Company was in compliance with 
all such covenants as of December 31, 2018. 

Net Debt to Total Capital 

The Company’s ratio of net debt to total capital was 55.9% and 49.6% as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
The ratio of net debt to total capital is a non-GAAP financial measure, which is calculated by dividing notes payable and Senior 
Notes, net of cash and cash equivalents, by total capital (notes payable and Senior Notes, net of cash and cash equivalents, plus 
total equity). The Company believes this calculation is a relevant and useful financial measure to investors in understanding the 
leverage employed in its operations, and may be helpful in comparing the Company with other companies in the homebuilding 
industry to the extent they provide similar information. See table set forth below reconciling this non-GAAP measure to the 
ratio of debt to total capital. 
 

  December 31, 

  2018  2017 

  (dollars in thousands) 
Notes payable and Senior Notes  $ 1,321,345  $ 1,030,184 

Total equity  1,014,327  860,630 

Total capital  $ 2,335,672  $ 1,890,814 
Ratio of debt to total capital  56.6% 54.5%

Notes payable and Senior Notes  $ 1,321,345  $ 1,030,184 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  (33,779)  (182,710) 

Net debt  1,287,566  847,474 
Total equity  1,014,327  860,630 

Total capital (net of cash)  $ 2,301,893  $ 1,708,104 
Ratio of net debt to total capital (net of cash)  55.9% 49.6%

 

Land Banking Arrangements 

As a method of acquiring land in staged takedowns, thereby minimizing the use of funds from the Company’s available 
cash or other corporate financing sources and limiting the Company’s risk, the Company transfers its right in such purchase 
agreements to entities owned by third parties, or land banking arrangements. These entities use equity contributions and/or 
incur debt to finance the acquisition and development of the land being purchased. The entities grant the Company an option to 
acquire lots in staged takedowns. In consideration for this option, the Company makes a non-refundable deposit of 15% to 25% 
of the total purchase price. The Company is under no obligation to purchase the balance of the lots, but would forfeit remaining 
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deposits and could be subject to penalties if the lots were not purchased. The Company does not have legal title to these entities 
or their assets and has not guaranteed their liabilities. These land banking arrangements help the Company manage the financial 
and market risk associated with land holdings. The use of these land banking arrangements is dependent on, among other 
things, the availability of capital to the option provider, general housing market conditions and geographic preferences. 

The Company participated in three land banking arrangements during the year ended December 31, 2018 that were not 
variable interest entities in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”), but were consolidated in 
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 470, Debt (“ASC 470”). Under the provisions of ASC 470, the Company had determined it 
is economically compelled, based on certain factors, to purchase the land in the land banking arrangements. Therefore, the 
Company has recorded the remaining purchase price of the land of $315.6 million as of December 31, 2018, which was 
included in Real estate inventories not owned and Liabilities from inventories not owned in the accompanying balance sheet. 

Summary information with respect to the Company’s consolidated land banking arrangements are as follows as of the 
period presented (dollars in thousands): 

 December 31, 2018 

Total number of land banking projects consolidated 3 

Total number of lots 5,184 

Total purchase price $ 452,967 

Balance of lots still under option and not purchased:  
Number of lots 4,241 

Purchase price $ 315,576 

Forfeited deposits if lots are not purchased $ 78,923 

Joint Venture Financing 

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are general partners or members in joint ventures involved in the 
development and sale of residential projects. As described more fully in Critical Accounting Policies—Variable Interest 
Entities, certain joint ventures have been determined to be variable interest entities in which the Company is considered the 
primary beneficiary. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and operations of these joint ventures have been consolidated with the 
Company’s financial statements for the periods presented. The financial statements of joint ventures in which the Company is 
not considered the primary beneficiary are not consolidated with the Company’s financial statements. The Company’s 
investments in unconsolidated joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method because the Company has a 50% or less 
voting or economic interest (and thus such joint ventures are not controlled by the Company). Based upon current estimates, 
substantially all future development and construction costs incurred by the joint ventures will be funded by the venture partners 
or from the proceeds of construction financing obtained by the joint ventures. 

 
Cash Flows — Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2018 to Year Ended December 31, 2017 

For the comparison of the year ended December 31, 2018 and the year ended December 31, 2017, the comparison of cash 
flows is as follows: 

•  Net cash provided by operating activities was $27.6 million in the 2018 period compared to $167.5 million in the 
2017 period. The change was primarily a result of (i) an increase in spending on real estate inventories-owned 
of $199.4 million, net of $194.1 million of cash proceeds from a land banking arrangement, in the 2018 period 
compared to a decrease of $52.9 million in the 2017 period, partially offset by (ii) an increase in net income to 
$115.1 million in the 2018 period compared to $57.8 million in the 2017 period, (iii) an increase in accounts payable 
of $60.3 million in the 2018 period compared to a decrease of $15.5 million in the 2017 period due to timing of 
payments, and (iv) a decrease in deferred income taxes of $0.7 million in the 2018 period compared to $27.8 million 
in the 2017 period, driven by the new tax reform legislation signed into effect in December 2017, which resulted in 
a one-time charge to our deferred tax asset. 
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•  Net cash used in investing activities was $486.7 million in the 2018 period compared to $4.3 million in the 2017 
period, primarily driven by the cash paid for the RSI acquisition of $479.3 million in the 2018 period, for which 
there is no comparable amount in the 2017 period. 

•  Net cash provided by financing activities was $310.2 million in the 2018 period compared to net cash used in 
financing activities of $23.1 million in the 2017 period. The change was primarily the result of (i) proceeds 
of $350.0 million from the issuance of the 6% Senior Notes in the 2018 period, for which there is no comparable 
amount in the 2017 period, (ii) principal payments of the 8.5% Senior Notes of $425.0 million in the 2017 period for 
which there is no comparable amount in the 2018 period, (iii) net proceeds from borrowings of $45.0 million against 
the revolving line of credit in the 2018 period, versus $29.0 million in the 2017 period, and (iv) net noncontrolling 
interest contributions of $47.3 million in the 2018 period compared to $4.2 million in the 2017 period, partially 
offset by (v) principal payments of the 5.75% Senior Notes of $150.0 million in the 2018 period, for which there is 
no comparable amount in the 2017 period, (vi) proceeds from the issuance of the 5.875% Senior Notes of $446.5 
million in the 2017 period, for which there is no comparable amount in the 2018 period, and (vii) net proceeds from 
borrowings of $56.8 million against notes payable in the 2018 period compared to $68.6 million in the 2017 period. 

Cash Flows — Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2017 to Year Ended December 31, 2016 

For the comparison of the year ended December 31, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016, the comparison of cash 
flows is as follows: 

•  Net cash provided by operating activities was $167.5 million in the 2017 period compared to net cash provided by 
operating activities of $21.2 million in the 2016 period. The change was primarily a result of (i) a decrease in real 
estate inventories-owned of $52.9 million in the 2017 period compared to spending of $69.6 million in the 2016 
period, (ii) a decrease in deferred tax assets of $27.8 million in the 2017 period compared to $4.0 million in the 
2016 period, driven by the new tax reform legislation signed into effect in December 2017, which resulted in a one-
time charge to our deferred tax asset, and (iii) an increase in accrued expenses of $17.2 million in the 2017 period 
compared to an increase of $9.5 million in the 2016 period, partially offset by (iv) a decrease in accounts payable of 
$15.5 million in the 2017 period compared to a decrease of $1.6 million in the 2016 period due to timing of 
payments, and (v) an increase in escrow receivables of $3.2 million in the 2017 period compared to a decrease of 
$3.0 million in the 2016 period due to the timing of payments received. 

•  Net cash used in investing activities was $4.3 million in the 2017 period compared to net cash provided by investing 
activities of $5.2 million in the 2016 period, primarily driven by (i) proceeds from repayment of notes receivable of 
$6.2 million in the 2016 period for which there was no corresponding amount in the 2017 period, and (ii) purchases 
of property and equipment of $4.3 million in the 2017 period compared to $1.0 million in the 2016 period. 

•  Net cash used in financing activities was $23.1 million in the 2017 period compared to net cash used in financing 
activities of $34.5 million in the 2016 period. The change was primarily the result of (i) proceeds from the issuance 
of the 5.875% Senior Notes for $446.5 million in the 2017 period for which there is no comparable amount in the 
2016 period, (ii) proceeds from issuance of Class B shares of $29.9 million in the 2017 period for which there is no 
comparable amount in the 2016 period, and (iii) net payments of $29.0 million against the revolving line of credit in 
the 2017 period, versus net payments of $36.0 million in the 2016 period, partially offset by (iv) principal payments 
for the 8.5% Senior Notes for $425.0 million in the 2017 period, in addition to its redemption premium for $19.6 
million, for which there is no comparable amount in the 2016 period, (v) net noncontrolling interest contributions of 
$4.2 million in the 2017 period versus net contributions of $18.7 million in the 2016 period, and (vi) payment of 
deferred loan costs of $9.9 million in the 2017 period compared to $1.1 million in the 2016 period. 

 
Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Company enters into certain off-balance sheet arrangements including joint venture financing, option agreements, 
land banking arrangements and variable interests in consolidated and unconsolidated entities. These arrangements are more 
fully described above and in Notes 4 and 16 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.” In addition, the Company is 
party to certain contractual obligations, including land purchases and project commitments, which are detailed in Note 16 of 
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.” 
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The Company’s contractual obligations consisted of the following at December 31, 2018 (in thousands): 
 

  Payments due by period 

  Total (1)  
Less than 

1 year 
(2019)  

1-3 years 
(2020-2021)  

3-5 years 
(2022-2023)  

More than 
5 years 

Notes Payable  $ 198,019  $ 25,476  $ 172,543  $ —   $ — 
Notes Payable interest  24,070  11,253  12,817  —   — 
Senior Notes  1,140,860  —  —  700,000   440,860 
Senior Notes interest  346,416  71,401  142,801  104,155   28,059 
Operating leases  22,610  5,163  9,780  5,740   1,927 
Surety bonds  336,039  296,215  39,799  25   — 
Purchase obligations:           

Land purchases and option 
commitments (2) 

 
799,534

 
 317,134

 
 390,911

 
 91,489 

 
 —

 

Project commitments (3)  463,792  297,922  165,870  —   — 

Total  $ 3,331,340  $ 1,024,564  $ 934,521  $ 901,409   $ 470,846 

 
(1) The summary of contractual obligations above includes interest on all interest-bearing obligations. Interest on all fixed 

rate interest-bearing obligations is based on the stated rate and is calculated to the stated maturity date. Interest on all 
variable rate interest bearing obligations is based on the rates effective as of December 31, 2018 and is calculated to the 
stated maturity date. 

(2) Represents the Company’s obligations in land purchases, lot option agreements and land banking arrangements. If the 
Company does not purchase the land under contract, it will forfeit its non-refundable deposit related to the land.  
Further, reflects the full contractual amount and there may be existing deposits that net against such amount, and the 
actual amount may change if the Company decides to acquire the land through a joint venture or land bank 
arrangement, if at all. 

(3) Represents the Company’s homebuilding project purchase commitments for developing and building homes in the 
ordinary course of business. 

Inflation 

The Company’s revenues and profitability may be affected by increased inflation rates and other general economic 
conditions. In periods of high inflation, demand for the Company’s homes may be reduced by increases in mortgage interest 
rates. Further, the Company’s profits will be affected by its ability to recover through higher sales prices, increases in the costs 
of land, construction, labor and administrative expenses. The Company’s ability to raise prices at such times will depend upon 
demand and other competitive factors. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and costs 
and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments, including 
those which impact its most critical accounting policies. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical 
experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Management believes that the following accounting policies are 
among the most important to a portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations and require among the 
most difficult, subjective or complex judgments: 
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Real Estate Inventories and Cost of Sales 

Real estate inventories are carried at cost net of impairment losses, if any. Real estate inventories consist primarily of 
deposits to purchase land, raw land, lots under development, homes under construction, completed homes and model homes of 
real estate projects. All direct and indirect land costs, offsite and onsite improvements and applicable interest and other carrying 
charges are capitalized to real estate projects during periods when the project is under development. Land, offsite costs and all 
other common costs are allocated to land parcels benefited based upon relative fair values before construction. Onsite 
construction costs and related carrying charges (principally interest and property taxes) are allocated to the individual homes 
within a phase based upon the relative sales value of the homes. The estimation process involved in determining relative fair 
values and sales values is inherently uncertain because it involves estimates of current market values for land parcels before 
construction as well as future sales values of individual homes within a phase. The Company’s estimate of future sales values is 
supported by the Company’s budgeting process. The estimate of future sales values is inherently uncertain because it requires 
estimates of current market conditions as well as future market events and conditions. Additionally, in determining the 
allocation of costs to a particular land parcel or individual home, the Company relies on project budgets that are based on a 
variety of assumptions, including assumptions about construction schedules and future costs to be incurred. It is possible that 
actual results could differ from budgeted amounts for various reasons, including construction delays, increases in costs which 
have not yet been committed, or unforeseen issues encountered during construction that fall outside the scope of contracts 
obtained. While the actual results for a particular construction project are accurately reported over time, a variance between the 
budget and actual costs could result in the understatement or overstatement of costs and a related impact on gross margins in a 
specific reporting period. To reduce the potential for such distortion, the Company has set forth procedures which have been 
applied by the Company on a consistent basis, including assessing and revising project budgets on a monthly basis, obtaining 
commitments from subcontractors and vendors for future costs to be incurred, reviewing the adequacy of warranty accruals and 
historical warranty claims experience, and utilizing the most recent information available to estimate costs. The variances 
between budget and actual amounts identified by the Company have historically not had a material impact on its consolidated 
results of operations. Management believes that the Company’s policies provide for reasonably dependable estimates to be used 
in the calculation and reporting of costs. The Company relieves its accumulated real estate inventories through cost of sales by 
the budgeted amount of cost of homes sold. 

Impairment of Real Estate Inventories 

The Company accounts for its real estate inventories in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant & 
Equipment. ASC Topic 360 requires impairment losses to be recorded on real estate inventories when indicators of impairment 
are present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by real estate inventories are less than the carrying 
amount of such assets. Indicators of impairment include a decrease in demand for housing due to softening market conditions, 
competitive pricing pressures which reduce the average sales price of homes, which includes sales incentives for homebuyers, 
slowing sales absorption rates (calculated as net new homes orders divided by average sales locations for a given period), a 
decrease in home values in the markets in which the Company operates, significant decreases in gross margins and a decrease 
in project cash flows for a particular project. 

For land and land under development, homes completed and under construction and model homes, the Company 
estimates expected cash flows at the project level by maintaining current budgets using recent historical information and 
current market assumptions. The Company updates project budgets and cash flows of each real estate project on a quarterly 
basis to determine whether the estimated remaining undiscounted future cash flows of the project are more or less than the 
carrying amount (net book value) of the asset. If the undiscounted cash flows are more than the net book value of the project, 
then there is no impairment. If the undiscounted cash flows are less than the net book value of the asset, then the asset is 
deemed to be impaired and is written-down to its fair value. Fair value represents the amount at which an asset could be bought 
or sold in a current transaction between willing parties (i.e., other than a forced or liquidation sale). Management determines 
the estimated fair value of each project by determining the present value of estimated future cash flows at discount rates that are 
commensurate with the risk of each project. The estimation process involved in determining if assets have been impaired and in 
the determination of fair value is inherently uncertain because it requires estimates of future revenues and costs, current market 
yields as well as future events and conditions. As described more fully above in the section entitled “Real Estate Inventories 
and Cost of Sales,” estimates of revenues and costs are supported by the Company’s budgeting process. 
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Under FASB ASC Topic 360, when indicators of impairment are present the Company is required to make certain 
assumptions to estimate undiscounted future cash flows of a project, which include: (i) estimated sales prices, including sales 
incentives, (ii) anticipated sales absorption rates and sales volume, (iii) project costs incurred to date and the estimated future 
costs of the project based on the project budget, (iv) the carrying costs related to the time a project is actively selling until it 
closes the final unit in the project, and (v) alternative strategies including selling the land to a third-party or temporarily 
suspending development on the project. During the year ended December 31, 2018, no impairment was recorded by the 
Company. 

The assumptions and judgments used by the Company in the estimation process to determine the future undiscounted 
cash flows of a project and its fair value are inherently uncertain and require a substantial degree of judgment. The realization 
of the Company’s real estate inventories is dependent upon future uncertain events and market conditions. Due to the subjective 
nature of the estimates and assumptions used in determining the future cash flows of a project, the continued decline in the 
current housing market, the uncertainty in the banking and credit markets, actual results could differ materially from current 
estimates. 

These estimates are dependent on specific market or sub-market conditions for each subdivision. While the Company 
considers available information to determine what it believes to be its best estimates as of the end of a reporting period, these 
estimates are subject to change in future reporting periods as facts and circumstances change. Local market-specific conditions 
that may impact these estimates for a subdivision include: 

•  historical subdivision results, and actual operating profit, base selling prices and home sales incentives; 

•  forecasted operating profit for homes in backlog; 

•  the intensity of competition within a market or sub-market, including publicly available home sales prices and home 
sales incentives offered by our competitors; 

•  increased levels of home foreclosures; 

•  the current sales pace for active subdivisions; 

•  subdivision specific attributes, such as location, availability of lots in the sub-market, desirability and uniqueness of 
subdivision location and the size and style of homes currently being offered; 

•  changes by management in the sales strategy of a given subdivision; and 

•  current local market economic and demographic conditions and related trends and forecasts. 

These and other local market-specific conditions that may be present are considered by personnel in the Company’s 
homebuilding segments as they prepare or update the forecasted assumptions for each subdivision. Quantitative and qualitative 
factors other than home sales prices could significantly impact the potential for future impairments. The sales objectives can 
differ among subdivisions, even within a given sub-market. For example, facts and circumstances in a given subdivision may 
lead the Company to price its homes with the objective of yielding a higher sales absorption pace, while facts and 
circumstances in another subdivision may lead the Company to price its homes to minimize deterioration in home gross 
margins, even though this could result in a slower sales absorption pace. Furthermore, the key assumptions included in 
estimated future undiscounted cash flows may be interrelated. For example, a decrease in estimated base sales price or an 
increase in home sales incentives may result in a corresponding increase in sales absorption pace. Additionally, a decrease in 
the average sales price of homes to be sold and closed in future reporting periods for one subdivision that has not been 
generating what management believes to be an adequate sales absorption pace may impact the estimated cash flow assumptions 
of a nearby subdivision. Changes in key assumptions, including estimated construction and land development costs, absorption 
pace, selling strategies or discount rates could materially impact future cash flow and fair value estimates. Due to the number of 
possible scenarios that would result from various changes in these factors, the Company does not believe it is possible to 
develop a sensitivity analysis with a level of precision that would be meaningful to an investor. 



 

69 

Management assesses land deposits for impairment when estimated land values are deemed to be less than the agreed 
upon contract price. The Company considers changes in market conditions, the timing of land purchases, the ability to 
renegotiate with land sellers the terms of the land option contract in question, the availability and best use of capital, and other 
factors. If land values are determined to be less than the contract price, the future project will not be purchased. The Company 
records abandoned land deposits and related pre-acquisition costs to cost of sales-land in the consolidated statement of 
operations in the period that it is abandoned. 

The Company evaluates homebuilding assets for impairment when indicators of impairments are present. Indicators of 
potential impairment include, but are not limited to, a decrease in housing market values, sales absorption rates, and sales 
prices. For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, there were no impairment charges recorded. 

Variable Interest Entities 

The Company accounts for variable interest entities in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”). Under 
ASC 810, a variable interest entity (“VIE”) is created when: (a) the equity investment at risk in the entity is not sufficient to 
permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support provided by other parties, including 
the equity holders; (b) the entity’s equity holders as a group either (i) lack the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about 
the entity, (ii) are not obligated to absorb expected losses of the entity or (iii) do not have the right to receive expected residual 
returns of the entity; or (c) the entity’s equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic interests, 
and the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf of the equity holder with disproportionately few voting rights. 
If an entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to ASC 810, the enterprise that has both (i) the power to direct the activities of a 
VIE that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of 
the entity or right to receive benefits from the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE is considered the primary 
beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE. In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing reassessments of whether an 
enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. 

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had twenty and thirteen joint ventures, respectively, which were 
deemed to be VIEs under ASC 810 for which the Company is considered the primary beneficiary. The Company manages the 
joint ventures, by using its sales, development and operations teams and has significant control over these projects and 
therefore the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the joint venture’s performance, in addition to being 
obligated to absorb expected losses or receive benefits from the joint venture, and therefore the Company is deemed to be the 
primary beneficiary of these VIEs. 

Under ASC 810, a non-refundable deposit paid to an entity is deemed to be a variable interest that will absorb some or all 
of the entity’s expected losses if they occur. Our land purchase and lot option deposits generally represent our maximum 
exposure to the land seller if we elect not to purchase the optioned property. In some instances, we may also expend funds for 
due diligence, development and construction activities with respect to optioned land prior to takedown. Such costs are 
classified as inventories owned, which we would have to write-off should we not exercise the option. Therefore, whenever we 
enter into a land option or purchase contract with an entity and make a non-refundable deposit, a VIE may have been 
created. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company was not required to consolidate any VIEs nor did the Company 
write-off any costs that had been capitalized under lot option contracts. In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing 
reassessments of whether we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE. 

Business Combinations 

 The Company accounts for business combinations in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations.  
ASC Topic 805 requires that business combinations be accounted for under the acquisition method.  The acquisition method 
requires: i) identifying the acquirer; ii) determining the acquisition date; iii) recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets 
acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree; and iv) recognizing and measuring goodwill 
or a gain from a bargain purchase.  Under this method, all acquisition costs are expensed as incurred, and the assets and 
liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded at their acquisition date fair value, with any excess recorded as goodwill.  
Goodwill is allocated to the appropriate segments which benefited from the business combination when the goodwill arose.  
The allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities assumed requires the use of significant 
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estimates and assumptions. Significant assumptions can include i) expected selling prices of acquired projects, ii) anticipated 
sales pace of acquired projects, iii) cost to complete estimates of acquired projects, iv) highest and best use of acquired projects 
prior to acquisition, and v) comparable land values.  Where appropriate, we consult with external advisors to assist with the 
determination of fair value. 

Related Party Transactions 

See Note 11 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for the year ended December 31, 2018 for a description of 
the Company’s transactions with related parties. 

Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

See Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for a description of the recently issued accounting standards. 
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the Company’s floating rate debt with a 
total outstanding balance at December 31, 2018 of $151.8 million where the interest rate is variable based upon certain bank 
reference or prime rates. The average prime rate during the year ended December 31, 2018 ranged between 4.50% and 5.50%. 
Based upon the amount of variable rate debt held by the Company, and holding the variable rate debt balance constant, each 1% 
increase in interest rates would increase the amount of interest expense incurred by the Company by approximately $1.5 
million. 

The following table presents principal cash flows by scheduled maturity, interest rates and the estimated fair value of our 
long-term fixed rate debt obligations as of December 31, 2018 (dollars in thousands): 
 

 Year ended December 31,      Fair Value  at 
December 31, 

2018 2019  2020  2021  2022  2023  Thereafter  Total  
Fixed rate debt 

$ — 
 
 $ 1,231

 
 $ —

 
 $ 350,000

 
 $ 350,000

 
 $ 440,860

 
 $ 1,142,091 

 
 $ 1,044,842

 

Interest rate 
— 

 
 —

 
 —

 
 7.00% 6.00% 5.875%    

The Company does not utilize swaps, forward or option contracts on interest rates, foreign currencies or commodities, or 
other types of derivative financial instruments as of or during the year ended December 31, 2018. The Company does not enter 
into or hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. 

 
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the financial statements set forth in Section 15 of 
Part IV of this Annual Report, “Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules”. 

 
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

    As of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision 
and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief 
Financial Officer (principal financial officer), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and 
procedures as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e), including controls and procedures to timely 
alert management to material information relating to William Lyon Homes and subsidiaries required to be included in our 
periodic SEC filings. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that 
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report. 

    Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure 
controls and procedures will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can 
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a 
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative 
to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute 
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the 
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error and mistake. 
Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by 
management override of controls. 

    The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and 
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over 
time, a control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or because the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and may not be detected. 

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

     Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such 
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent 
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
    Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the 
criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013 framework) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission. We acquired RSI Communities during the year ended December 31, 2018. We have excluded from 
our overall assessment of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, internal control 
over financial reporting associated with RSI Communities' total assets of $622 million and total revenues of $312 
million. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework, our management concluded 
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2018. 
 
    Management's assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 has been audited by KPMG 
LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its attestation report which is included herein. 
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

    There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) 
that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially 
affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

 

 
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
William Lyon Homes, Inc.: 
 

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

We have audited William Lyon Homes Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material 
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) 
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, equity and, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, 
and related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements), and our report dated February 28, 2019, expressed an 
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Company acquired RSI Communities (RSI) during the year ended December 31, 2018, and management excluded from its 
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, RSI’s 
internal control over financial reporting associated with total assets of $622 million and total revenues of $312 million included 
in the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018. Our audit of internal 
control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of 
RSI. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the 
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws 
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

/s/ KPMG LLP 

Irvine, California 
February 28, 2019 
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Item 9B. Other Information 

None. 



 

76 

PART III 
 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

 
 The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement for our 2019 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, to be filed by the Company with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the 
close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 (the "Proxy Statement").  For the limited purpose of providing the 
information necessary to comply with this Item 10, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation 
 
 The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of providing 
the information necessary to comply with this Item 11, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 
 

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of providing the 
information necessary to comply with this Item 12, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of providing the 
information necessary to comply with this Item 13, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of providing the 
information necessary to comply with this Item 14, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 



Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
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Exhibit 
Number  Description 

3.1 
 
Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of William Lyon Homes (incorporated by reference 
to William Lyon Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 28, 2013). 

   
3.2 

 
Amended and Restated Bylaws of William Lyon Homes (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 28, 2013). 

   
3.3 

 
Amended and Restated Bylaws of William Lyon Homes (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the 
Company's Form 8-K filed July 22, 2015) 

   
4.1 

 

Indenture (including form of 8.5% Senior Note due 2020), dated as of November 8, 2012, by and between 
William Lyon Homes, Inc., William Lyon Homes, certain of William Lyon Homes’s subsidiaries (as 
guarantors) and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on November 8, 2012). 

   
4.2 

 

Officers' certificate, dated October 24, 2013, delivered pursuant to the Indenture, and setting forth the terms 
of the notes (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
October 25, 2013). 

   
4.3 

 

Indenture (including form of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2019), dated March 31, 2014, among William Lyon 
Homes, Inc., William Lyon Homes, certain of William Lyon Homes' subsidiaries (as guarantors) and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 1, 2014). 

   
4.4 

 

Indenture (including form of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022), dated August 11, 2014, among WLH PNW 
Finance Corp., the guarantors from time to time party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.5 

 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the 
subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 8.5% Senior Notes 
due 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.6 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 5.75% Senior Notes due 2019 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.7 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., William Lyon 
Homes, the subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 7.00% 
Senior Notes due 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 
13, 2014). 

   
4.8 

 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the 
subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes 
due 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.9 

 

Indenture, dated November 21, 2014, between William Lyon Homes and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to William Lyon Homes’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the SEC on November 21, 2014). 

   
4.10 

 

First Supplemental Indenture (including form of 5.50% Senior Subordinated Amortizing Notes due 
December 1, 2017), dated November 21, 2014, between William Lyon Homes and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to William Lyon Homes’ Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2014). 
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Exhibit 
Number  Description 

4.11 

 

Purchase Contract Agreement (including form of unit and form of prepaid stock purchase contract), dated 
November 21, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as purchase contract agent and as attorney-in-fact for the holders from time to 
time as provided therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to William Lyon Homes’ Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2014). 

   
4.12 

 

Officers’ Certificate, dated September 15, 2015, delivered pursuant to the Indenture dated August 11, 2014 
relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, and setting forth the terms of the Additional Notes 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed September 15, 2015) 

   
4.13 

 

Indenture dated January 31, 2017, among California Lyon, the Guarantors and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed January 
31, 2017) 

   
4.14 

 
Form of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Form 8-
K filed January 31, 2017) 

   
4.15 

 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated January 31, 2017, among California Lyon, Parent, the guarantors party 
thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K filed January 31, 2017) 

   
4.16 

 
Indenture, dated March 9, 2018, among California Lyon, the Guarantors and U.S. Bank National Association, 
as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 15, 2018). 

   
4.17 

 
Form of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K 
filed March 15, 2018). 

   
4.18 

 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2018). 

   
4.19 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2018). 

   
4.20 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 5.875% Senior Notes due 2025 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2018). 

   
10.1 

 

Form of Indemnity Agreement, between William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, and the directors and 
officers of William Lyon Homes (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 1999 (File No. 333-88569)). 

   
10.2 

 
The Presley Companies Non-Qualified Retirement Plan for Outside Directors (incorporated by reference to 
William Lyon Homes’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 2002). 

   
10.3 

 

Aircraft Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 3, 2009, by and between Presley CMR, Inc., 
and Martin Aviation, Inc., or its designee (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10, 2009). 

   
10.4 

 

Secured Promissory Note dated September 9, 2009 from Martin Aviation, Inc., a California corporation 
payable to William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10, 2009). 
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Exhibit 
Number  Description 

   
10.5 

 

Aircraft Mortgage and Security Agreement between Martin Aviation, Inc., a California corporation and 
William Lyon Homes, Inc., dated as of September 9, 2009 (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10, 2009). 

   
10.6 

 

Form of Class A Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and 
among William Lyon Homes and the Holders (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to the 
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.7 

 

Class B Common Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and between 
William Lyon Homes and the Purchaser (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.8 

 

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Class B Common Stock of William Lyon Homes, dated as of February 25, 
2012 (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission 
on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.9 

 

Class B Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among 
William Lyon Homes and the Holders (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.10 

 

Form of Convertible Preferred Stock and Class C Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon Homes and the Holders party thereto (incorporated by 
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.11† 

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon 
Homes, Inc. and General William Lyon (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.12† 

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon 
Homes, Inc. and William H. Lyon (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.13† 

 
William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration 
Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.14† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by 
reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 
6, 2012). 

   
10.15† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated 
by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on 
December 6, 2012). 

   
10.16† 

 
Form of Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.17 

 

Class A Common Stock and Convertible Preferred Stock Subscription Agreement, dated October 12, 2012, 
by and between William Lyon Homes and WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC (incorporated by reference to the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 
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Exhibit 
Number  Description 

10.18 

 

Amendment of and Joinder to Class A Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 12, 
2012, by and between WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC and William Lyon Homes (incorporated by reference 
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.19 

 

Amendment of and Joinder to Convertible Preferred Stock and Class C Common Stock Registration Rights 
Agreement, dated October 12, 2012, by and between WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC and William Lyon 
Homes (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the 
Commission on December 6, 2012).

   
10.20† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (performance-
based) (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Form S-1 Registration Statement filed April 9, 
2013 (File No. 333-187819)). 

   
10.21† 

 
Revised Form of Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 2013 (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Form S-1 Registration Statement filed April 9, 2013 (File No. 333-187819)). 

   
10.22† 

 

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March 6, 2013, by and between William Lyon Homes, Inc., 
and Matthew R. Zaist (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Form S-1 Registration Statement 
filed April 9, 2013 (File No. 333-187819)). 

   
10.23 

 
Amendment No. 1 to Warrant to Purchase Shares of Class B Common Stock (incorporated by reference to 
William Lyon Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 28, 2013). 

   
10.24 

 
Form of indemnification agreement (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 28, 2013). 

   
10.25† 

 

Amendment No. 1 to the William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.23(a) to the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statement filed May 6, 2013 (File No. 333-
187819)). 

   
10.26 

 

Credit Agreement among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, as Parent, The 
Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as Administrative Agent, dated as of August 
7, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
period ended September 30, 2013). 

   
10.27† 

 

Amendment No. 2 to the William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 99.3 of the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement filed August 12, 2013 (File No. 333-
190571)). 

   
10.28† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (performance-
based) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration Statement filed 
December 27, 2013 (file no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.29† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement. (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.43 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration Statement filed December 27, 2013 
(file no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.30† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.44 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration Statement filed December 27, 2013 (file 
no. 333-193112)). 
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Exhibit 
Number  Description 

10.31† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Amendment No. 1 to Stock Option Agreement 
(Five-Year Options) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration 
Statement filed December 27, 2013 (file no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.32 

 

Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, 
William Lyon Homes, as Parent, the Lenders from time to time party thereto, and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed 
August 13, 2014). 

   
10.33 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, as Parent, The Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as Administrative 
Agent, dated as of August 7, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 10-Q 
filed on November 12, 2014). 

   
10.34† 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon 
Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and General William Lyon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of 
the Company's Form 8-K filed December 31, 2014). 

   
10.35† 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon 
Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William H. Lyon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the 
Company's Form 8-K filed December 31, 2014). 

   
10.36 

 

Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of March 27, 2015 among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a 
California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, each 
subsidiary of the Borrower party thereto, the lenders listed on Schedule 1 thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as 
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q filed May 8, 2015). 

   
10.37† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William H. 
Lyon, dated as of March 31, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed April 2, 2015). 

   
10.38† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and Matthew R. 
Zaist, dated as of March 31, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed April 2, 2015). 

   
10.39† 

 
Offer Letter by and between William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William Lyon, dated as of March 31, 2015 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form 8-K filed April 2, 2015). 

   
10.40 

 

Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 21, 2015 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as 
of March 27, 2015 among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, 
as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 of the Company's Form 10-K filed March 
11, 2016). 

   
10.41† 

 
William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Performance 
Based) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed May 9, 2016). 

   
10.42† 

 
William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed May 9, 2016). 

   



 

83 

Exhibit 
Number  Description 

10.43† 
 
Offer letter by and between William Lyon Homes, Inc. and General William Lyon, dated as of March 22, 
2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed March 24, 2016). 

   
10.44 

 

Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of July 1, 2016 among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a 
California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, each 
subsidiary of the Borrower party thereto, the lenders listed on Schedule 1 thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as 
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed July 7, 
2016). 

   
10.45 

 

Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 27, 2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
dated as of July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William 
Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit 
Suisse AG, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of the Company's Form 10-K 
filed March 9, 2017). 

   
10.46† 

 
William Lyon Homes Amended and Restated 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Appendix A of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017). 

   
10.47 

 

Amendment No. 2 dated as of June 16, 2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated 
as of July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, 
as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed August 
8, 2017). 

   
10.48 

 

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 14, 2017, by and between the Company and Lyon 
Shareholder 2012, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed 
December 14, 2017) 

   
10.49 

 

New Lender Supplement dated as of November 28, 2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Credit 
Agreement dated as of July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as 
Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party 
thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 of the 
Company's Form 10-K filed February 22, 2018). 

   
10.50 

 

Amendment No. 3, dated March 9, 2018, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated 
July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, as Parent, the subsidiary 
guarantors party thereto, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as administrative 
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 15, 2018). 

   
10.51 

 

Credit Agreement, dated May 21, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, as Parent, each subsidiary of the Borrower party thereto, The Lenders from time to time party 
thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed May 25, 2018). 

   
10.52+ 

 

New Lender Supplement dated as of November 9, 2018 to the Credit Agreement dated as of May 21, 2018, 
among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware 
corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
Administrative Agent. 
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Exhibit 
Number  Description 

10.53+ 

 

Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 18, 2018 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 21, 2018,, 
among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware 
corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
Administrative Agent. 

   
10.54† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and Matthew R. 
Zaist, dated as of January 18, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed January 23, 2019). 

   
10.55† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William H. 
Lyon, dated as of January 18, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed January 23, 2019). 

   
12.1+ 

 
Statement Regarding the Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for the Years Ended December 
31, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014. 

   
21.1+  List of Subsidiaries of the Company. 

   
23.1+  Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

   
31.1+ 

 
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended 

   
31.2+ 

 
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended 

   
32.1* 

 
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

   
32.2* 

 
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

   
101.INS* **  XBRL Instance Document 

   
101.SCH* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 

   
101.CAL* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 

   
101.DEF* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 

   
101.LAB* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 

   
101.PRE* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  
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+ Filed herewith 
  
† Management contract or compensatory agreement 
  
* The information in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor 
shall they be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the 
Exchange Act (including this Report), unless the Registrant specifically incorporates the foregoing information into 
those documents by reference. 

  
** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the XBRL information will not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and will not be deemed filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus 
for purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, or otherwise subject to liability under those Sections. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly 
caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City 
of Newport Beach, State of California, on the 28th day of February, 2019. 
 

 WILLIAM LYON HOMES, 
 a Delaware corporation 
   
 By: /s/ Matthew R. Zaist 
  Matthew R. Zaist 
  President & Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed by the following 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
William Lyon Homes, Inc.: 
 
 
Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of William Lyon Homes, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) 
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of operations, equity, and cash flows for each of the 
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial 
statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) 
(PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 28, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the 
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws 
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such 
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
/s/ KPMG LLP 
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2012. 
 
Irvine, California 
February 28, 2019 
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WILLIAM LYON HOMES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands except number of shares and par value per share) 

 December 31, 

 2018  2017 
ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents — Note 1 $ 33,779   $ 182,710 
Receivables 13,502  10,223 
Escrow proceeds receivable —  3,319 
Real estate inventories —  Note 6    

Owned 2,333,207  1,699,850 
Not owned —  Note 16 315,576  — 

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures - Note 4 5,542  7,867 
Goodwill — Note 7 123,695  66,902 
Intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of $4,640 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 — Note 8 6,700  6,700 
Deferred income taxes — Note 12 47,241  47,915 
Lease right-of-use assets 13,561  14,454 
Other assets, net 36,971  21,164 

Total assets $ 2,929,774   $ 2,061,104 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Accounts payable $ 128,371   $ 58,799 
Accrued expenses 150,155  111,491 
Liabilities from inventories not owned — Note 16 315,576  — 
Notes payable — Note 9:    

Revolving credit facility 45,000  — 
Seller financing —  589 
Construction notes payable 1,231  — 
Joint venture notes payable 151,788  93,926 

5 3/4% Senior Notes due April 15, 2019 — Note 9 —  149,362 
7% Senior Notes due August 15, 2022 — Note 9 347,456  346,740 
6% Senior Notes due September 1, 2023 — Note 9 343,878  — 
5 7/8% Senior Notes due January 31, 2025 — Note 9 431,992  439,567 
 1,915,447  1,200,474 
Commitments and contingencies — Note 16    
Equity:    

William Lyon Homes stockholders’ equity — Note 14    
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized and no shares issued and 
outstanding at December 31, 2018 and 2017 —

 
 —

 

Common stock, Class A, par value $0.01 per share; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 33,904,972 and 
34,267,510 shares issued, 32,690,378 and 33,135,650 shares outstanding at December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively 339

 
 344

 

Common stock, Class B, par value $0.01 per share; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 4,817,394 shares issued 
and outstanding at December 31, 2018 and 2017 48

 
 48

 

Additional paid-in capital 445,545  454,286 
Retained earnings 417,390  325,794 

Total William Lyon Homes stockholders’ equity 863,322  780,472 
Noncontrolling interests — Note 3 151,005  80,158 

Total equity 1,014,327  860,630 
Total liabilities and equity $ 2,929,774   $ 2,061,104 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(in thousands except number of shares and per share data) 

 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

Operating revenue      
Home sales $ 2,081,721  $ 1,795,074  $ 1,402,203 
Construction services 5,450  1,454  3,837 

 2,087,171  1,796,528  1,406,040 
Operating costs      

Cost of sales — homes (1,703,298)  (1,478,549)  (1,162,337) 
Construction services (5,146)  (1,317)  (3,485) 
Sales and marketing (114,495)  (86,226)  (72,509) 
General and administrative (119,272)  (90,206)  (73,398) 
Transaction expenses (3,907)  —  — 
Other (2,148)  (2,274)  (343) 

 (1,948,266)  (1,658,572)  (1,312,072) 
Operating income 138,905  137,956  93,968 
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures 3,118  3,661  5,606 
Other income, net 2,715  895  3,243 
Income before extinguishment of debt 144,738  142,512  102,817 
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt 1,015  (21,828)  — 
Income before provision for income taxes 145,753  120,684  102,817 
Provision for income taxes — Note 12 (30,620)  (62,933)  (34,850) 

Net income 115,133  57,751  67,967 
Less: Net income attributable to 
noncontrolling interests (23,537)  (9,616)  (8,271) 

Net income available to common stockholders 91,596  48,135  59,696 
Income per common share:      
     Basic $ 2.42  $ 1.30  $ 1.62 
     Diluted $ 2.32  $ 1.24  $ 1.55 
Weighted average common shares outstanding:      
     Basic 37,832,073  37,040,137  36,764,799 
     Diluted 39,419,059  38,663,667  38,474,900 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY 
(in thousands except number of shares and per share data) 

 

 William Lyon Homes Stockholders  

Non- 
Controlling 

Interest 

 

Total 

 Common Stock  Additional 
Paid-In 
Capital 

 Retained 
Earnings 

  

 Shares  Amount     
Balance — January 1, 2016 32,178  $ 322  $ 413,810  $ 217,963  $ 39,374  $ 671,469 
Net income —  —  —  59,696  8,271  67,967 
Cash contributions from members of 
consolidated entities —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 38,334

 
 38,334

 

Cash distributions to members of consolidated 
entities —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 (19,636)  (19,636) 

Shares remitted to Company to satisfy employee 
personal income tax liabilities resulting from 
share based compensation plans (82)  (1)  (941)  —

 
 —

 
 (942) 

Stock based compensation 628  7  6,412  —  —  6,419 
Reversal of excess income tax benefit from 
stock based awards —

 
 —

 
 (182)  —

 
 —

 
 (182) 

Balance — December 31, 2016 32,724  $ 328  $ 419,099  $ 277,659  $ 66,343  $ 763,429 
Net income —  —  —  48,135  9,616  57,751 
Cash contributions from members of 
consolidated entities —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 66,712

 
 66,712

 

Cash distributions to members of consolidated 
entities —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 (62,513)  (62,513) 

Repurchases of common stock (138)  (1)  (3,111)  —  —  (3,112) 
Shares remitted to Company to satisfy employee 
personal income tax liabilities resulting from 
share based compensation plans (79)  (1)  (1,543)  —

 
 —

 
 (1,544) 

Stock based compensation 461  5  10,057  —  —  10,062 
Settlement of Tangible Equity Units ("TEUs") 5,113  51  (114)  —  —  (63) 
Issuance of Class B common stock 1,004  10  29,898  —  —  29,908 
Balance - December 31, 2017 39,085  $ 392  $ 454,286  $ 325,794  $ 80,158  $ 860,630 
Net income —  —  —  91,596  23,537  115,133 
Cash contributions from members of 
consolidated entities —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 131,267

 
 131,267

 

Cash distributions to members of consolidated 
entities —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 (83,957)  (83,957) 

Repurchases of common stock (782)  (8)  (15,358)  —  —  (15,366) 
Shares remitted to Company to satisfy employee 
personal income tax liabilities resulting from 
share based compensation plans (198)  (2)  (4,952)  —

 
 —

 
 (4,954) 

Stock based compensation 585  5  11,293  —  —  11,298 
Stock options exercised 32  —  276  —  —  276 
Balance - December 31, 2018 38,722  $ 387  $ 445,545  $ 417,390  $ 151,005  1,014,327 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(in thousands) 
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Year Ended December 31, 

2018  2017  2016 

      
Operating activities:      

Net income $ 115,133  $ 57,751  $ 67,967 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 
operating activities:      

Depreciation and amortization 7,699  1,962  2,006 

Stock based compensation expense 11,298  10,062  6,419 

Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures (3,118)  (3,661)  (5,606) 
Distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures 5,439  3,085  3,725 

Net change in deferred income taxes 674  27,836  3,975 

(Gain) Loss on extinguishment of debt (1,015)  21,828  — 

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:      
Receivables (1,524)  (694)  (876) 
Escrow proceeds receivable 3,319  (3,234)  2,956 

Real estate inventories — owned (199,409)  52,913  (69,598) 
Other assets, net (2,448)  (2,158)  2,367 

Accounts payable 60,257  (15,483)  (1,599) 
Accrued expenses 31,298  17,247  9,466 

Net cash provided by operating activities 27,603  167,454  21,202 
      

Investing activities:      
Cash paid for acquisitions, net (479,328)  —  — 

Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable —  —  6,188 

Purchases of property and equipment (7,359)  (4,300)  (1,029) 
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (486,687)  (4,300)  5,159 
      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      



WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
(in thousands) 
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Year Ended December 31, 

2018  2017  2016 

      
Financing activities:      

Proceeds from borrowings on notes payable 183,894  134,061  139,783 

Principal payments on notes payable (127,105)  (142,211)  (147,887) 
Proceeds from issuance of 6% Senior Notes 350,000  —  — 

Redemption premium of 8.5% Senior Notes —  (19,645)  — 

Principal payments of 8.5% Senior Notes —  (425,000)  — 

Proceeds from issuance of 5.875% Senior Notes —  446,468  — 

Principal payments on 5.75% Senior Notes (150,000)  —  — 

Proceeds from borrowings on revolver 492,446  346,121  258,000 

Payments on revolver (447,446)  (375,121)  (294,000) 
Principal payments on subordinated amortizing notes —  (7,225)  (6,841) 
Proceeds from stock options exercised 276  —  — 

Principal payments on 5 7/8% Senior Notes (8,125)  —  — 

Proceeds from issuance of Class B Shares —  29,908  — 

Costs related to settlement of TEUs —  (63)  — 

Shares remitted to, or withheld by the Company for employee 
tax withholding (4,954)  (1,544)  (942) 
Payments to repurchase common stock (15,366)  (3,112)  — 

Excess income tax benefit from stock based awards —  —  (182) 
Payment of deferred loan costs (10,777)  (9,892)  (1,085) 
Cash contributions from members of consolidated entities 131,267  66,712  38,334 

Cash distributions to members of consolidated entities (83,957)  (62,513)  (19,636) 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 310,153  (23,056)  (34,456) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted 
cash (148,931)  140,098

 
 (8,095) 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash — beginning of period 182,710  42,612  50,707 

Cash and cash equivalents — end of period $ 33,779  $ 182,710  $ 42,612 

Supplemental disclosures:      
Cash paid for taxes $ 24,388  $ 35,761  $ 16,540 

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing 
activities:      

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating 
lease liabilities $ 6,495

 
 $ 5,925

 
 $ 1,353

 

Notes payable issued in conjunction with land acquisitions $ —  $ —  $ 24,692 

Accrued deferred loan costs $ 15  $ —  $ — 

Inventory reclassified to Other assets upon adoption of ASC 
606 $ 5,365

 
 $ —

 
 $ —

 

Non-cash additions to Real estate inventories - not owned and 
Liabilities from inventories not owned $ 121,303

 
 $ —

 
 $ —

 

 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies 

Operations 

William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation (“Parent” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), is primarily 
engaged in designing, constructing and selling single family detached and attached homes in California, Arizona, Nevada, 
Colorado, Washington (under the Polygon Northwest brand), Oregon (under the Polygon Northwest brand) and Texas. 

Basis of Presentation 

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities as of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 and revenues and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. The significant accounting policies using estimates include real estate 
inventories and cost of sales, impairment of real estate inventories, warranty reserves, loss contingencies, accounting for 
variable interest entities, business combinations, and valuation of deferred tax assets. The current economic environment 
increases the uncertainty inherent in these estimates and assumptions. 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all majority-owned and controlled 
subsidiaries and joint ventures, and certain joint ventures and other entities which have been determined to be variable interest 
entities in which the Company is considered the primary beneficiary (see Note 3). The accounting policies of the joint ventures 
are substantially the same as those of the Company. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. Also, refer to the discussion under Revenue Recognition and Change in Accounting Principle 
below regarding the adoption of the new standard for revenue recognition. 

Revenue Recognition 

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2014-09, "Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09” or “ASC 606”). Refer to Change in Accounting Principle below for further details 
regarding the adoption. 

Home Sales 

Prior to January 1, 2018, under Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification 
("ASC") 605, "Revenue Recognition" ("ASC 605"), revenue was recorded when a sale was consummated, the buyer’s initial 
and continuing investments were adequate, any receivables were not subject to future subordination, and the usual risks and 
rewards of ownership had transferred to the buyer. Effective January 1, 2018, upon adoption of ASC 606, revenue is recorded 
upon the close of escrow, at which point home sales are considered in the scope of a contract. Accordingly, the Company does 
not record homebuilding revenue for performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied. No revenue was 
recorded in the 2018 period that did not result from current period performance. 

Construction Services 

The Company accounted for construction management agreements using the Percentage of Completion Method in 
accordance with ASC 605 (prior to January 1, 2018) and ASC 606 (subsequent to January 1, 2018). Under ASC 605 and ASC 
606, the Company records revenues and expenses as a contracted project progresses, and based on the percentage of costs 
incurred to date compared to the total estimated costs of the contract. The Company entered into construction management 
agreements to build, sell and market homes in certain communities. For such services, the Company will receive fees 
(generally 3 to 5 percent of the sales price, as defined) and may, under certain circumstances, receive additional compensation if 
certain financial thresholds are achieved. 
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Real Estate Inventories 

Real estate inventories are carried at cost net of impairment losses, if any. Real estate inventories consist primarily of land 
deposits, land and land under development, homes completed and under construction, and model homes. All direct and indirect 
land costs, offsite and onsite improvements and applicable interest and other carrying charges are capitalized to real estate 
projects during periods when the project is under development. Land, offsite costs and all other common costs are allocated to 
land parcels benefited based upon relative fair values before construction. Onsite construction costs and related carrying 
charges (principally interest and property taxes) are allocated to the individual homes within a phase based upon the relative 
sales value of the homes. The Company relieves its accumulated real estate inventories through cost of sales for the estimated 
cost of homes sold. Selling expenses and other marketing costs are expensed in the period incurred.  From time to time the 
Company sells land to third parties. The Company does not consider these sales to be core to its homebuilding business, and 
any gain or loss recognized on these transactions is recorded in other non-operating income. For the years ended December 31, 
2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company had seven, four, and five land parcel sales, respectively, that resulted in a $1.9 million gain, 
$0.8 million gain and $3.6 million gain, respectively. 

The Company accounts for its real estate inventories under FASB ASC 360 Property, Plant, & Equipment (“ASC 360”).  
ASC 360 requires impairment losses to be recorded on real estate inventories when indicators of impairment are present and the 
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by real estate inventories are less than the carrying amount of such assets. 
Indicators of impairment include a decrease in demand for housing due to softening market conditions, competitive pricing 
pressures, which reduce the average sales price of homes including an increase in sales incentives offered to buyers, slowing 
sales absorption rates (calculated as net new home orders divided by average sales locations for a given period), decreases in 
home values in the markets in which the Company operates, significant decreases in gross margins and a decrease in project 
cash flows for a particular project. 

For land, construction in progress and completed inventory, including model homes, the Company estimates expected 
cash flows at the project level by maintaining current budgets using recent historical information and current market 
assumptions. The Company updates project budgets and cash flows of each real estate project on an as needed basis to 
determine whether the estimated remaining undiscounted future cash flows of the project are more or less than the carrying 
amount (net book value) of the asset. If the undiscounted cash flows are more than the net book value of the project, then there 
is no impairment. If the undiscounted cash flows are less than the net book value of the asset, then the asset is deemed to be 
impaired and is written-down to its fair value. 

Fair value represents the amount at which an asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties 
(i.e., other than a forced or liquidation sale). Management determines the estimated fair value of each project by determining 
the present value of estimated future cash flows at discount rates that are commensurate with the risk of each project and each 
domain, market or sub-market or may use recent appraisals if they more accurately reflect fair value. The estimation process 
involved in determining if assets have been impaired and in the determination of fair value is inherently uncertain because it 
requires estimates of future revenues and costs, as well as future events and conditions. Estimates of revenues and costs are 
supported by the Company’s budgeting process, and are based on recent sales in backlog, pricing required to get the desired 
pace of sales, pricing of competitive projects, incentives offered by competitors and current estimates of costs of development 
and construction or current appraisals. 

The assumptions and judgments used by the Company in the estimation process to determine the future undiscounted 
cash flows of a project and its fair value are inherently uncertain and require a substantial degree of judgment. The realization 
of the Company’s real estate inventories is dependent upon future uncertain events and market conditions. Due to the subjective 
nature of the estimates and assumptions used in determining the future cash flows of a project, actual results could differ 
materially from current estimates. 

Management assesses land deposits for impairment when estimated land values are deemed to be less than the agreed 
upon contract price. The Company considers changes in market conditions, the timing of land purchases, the ability to 



 

F-10 

renegotiate with land sellers, the terms of the land option contracts in question, the availability and best use of capital, and other 
factors. The Company records abandoned land deposits and related pre-acquisition costs in cost of sales-lots, land and other in 
the consolidated statements of operations in the period that it is abandoned. 

A provision for warranty costs relating to the Company’s limited warranty plans is included in cost of sales and accrued 
expenses at the time the sale of a home is recorded. The Company generally reserves a percent of the sales price of its homes, or 
a set amount per home closed depending on operating segment, against the possibility of future charges relating to its warranty 
programs and similar potential claims. Factors that affect the Company’s warranty liability include the number of homes under 
warranty, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims, and cost per claim. The Company periodically assesses the 
adequacy of its recorded warranty liability and adjusts the amounts as necessary. Changes in the Company’s warranty liability 
for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2018  

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017  

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016 

Warranty liability, beginning of period $ 13,643  $ 14,173  $ 18,117 
Warranty provision during period 12,520  9,822  8,237 

Warranty payments, net of insurance recoveries during period (13,197)  (10,497)  (12,334) 
Warranty charges related to construction services projects 34  145  153 

     Warranty liability, end of period $ 13,000  $ 13,643  $ 14,173 

Interest incurred under the Company’s debt obligations, as more fully discussed in Note 9, is capitalized to qualifying real 
estate projects under development. Any additional interest charges related to real estate projects not under development are 
expensed in the period incurred. Interest activity for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 are as follows (in 
thousands): 
 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2018 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017  

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016   

Interest incurred $ 92,077  $ 73,729  $ 83,218 
Less: Interest capitalized (92,077)  (73,729)  (83,218) 
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized $ —  $ —  $ — 

Cash paid for interest $ 82,129  $ 62,679  $ 79,734 

Construction Services 

The Company accounted for construction management agreements using the Percentage of Completion Method in 
accordance with ASC 605 (prior to January 1, 2018) and ASC 606 (subsequent to January 1, 2018). Under ASC 605 and ASC 
606, the Company records revenues and expenses as a contracted project progresses, and based on the percentage of costs 
incurred to date compared to the total estimated costs of the contract. 

The Company entered into construction management agreements to build, sell and market homes in certain communities. 
For such services, the Company will receive fees (generally 3 to 5 percent of the sales price, as defined) and may, under certain 
circumstances, receive additional compensation if certain financial thresholds are achieved. 

Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are primarily cash investments, 
receivables, escrow proceeds receivable, our indebtedness, and deposits. The Company typically places its cash investments in 
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investment grade short-term instruments. Deposits, included in other assets, are due from municipalities or utility companies 
and are generally collected from such entities through fees assessed to other developers. The Company is an issuer of, or subject 
to, financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business which exposes it to credit risks. These 
financial instruments include letters of credit and obligations in connection with assessment district bonds. These off-balance 
sheet financial instruments are described in more detail in Note 16. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents. The 
Company’s cash and cash equivalents balance exceeds federally insurable limits as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. The 
Company monitors the cash balances in its operating accounts; however, these cash balances could be negatively impacted if 
the underlying financial institutions fail or are subject to other adverse conditions in the financial markets. To date, the 
Company has experienced no loss or lack of access to cash in its operating accounts. 

 

 

Goodwill 

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 350, Intangibles, Goodwill and Other, goodwill is tested for impairment on an 
annual basis, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill may be impaired. The impairment test is 
performed at the reporting unit level, and an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill 
exceeds the fair value. The Company has determined that we have seven reporting segments, as discussed in Note 5, and will 
perform an annual goodwill impairment analysis during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. 

Intangible Assets 

Recorded intangible assets primarily relate to brand names of acquired entities, homes in backlog, and joint venture 
management fee contracts recorded in conjunction with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations ("ASC 805"). All 
intangible assets with the exception of those relating to brand names were valued based on expected cash flows related to home 
closings, and the asset is amortized on a per unit basis, as homes under the contracts close.  Our brand name intangible assets 
are deemed to have an indefinite useful life. 

Income per common share 

The Company computes income per common share in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share, which 
requires income per common share for each class of stock to be calculated using the two-class method. The two-class method is 
an allocation of income between the holders of common stock and a company’s participating security holders. 
 

Basic income per common share is computed by dividing income or loss available to common stockholders by the 
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. For purposes of determining diluted income per common 
share, basic income per common share is further adjusted to include the effect of potential dilutive common shares outstanding. 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes are accounted for under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board ASC 740, Income Taxes, 
using an asset and liability approach. Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes, and 
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards measured by applying currently enacted tax laws. A valuation allowance would be 
provided to reduce net deferred tax assets if it were determined that it is more likely than not to be realized. ASC 740 prescribes 
a recognition threshold and a measurement criterion for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions 
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be considered “more-



 

F-12 

likely-than-not” to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. In addition, the Company has elected to recognize 
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in the income tax provision. 

Comprehensive Income or Loss 

The Company had no other transactions or activity, other than net income or loss, that would be considered as part of 
comprehensive income or loss. 

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-15, “Statement of 
Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments” (“ASU 2016-15”). ASU 2016-15 
provides guidance on how certain cash receipts and cash payments are to be presented and classified in the statement of cash 
flows. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements or 
notes to its consolidated financial statements. 

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2016-18, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted 
Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force)" (“ASU 2016-18”). ASU 2016-18 requires restricted cash to be 
included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning and ending amounts on the statement of cash flows. 
The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements or notes to its 
consolidated financial statements. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

The Company adopted ASC 606 with a date of initial application of January 1, 2018. The Company applied ASC 606 
using the cumulative effect method - i.e. by recognizing the cumulative effect of initially applying ASC 606 as an adjustment to 
the opening balance of equity at January 1, 2018. Therefore, the comparative information has not been adjusted and continues 
to be reported under ASC 605. 

ASC 606 replaced the guidance for costs incurred to sell real estate with new guidance codified under ASC 340-
40, “Other Assets and Deferred Costs - Contracts with Customers”. The Company previously capitalized certain marketing 
costs related to model homes and sales offices within Real estate inventories in the balance sheet; however, effective January 1, 
2018, the Company capitalized these costs within Other Assets. The method of amortization of these costs is the same under 
ASC 606 as per the previous guidance, resulting in no adjustment to the Company's retained earnings or equity for the 
comparative period. However, under ASC 606, amortization is included in Sales and marketing expense, whereas amortization 
was previously recorded in Cost of sales - homes in the statement of operations. 

The adoption of ASC 606 did not have an impact on the amount or timing of the Company's homebuilding revenues. As 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, the adoption of ASC 606 did not have a material impact on the Company's 
balance sheet, net income, stockholders' equity or statement of cash flows. 

Reclassifications 

Certain balances on the financial statements and certain amounts presented in the notes have been reclassified in order to 
conform to current year presentation. 

 
Note 2—Acquisition of RSI Communities 

On March 9, 2018, the Company completed its acquisition of RSI Communities, a Southern California- and Texas-based 
homebuilder, pursuant to the Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated February 19, 2018 among 
California Lyon, RSI Communities, RS Equity Management L.L.C., Class B Sellers of RSI Communities, and RS Equity 
Management L.L.C. as the sellers’ representative, and its acquisition of three additional related real estate assets (the “Legacy 
Assets”) pursuant to each of the separate asset purchase agreements with each of RG Onion Creek, LLC, RSI Trails at Leander 
LLC and RSI Prado LLC (collectively referred to herein as "RSI Communities"), for an aggregate cash purchase price 
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of $479.3 million, which is inclusive of approximately $15.2 million of net asset related adjustments at closing (collectively, the 
"RSI Acquisition") . Part of the acquired entities specific to the Southern California region now operate under the Company’s 
existing California segment. The remaining acquired entities now operate as a new segment of the Company in Texas, with core 
markets of Austin and San Antonio. 

The Company financed the RSI Acquisition with a combination of proceeds from its issuance of $350 million in 
aggregate principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2023, cash on hand, and approximately $194.3 million of aggregate 
proceeds from a land banking arrangement with respect to land parcels in various stages of development. 

As a result of the RSI Acquisition, the entities comprising the business of RSI Communities became wholly-owned direct 
or indirect subsidiaries of the Company, and its results are included in our condensed consolidated financial statements and 
related disclosures from the date of the RSI Acquisition. For the period from March 9, 2018 through December 31, 2018, home 
deliveries from RSI operations were 988 units. In addition, operating revenue and income before provision for income taxes for 
the same period were $311.9 million and $10.7 million, respectively. 

The RSI Acquisition was accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805. Under ASC 805, the 
Company recorded the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of RSI Communities at their estimated fair values, with the 
excess allocated to Goodwill, as shown below. Goodwill represents the value the Company expects to achieve through the 
operational synergies and the expansion of the Company into new markets. The Company estimates that the entire $56.8 
million of goodwill resulting from the RSI Acquisition will be tax deductible. Goodwill will be allocated to the California and 
Texas operating segments (see Note 7). A reconciliation of the consideration transferred as of the acquisition date is as follows: 

Net proceeds received from RSI inventory involved in land banking transactions $ 194,131 
Issuance of 6.00% Senior Notes due September 1, 2023 190,437 
Cash on hand 94,760 

 $ 479,328 

The Company completed its final estimate of the fair value of the net assets of RSI Communities during December 2018. 
The following table summarizes the amounts for acquired assets and liabilities recorded at their fair values as of the acquisition 
date (in thousands): 

Assets Acquired  
 Real estate inventories $ 434,628 
 Goodwill 56,793 
 Other 7,771 

 Total Assets $ 499,192 
   
Liabilities Assumed  
 Accounts payable $ 9,315 
 Accrued expenses 8,244 
 Notes payable 2,305 

 Total liabilities 19,864 
 Net assets acquired $ 479,328 

The Company determined the fair value of real estate inventories on a project level basis using a combination of 
discounted cash flow models, and market comparable land transactions, where available. These methods are significantly 
impacted by estimates relating to i) expected selling prices, ii) anticipated sales pace, iii) cost to complete estimates, iv) highest 
and best use of projects prior to acquisition, and v) comparable land values. These estimates were developed and used at the 
individual project level, and may vary significantly between projects. 

Other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses and notes payable were generally stated at historical value due to the 
short-term nature of these liabilities. 
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The Company recorded $3.9 million in acquisition related costs for the year ended December 31, 2018, which are 
included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations in Transaction expenses. Such costs were expensed as 
incurred in accordance with ASC 805. There were no acquisition related costs incurred during the years ended December 31, 
2017 or December 31, 2016. 

 
Supplemental Pro Forma Information 

The following table presents unaudited pro forma amounts for the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 
2017 as if the RSI Acquisition, had been completed as of January 1, 2017 (amounts in thousands, except per share data): 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2018  2017 

 (unaudited)   
Operating revenues $ 2,127,606  $ 1,921,235 

Net income available to common stockholders $ 91,278  $ 50,654 

Income per share - basic $ 2.41  $ 1.37 

Income per share - diluted $ 2.32  $ 1.31 

The unaudited pro forma operating results have been determined after adjusting the audited operating results of RSI 
Communities, excluding the Legacy Assets, but including acquisition costs, to reflect the estimated purchase accounting and 
other acquisition adjustments. The unaudited pro forma results presented above do not reflect any cost savings, operating 
synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may achieve as a result of the acquired entity, the costs to 
combine the operations of the Company and the acquired entity or the costs necessary to achieve any of the foregoing cost 
savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements. As such, the unaudited pro forma amounts are for comparative purposes 
only and may not necessarily reflect the results of operations which would have resulted had the acquisition been completed at 
the beginning of the applicable period or indicative of the results that will be attained in the future. 
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Note 3—Variable Interest Entities and Noncontrolling Interests 

The Company accounts for variable interest entities in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”). Under 
ASC 810, a variable interest entity (“VIE”) is created when: (a) the equity investment at risk in the entity is not sufficient to 
permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support provided by other parties, including 
the equity holders; (b) the entity’s equity holders as a group either (i) lack the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about 
the entity, (ii) are not obligated to absorb expected losses of the entity or (iii) do not have the right to receive expected residual 
returns of the entity; or (c) the entity’s equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic interests, 
and the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf of the equity holder with disproportionately few voting rights. 
If an entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to ASC 810, the enterprise that has both (i) the power to direct the activities of a 
VIE that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of 
the entity or right to receive benefits from the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE is considered the primary 
beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE. In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing reassessments of whether an 
enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. 

Joint Ventures 

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had twenty and thirteen joint ventures, respectively, which were 
deemed to be VIEs under ASC 810 for which the Company is considered the primary beneficiary. The Company manages the 
joint ventures, by using its sales, development and operations teams and has significant control over these projects and therefore 
the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the joint venture’s performance, in addition to being obligated to 
absorb expected losses or receive benefits from the joint venture, and therefore the Company is deemed to be the primary 
beneficiary of these VIEs. 

These joint ventures are each engaged in homebuilding and land development activities. Certain of these joint ventures 
have not obtained construction financing from outside lenders, but are financing their activities through equity contributions 
from each of the joint venture partners. The Company has no rights and limited obligations with respect to the liabilities of the 
VIEs, and none of the Company’s assets serve as collateral for the creditors of these VIEs. The assets of the joint ventures are 
the sole collateral for the liabilities of the joint ventures and as such, the creditors and equity investors of these joint ventures 
have no recourse to assets of the Company held outside of these joint ventures. The liabilities of each VIE are restricted to the 
assets of each VIE. Additionally, the creditors of the Company have no access to the assets of the VIEs. Income allocations and 
cash distributions to the Company are based on predetermined formulas between the Company and their joint venture partners 
as specified in the applicable partnership or operating agreements. The Company generally receives, after partners’ priority 
returns and return of partners’ capital, approximately 50% of the profits and cash flows from the joint ventures. 

As of December 31, 2018, the assets of the consolidated VIEs totaled $434.8 million, of which $9.0 million was cash and 
$422.7 million was real estate inventories. The liabilities of the consolidated VIEs totaled $209.4 million, primarily comprised 
of notes payable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

As of December 31, 2017, the assets of the consolidated VIEs totaled $244.7 million, of which $10.7 million was cash 
and $230.8 million was real estate inventories. The liabilities of the consolidated VIEs totaled $124.5 million, primarily 
comprised of notes payable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

Note 4—Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 

The table set forth below has been derived from the summarized financial information of our unconsolidated mortgage 
joint ventures and summarizes their combined statements of operations that we accounted for under the equity method (in 
thousands): 
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 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2018 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016    
Revenues $ 17,920  $ 20,003  $ 21,156 
Cost of sales (11,797)  (11,913)  (10,407) 
Income of unconsolidated joint ventures $ 6,123  $ 8,090  $ 10,749 

 

Income from unconsolidated joint ventures reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations 
represents our share of the income of our unconsolidated mortgage joint ventures, which is allocated based on the provisions of 
the underlying joint venture operating agreements less any additional impairments recorded against our investments in joint 
ventures which we do not deem recoverable.  For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recorded 
income of $3.1 million, $3.7 million and $5.6 million, respectively, from its unconsolidated joint ventures.  This income was 
primarily attributable to our share of income related to mortgages that were generated and issued to qualifying home buyers 
during the periods. 

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, all of our unconsolidated joint ventures were reviewed for 
impairment.  Based on the impairment review, no investments in joint ventures were determined to be impaired. 

The table set forth below has been derived from the summarized financial information of our unconsolidated mortgage 
joint ventures and summarizes their combined balance sheets that we accounted for under the equity method (in thousands): 

    December 31, 

    2018  2017 

Assets     
 Cash  $ 8,093  $ 12,802 

 Loans held for sale  27,958  17,106 

 Accounts receivable  884  2,791 

 Other assets  115  128 

  Total Assets  $ 37,050  $ 32,827 

       
Liabilities and Equity     
 Accounts payable  $ 700  $ 779 

 Accrued expenses  1,988  1,532 

 Credit lines payable  26,775  18,312 

 Other liabilities  49  31 

 Members equity  7,538  12,173 

  Total Liabilities and Equity  $ 37,050  $ 32,827 

 

Note 5—Segment Information 

The Company operates one principal homebuilding business.  Operating segments are defined as components of an 
enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-
maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s President and Chief Executive 
Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Company’s chief operating decision maker directs the 
allocation of resources to operating segments based on the profitability and cash flows of each respective segment. 

The Company’s homebuilding operations design, construct and sell a wide range of homes designed to meet the specific 
needs in each of its markets.  As such, in accordance with the aggregation criteria defined by FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment 
Reporting (“ASC 280”), the Company’s homebuilding operating segments have been grouped into seven reportable segments: 
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California, consisting of operations in Orange, Los Angeles, San Diego, Alameda, Contra Costa, Santa Clara, 
Riverside and San Bernardino counties. 

Arizona, consisting of operations in the Phoenix, Arizona metropolitan area. 

Nevada, consisting of operations in the Las Vegas, Nevada metropolitan area. 

Colorado, consisting of operations in the Denver, Colorado metropolitan area. 

Washington, consisting of operations in the Seattle, Washington metropolitan area. 

Oregon, consisting of operations in the Portland, Oregon metropolitan area. 

Texas, consisting of operations in the Austin, Texas and San Antonio, Texas metropolitan areas. 

Corporate develops and implements strategic initiatives and supports the Company’s operating segments by centralizing 
key administrative functions such as finance and treasury, information technology, risk management and litigation and human 
resources. 

Segment financial information relating to the Company’s operations was as follows (in thousands): 
 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2018
 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017
 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016 
Operating revenue:      

California (1) $ 786,801  $ 682,896  $ 494,189 

Arizona 136,910  158,534  125,951 

Nevada 214,237  176,354  191,711 

Colorado 226,524  124,456  128,530 

Washington (2) 316,561  333,667  154,600 

Oregon 247,878  320,621  311,059 

Texas 158,260  —  — 

Total operating revenue $ 2,087,171  $ 1,796,528  $ 1,406,040 

 
(1) Operating revenue in the California segment includes construction services revenue in the periods ended December 31, 2017 
and December 31, 2016. 
(2) Operating revenue in the Washington segment includes construction services revenue in the period ended December 31, 
2018. 
 



WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

 

F-18 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2018
 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2017
 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016 
Income before provision from income taxes:      

California $ 77,356  $ 88,422  $ 47,692  

Arizona 16,943  14,832  12,004 

Nevada 27,331  15,672  19,182 

Colorado 23,011  7,156  6,978 

Washington 41,976  30,008  9,528 

Oregon 20,997  35,862  41,617 

Texas 4,367  —  — 

Corporate (67,243)  (49,440)  (34,184) 
Income before extinguishment of debt $ 144,738  $ 142,512  $ 102,817  

Corporate - Gain (loss) on extinguishment of 
debt 1,015

 
 (21,828)  —

 

Income before provision for income taxes $ 145,753  $ 120,684  $ 102,817  

 
 December 31,  December 31, 

 2018  2017 

Homebuilding assets:    
Owned:    

California $ 930,714   $ 631,649 
Arizona 168,507  170,634 
Nevada 189,363  211,202 
Colorado 149,450  149,183 
Washington 308,270  286,442 
Oregon 440,105  288,981 
Texas 234,093  — 
Corporate (1) 193,696  323,013 

 $ 2,614,198   $ 2,061,104 
Not Owned:    

California $ 91,849   $ — 
Arizona 114,858  — 
Washington 21,657  — 
Texas 87,212  — 

Total homebuilding assets $ 2,929,774   $ 2,061,104 

 
(1) Comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, deferred income taxes, and other assets. 
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Note 6—Real Estate Inventories 

Real estate inventories consist of the following (in thousands): 
 

 
December 31, 

2018 2017 

Real estate inventories:    
Land deposits $ 147,327  $ 51,833 
Land and land under development 660,151  495,114 
Finished lots 564,460  409,296 
Homes completed and under construction 839,316  646,198 
Model homes 121,953  97,409 

Total $ 2,333,207  $ 1,699,850 

Real estate inventories not owned (1):    
Other land options contracts — land banking arrangements $ 315,576  $ — 

 
(1) Represents the consolidation of land banking arrangements. Although the Company is not obligated to purchase the 
lots, based on certain factors, the Company has determined that it is economically compelled to purchase the lots in the 
land banking arrangements and thus, has consolidated the assets and liabilities associated with these land banks. 
Amounts are net of deposits. 

The Company accounts for its real estate inventories under ASC 360, which requires impairment losses to be recorded on 
real estate inventories when indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by 
real estate inventories are less than the carrying amount of such assets. 

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, the Company did not record any impairments to the value of 
its real estate inventories. 
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Note 7—Goodwill 

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had Goodwill of $123.7 million and $66.9 million, respectively. $14.2 
million at December 31, 2017 represents the excess of enterprise value upon emergence from bankruptcy over the fair value of 
net tangible and identifiable intangible assets as of February 24, 2012 and $46.7 million at December 31, 2017 represents 
Goodwill in relation to the acquisition of Polygon Northwest Homes. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company 
recorded $56.8 million of Goodwill in relation to the acquisition of RSI Communities (refer to Note 2 for further details relating 
to the acquisition of RSI Communities). 

Goodwill by operating segment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows (in thousands):  

 December 31, 

 2018  2017 

California $ 20,999  $ 6,801 
Arizona 5,951  5,951 
Nevada 1,457  1,457 
Colorado —  — 
Washington 31,200  31,200 
Oregon 21,493  21,493 
Texas 42,595  — 

        Total $ 123,695  $ 66,902 

 
Note 8—Intangibles 

The carrying value and accumulated amortization of intangible assets at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, by 
major intangible asset category, is as follows (in thousands): 
 

 December 31, 2018  December 31, 2017 

 
Carrying 

Value  
Accumulated 
Amortization  

Net Carrying 
Amount  

Carrying 
Value  

Accumulated 
Amortization  

Net Carrying 
Amount 

Brand Name - Polygon Northwest 
Homes $ 6,700

 
 $ —

 
 $ 6,700

 
 $ 6,700

 
 $ —

 
 $ 6,700

 

The Company evaluates indefinite lived intangible assets at least annually, or more frequently if events or circumstances 
exist that may indicate that the asset is impaired or that its life is finite. 
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Note 9—Senior Notes, Secured, and Unsecured Indebtedness 

The Company's senior notes, secured and unsecured indebtedness consists of the following (in thousands): 
 December 31, 

 2018  2017 

Notes payable:    
Revolving credit facility $ 45,000  $ — 

Seller financing —  589 

Construction notes payable 1,231  — 

Joint venture notes payable 151,788  93,926 

Total notes payable $ 198,019  $ 94,515 
    
Senior notes    

5 3/4% Senior Notes due April 15, 2019 $ —  149,362 

7% Senior Notes due August 15, 2022 347,456  346,740 

6% Senior Notes due September 1, 2023 343,878  — 

5 7/8% Senior Notes due January 31, 2025 431,992  439,567 

Total senior notes $ 1,123,326  $ 935,669 
    
Total Debt $ 1,321,345  $ 1,030,184 

The maturities of the Company's Notes payable, 7% Senior Notes, 6% Senior Notes and 5 7/8% Senior Notes are as 
follows as of December 31, 2018 (in thousands): 
 

Year Ended December 31,  

2019 $ 25,476 

2020 31,708 

2021 140,835 

2022 350,000 

2023 350,000 

Thereafter 440,860 

 $ 1,338,879 

 Maturities above exclude premium on the 7% Senior Notes of $0.6 million, discount on the 5 7/8% Senior Notes of 
$2.8 million, and deferred loan costs on the 7%, 6% and 5 7/8% Senior Notes in aggregate of $15.3 million as of December 31, 
2018. 

Notes Payable 

Revolving Credit Facility 

On May 21, 2018, California Lyon and Parent entered into a new credit agreement providing for an unsecured revolving 
credit facility of up to $325.0 million (the “New Facility”) with the lenders party thereto, which New Facility replaces the 
Company’s previous $170.0 million revolving credit facility, as described below. The New Facility will mature on May 21, 
2021, unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of the New Facility.  The New Facility contains an uncommitted accordion 
feature under which its aggregate principal amount can be increased to up to $500.0 million under certain circumstances, as 
well as a sublimit of $50.0 million for letters of credit. Effective as of November 9, 2018, California Lyon increased the size of 
the commitment under its revolving credit facility by $40.0 million to an aggregate total of $365.0 million, through entry into a 
new lender supplement as of such date. 
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On December 18, 2018, California Lyon, Parent and the lenders party thereto entered into an amendment to the New 
Facility, which amended the maximum leverage ratio to extend the timing of the gradual step-downs, such that the leverage 
ratio remained at 65% through and including December 30, 2018, decreased to 62.5% on the last day of the 2018 fiscal year 
through and including December 30, 2019, and further decreases to and remains at 60% on December 31, 2019 and thereafter. 
The amendment did not revise any of our other financial covenants thereunder. 

 The New Facility contains certain financial maintenance covenants, including (a) a minimum tangible net worth 
requirement of $556.4 million (which is subject to increase over time based on subsequent earnings and proceeds from equity 
offerings, as well as deferred tax assets to the extent included on the Company's financial statements), (b) a maximum leverage 
covenant that prohibits the leverage ratio (as defined therein) from exceeding 65% as of December 30, 2018, further decreased 
to 62.5% effective as of December 31, 2018 through and including December 30, 2019, and further decreases to and remains 
at 60% on December 31, 2019 and thereafter, and (c) a covenant requiring us to maintain either (i) an interest coverage ratio 
(EBITDA to interest incurred, as defined therein) of at least 1.50 to 1.00 or (ii) liquidity (as defined therein) of an amount not 
less than the greater of our consolidated interest incurred during the trailing 12 months and $50.0 million. Our compliance with 
these financial covenants is measured by calculations and metrics that are specifically defined or described by the terms of the 
New Facility and can differ in certain respects from comparable GAAP or other commonly used terms. The New Facility also 
contains customary events of default, subject to cure periods in certain circumstances, including: nonpayment of principal, 
interest and fees or other amounts; violation of covenants; inaccuracy of representations and warranties; cross default to certain 
other indebtedness; unpaid judgments; and certain bankruptcy and other insolvency events. The occurrence of any event of 
default could result in the termination of the commitments under the New Facility and permit the Lenders to accelerate payment 
on outstanding borrowings under the New Facility and require cash collateralization of outstanding letters of credit. If a change 
of control (as defined in the New Facility) occurs, the Lenders may terminate the commitments under the New Facility and 
require that the Borrower repay outstanding borrowings under the New Facility and cash collateralize outstanding letters of 
credit. Interest rates on borrowings generally will be based on either LIBOR or a base rate, plus the applicable spread. The 
Company was in compliance with all covenants under the New Facility as of December 31, 2018. 

 Borrowings under the New Facility, the availability of which is subject to a borrowing base formula, are required to be 
guaranteed by the Parent and certain of the Parent’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (such subsidiaries, the “Guarantors”), and may 
be used for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2018, the commitment fee on the unused portion of the New 
Facility accrues at an annual rate of 0.50%. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $45.0 million outstanding against the 
New Facility at an effective rate of 7.5%, as well as a letter of credit for $8.6 million. 

On July 1, 2016, California Lyon and Parent had entered into an amendment and restatement agreement pursuant to 
which its then existing credit agreement providing for a revolving credit facility was amended and restated in its entirety (the 
"Second Amended Facility"). As described above, the Second Amended Facility was replaced by the New Facility on May 21, 
2018. Previously, the Second Amended Facility had amended and restated the Company’s previous $130.0 million revolving 
credit facility and had provided for total lending commitments of $145.0 million, which had been scheduled to terminate 
on January 14, 2019 based on certain conditions, prior to the execution of the New Facility. In addition, the Second Amended 
Facility previously had an uncommitted accordion feature under which the Company could have increased the total principal 
amount up to a maximum aggregate of $200.0 million under certain circumstances, as well as a sublimit of $50.0 million for 
letters of credit. On November 28, 2017, California Lyon increased the size of the commitment under its Second Amended 
Facility by $25.0 million to an aggregate total of $170.0 million, through exercise of the facility’s accordion feature and entry 
into a new lender supplement as of such date. 

Pursuant to the Second Amended Facility, the maximum leverage ratio was 65% from June 30, 2016 through and 
including December 30, 2016, decreased to 62.5% on the last day of the 2016 fiscal year, remained at 62.5% from December 
31, 2016 through and including June 29, 2017, and was scheduled to further decrease to 60% on the last day of the second 
quarter of 2017 and to remain at 60% thereafter. On June 16, 2017, California Lyon, Parent and the lenders party thereto entered 
into an amendment to the Second Amended Facility, which amended the maximum leverage ratio to further extend the timing 
of the gradual step-downs, such that the leverage ratio remained at 62.5% through and including December 30, 2017, and 
decreased to 60% on the last day of the 2017 fiscal year and was scheduled to remain at 60% thereafter. On March 9, 2018, 
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California Lyon, Parent and the lenders party thereto entered into a third amendment to the Second Amended Facility, which 
temporarily increased the maximum leverage ratio, such that the leverage ratio remained at 60% through and including March 
30, 2018, and was scheduled to increase to 70% on March 31, 2018 through and including June 29, 2018. 

The Second Amended Facility previously contained certain financial maintenance covenants. The Company was in 
compliance with all covenants under the Second Amended Facility through its date of termination and replacement with the 
New Facility on May 21, 2018. 

Borrowings under the previous Second Amended Facility were required to be guaranteed by the Parent and certain of the 
Parent's wholly-owned subsidiaries, were secured by a pledge of all equity interests held by such guarantors, and may have 
been used for general corporate purposes. Interest rates on borrowings generally were based on either LIBOR or a base rate, 
plus the applicable spread. Through the date of termination of the Second Amended Facility, the commitment fee on the unused 
portion of the Second Amended Facility accrued at an annual rate of 0.50%. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had 
terminated the Second Amended Facility by entering into the New Facility. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had a letter 
of credit for $7.8 million but no outstanding balance against the previous Second Amended Facility. 

Seller Financing 

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company paid in full prior to maturity, along with all accrued interest to 
date, a note payable outstanding related to one land acquisition for which seller financing was provided. The note bore interest 
at a rate of 7% per annum and was secured by the underlying land. 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company paid in full upon maturity in August 2017 a note payable 
outstanding related to a land acquisition for which seller financing was provided. The note bore interest at a rate of 7% per 
annum and was secured by the underlying land. This note was entered into with a related party, which is described in more 
detail in Note 11. 

Joint Venture Notes Payable 
 
          The Company and certain of its consolidated joint ventures have entered into construction notes payable agreements.  
These loans will be repaid with proceeds from closings and are secured by the underlying projects.  The issuance date, facility 
size, maturity date and interest rate are listed in the table below as of December 31, 2018 (in millions): 

Issuance Date  Facility Size  Outstanding  Maturity  Current Rate  
May, 2018  $ 128.0  $ 79.4  May, 2021  5.75% (2) 

May, 2018  13.3  9.4  June, 2020  5.42% (3) 

July, 2017  66.2  38.7  February, 2021  5.50% (2) 

January, 2016  35.0  15.2  August, 2019  5.77% (1) 

November, 2015  14.2  9.1  May, 2019  6.50% (4) 

  $ 256.7  $ 151.8      

(1)  Loan bears interest at LIBOR +3.25%. 
(2)  Loan bears interest at the greatest of the prime rate, federal funds effective rate +1.0%, or LIBOR +1.0%. 
(3)  Loan bears interest at LIBOR +2.90%. 
(4) Loan bears interest at the prime rate +1.0%. 

In addition to the above, the Company had $1.2 million of construction notes payable outstanding related to projects that 
are wholly-owned by the Company. 

The joint venture notes payable contain certain financial maintenance covenants.  The Company was in compliance with 
all such covenants as of December 31, 2018. 
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 5 3/4% Senior Notes Due 2019 

          On March 31, 2014, California Lyon completed its offering of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2019 (the "5.75% Notes"), in an 
aggregate principal amount of $150 million. The 5.75% Notes were issued at 100% of their aggregate principal amount. 

         During the year ended December 31, 2018, Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from the offering 
of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023, as further described below, (i) together with cash generated from certain land banking 
arrangements, and cash on hand, to finance the RSI Acquisition and to pay related fees and expenses and (ii) to repay all of 
California Lyon's $150 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Notes such that the 5.75% Notes were satisfied and 
discharged prior to December 31, 2018. 

8 1/2% Senior Notes Due 2020 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from its private 
placement with registration rights of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2024, as further described below, to purchase $395.6 million of 
the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 8.5% Notes, pursuant to a cash tender offer and consent solicitation. 
Subsequently, the Company used the remaining proceeds, together with cash on hand, for the retirement of the remaining 
outstanding 8.5% Notes, such that the entire aggregate $425 million of previously outstanding 8.5% Notes are retired and 
extinguished as of December 31, 2017.  The Company incurred certain costs related to the early extinguishment of debt of the 
8.5% Notes during the period ended December 31, 2017 in an amount of $21.8 million, which is included in the Consolidated 
Statement of Operations as Loss on extinguishment of debt. 

7% Senior Notes Due 2022 

 On August 11, 2014, WLH PNW Finance Corp. (“Escrow Issuer”), completed its private placement with registration 
rights of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022 (the “initial 7.00% Notes”), in an aggregate principal amount of $300 million.  The 
initial 7.00% Notes were issued at 100% of their aggregate principal amount.  On August 12, 2014, in connection with the 
consummation of the Acquisition, Escrow Issuer merged with and into California Lyon, and California Lyon assumed the 
obligations of the Escrow Issuer under initial 7.00% Notes and the related indenture by operation of law (the “Escrow 
Merger”).  Following the Escrow Merger, California Lyon is the obligor under the initial 7.00% Notes.  In January 2015, the 
Company exchanged 100% of the initial 7.00% Notes for notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities 
Act. 

 On September 15, 2015, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of an additional 
$50.0 million in aggregate principal amount of its 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022 (the "additional 7.00% Notes", and together 
with the initial 7.00% Notes, the "7.00 Notes"), at an issue price of 102.0% of their principal amount, plus accrued interest from 
August 15, 2015, resulting in net proceeds of approximately $50.5 million.  In January 2016, the Company exchanged 100% of 
the additional 7.00% Notes for notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 

 As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding amount of the notes was $350 million, excluding unamortized premium of 
$0.6 million and deferred loan costs of $3.1 million. The notes bear interest at a rate of 7.00% per annum, payable semiannually 
in arrears on February 15 and August 15, and mature on August 15, 2022. The 7.00% Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a 
joint and several unsecured basis by Parent and certain of its existing and future restricted subsidiaries.  The 7.00% Notes and 
the related guarantees are California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of 
payment with all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future unsecured senior debt, including California 
Lyon’s $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Notes and $440.9 million in aggregate principal amount of 
5.875% Notes, each as described above.  The 7.00% Notes rank senior in right of payment to all of California Lyon’s and the 
guarantors’ future subordinated debt.  The 7.00% Notes and the guarantees are and will be effectively junior to California 
Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future secured debt to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such debt. 

 On or after August 15, 2017, California Lyon may redeem all or a portion of the 7.00% Notes upon not less than 30 
nor more than 60 days’ notice, at the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the principal amount) set forth below plus 
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accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the period beginning on each of the dates 
indicated below: 
 

Year Percentage 

August 15, 2017 103.500%
August 15, 2018 101.750%
August 15, 2019 and thereafter 100.000%

Prior to August 15, 2017, the 7.00% Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount plus a “make-whole” premium, and accrued and unpaid interest to, the redemption date. 

6% Senior Notes Due 2023 

On March 9, 2018, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of 6.00% Senior Notes due 
2023 (the "6.00% Notes"), in an aggregate principal amount of $350 million. The 6.00% Notes were issued at 100% of their 
aggregate principal amount. Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from the 6.00% Notes offering to 
(i) together with cash generated from certain land banking arrangements, and cash on hand, to finance the RSI Acquisition and 
to pay related fees and expenses and (ii) to repay all of California Lyon's $150 million of the outstanding aggregate principal 
amount of the 5.75% Notes. In September and December 2018, the Company exchanged 100% of the initial 6.00% Notes for 
notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 

As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal amount of the 6.00% Notes was $350 million, excluding deferred 
loan costs of $6.1 million. The 6.00% Notes bear interest at a rate of 6.00% per annum, payable semiannually in arrears on 
March 1 and September 1, and mature on September 1, 2023. The 6.00% Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and 
several unsecured basis by Parent and certain of its existing and future restricted subsidiaries. The 6.00% Notes and the related 
guarantees are California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all 
of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future unsecured senior debt, including California Lyon’s $350 million in 
aggregate principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, as described above and $440.9 million in aggregate principal 
amount of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2025, as described below. The 6.00% Notes rank senior in right of payment to all of 
California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ future subordinated debt. The 6.00% Notes and the guarantees are and will be effectively 
junior to California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future secured debt to the extent of the value of the collateral 
securing such debt. 

On or after September 1, 2020, California Lyon may redeem all or a portion of the 6.00% Notes upon not less than 30 nor 
more than 60 days’ notice, at the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the principal amount on the redemption date) 
set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the applicable redemption date, if redeemed 
during the 12-month period commencing on each of the dates as set forth below: 

Year Percentage 

September 1, 2020 103.000%
September 1, 2021 101.500%
September 1, 2022 100.000%

Prior to September 1, 2020, the Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount plus a “make-whole” premium, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the redemption 
date. 

In addition, any time prior to September 1, 2020, California Lyon may, at its option on one or more occasions, redeem 
Notes (including any additional notes that may be issued in the future under the 2023 Notes Indenture) in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes (including any additional notes that may be issued in 
the future under the 2023 Notes Indenture) issued prior to such date at a redemption price (expressed as a percentage of 
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principal amount) of 106.00%, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the redemption date, with an 
amount equal to the net cash proceeds from one or more equity offerings. 

5 7/8% Senior Notes Due 2025 

 On January 31, 2017, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of 5.875% Senior Notes 
due 2025 (the "5.875% Notes"), in an aggregate principal amount of $450 million. The 5.875% Notes were issued 
at 99.215% of their aggregate principal amount. Parent, through California Lyon, used the net proceeds from the 5.875% Notes 
offering to purchase the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the 8.5% Notes such that the entire aggregate $425 
million of previously outstanding 8.5% Notes are retired and extinguished as of December 31, 2018. In May 2017, the 
Company exchanged 100% of the 5.875% Notes for notes that are freely transferable and registered under the Securities Act. 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of $9.1 million of the 
5.875% Notes such that they are now retired and extinguished. 

As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal amount of the 5.875% Notes was $440.9 million, excluding 
unamortized discount of $2.8 million and deferred loan costs of $6.1 million. The 5.875% Notes bear interest at a rate 
of 5.875% per annum, payable semiannually in arrears on January 31 and July 31, and mature on January 31, 2025. 
The 5.875% Notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several unsecured basis by Parent and certain of its existing 
and future restricted subsidiaries. The 5.875% Notes and the related guarantees are California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ 
unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and 
future unsecured senior debt, including California Lyon’s $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.00% Notes due 2023 
and $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, each as described above. The 5.875% Notes 
rank senior in right of payment to all of California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ future subordinated debt. The 5.875% Notes and 
the guarantees are and will be effectively junior to California Lyon’s and the guarantors’ existing and future secured debt to the 
extent of the value of the collateral securing such debt. 

On or after January 31, 2020, California Lyon may redeem all or a portion of the 5.875% Notes upon not less than 30 nor 
more than 60 days’ notice, at the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of principal amount), set forth below plus accrued 
and unpaid interest to the redemption date, if redeemed during the 12-month period commencing on each of the dates indicated 
below: 

Year Percentage 

January 31, 2020 102.938%
January 31, 2021 101.469%
January 31, 2022 100.734%
January 31, 2023 and thereafter 100.000%

Prior to January 31, 2020, the 5.875% Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount plus a "make-whole" premium, and accrued and unpaid interest to, the redemption date. 

In addition, any time prior to January 31, 2020, California Lyon may, at its option on one or more occasions, redeem 
the 5.875% Notes in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 5.875% Notes 
issued prior to such date at a redemption price (expressed as a percentage of principal amount) of 105.875%, plus accrued and 
unpaid interest to the redemption date, with an amount equal to the net cash proceeds from one or more equity offerings. 

Senior Note Covenant Compliance 

The indentures governing the 7.00% Notes, the 6.00% Notes, and the 5.875% Notes, contain covenants that limit the 
ability of Parent, California Lyon, and their restricted subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur or guarantee certain 
additional indebtedness; (ii) pay dividends, distributions, or repurchase equity or make payments in respect of subordinated 
indebtedness; (iii) make certain investments; (iv) sell assets; (v) incur liens; (vi) enter into agreements restricting the ability of 
the Company’s restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends or transfer assets; (vii) enter into transactions with affiliates; (viii) create 
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unrestricted subsidiaries; and (viii) consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of its assets. These covenants are subject to 
a number of important exceptions and qualifications as described in the indentures. The Company was in compliance with all 
such covenants as of December 31, 2018. 
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GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following consolidating financial information includes: 

(1) Consolidating balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017; consolidating statements of operations and cash 
flows for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, of (a) William Lyon Homes, as the parent, or “Delaware Lyon”, 
(b) William Lyon Homes, Inc., as the subsidiary issuer, or “California Lyon”, (c) the guarantor subsidiaries, (d) the non-
guarantor subsidiaries and (e) William Lyon Homes, Inc. on a consolidated basis; and 

(2) Elimination entries necessary to consolidate Delaware Lyon, with William Lyon Homes, Inc. and its guarantor and 
non-guarantor subsidiaries. 

Delaware Lyon owns 100% of all of its guarantor subsidiaries and all guarantees are full and unconditional, joint and 
several. As a result, in accordance with Rule 3-10 (d) of Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC, no separate financial 
statements are required for these subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and for the years ended December 31, 2018 
2017, and 2016. 
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 
December 31, 2018 

(in thousands) 
 

 Unconsolidated     

 
Delaware 

Lyon  
California 

Lyon  
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Eliminating 

Entries  
Consolidated 

Company 

ASSETS            
Cash and cash equivalents $ —  $ 21,450  $ 2,888  $ 9,441  $ —  $ 33,779 

Receivables —  6,054  4,151  3,297  —  13,502 

Real estate inventories            
Owned —  745,750  1,152,786  434,671  —  2,333,207 

Not owned —  114,859  200,717  —  —  315,576 

Investment in 
unconsolidated joint 
ventures —

 

 5,392

 

 150

 

 —

 

 —

 

 5,542

 

Goodwill —  14,209  109,486  —  —  123,695 

Intangibles, net —  —  6,700  —  —  6,700 

Deferred income taxes, net —  47,241  —  —  —  47,241 

Lease right-of-use assets —  13,561  —  —  —  13,561 

Other assets, net —  26,797  9,688  486  —  36,971 

Investments in subsidiaries 863,322  16,059  (961,950)  —  82,569  — 

Intercompany receivables —  —  285,675  —  (285,675)  — 

Total assets $ 863,322  $ 1,011,372  $ 810,291  $ 447,895  $ (203,106)  $ 2,929,774 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY            
Accounts payable $ —  $ 78,462  $ 34,546  $ 15,363  $ —  $ 128,371 

Accrued expenses —  123,088  26,967  100  —  150,155 

Liabilities from inventories 
not owned —

 
 114,859

 
 200,717

 
 —

 
 —

 
 315,576

 

Notes payable —  45,000  1,231  151,788  —  198,019 

7% Senior Notes —  347,456  —  —  —  347,456 

6% Senior Notes —  343,878  —  —  —  343,878 

5 7/8% Senior Notes —  431,992  —  —  —  431,992 

Intercompany payables —  172,095  —  113,580  (285,675)  — 

Total liabilities —  1,656,830  263,461  280,831  (285,675)  1,915,447 

Equity            
William Lyon Homes 
stockholders’ equity 863,322

 
 (645,458)  546,830

 
 16,059

 
 82,569

 
 863,322

 

Noncontrolling 
interests —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 151,005

 
 —

 
 151,005

 

Total liabilities 
and equity $ 863,322

 
 $ 1,011,372

 
 $ 810,291

 
 $ 447,895

 
 $ (203,106)  $ 2,929,774
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 
December 31, 2017 

(in thousands) 
 

 Unconsolidated     

 
Delaware 

Lyon  
California 

Lyon  
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Eliminating 

Entries  
Consolidated 

Company 

ASSETS            
Cash and cash equivalents $ —  $ 171,434  $ 156  $ 11,120  $ —  $ 182,710 

Receivables —  4,647  2,252  3,324  —  10,223 

Escrow proceeds 
receivable —

 
 1,594

 
 1,725

 
 —

 
 —

 
 3,319

 

Real estate inventories —  831,007  630,384  238,459  —  1,699,850 

Investment in 
unconsolidated joint 
ventures —

 

 7,717

 

 150

 

 —

 

 —

 

 7,867

 

Goodwill —  14,209  52,693  —  —  66,902 

Intangibles, net —  —  6,700  —  —  6,700 

Deferred income taxes, net —  47,915  —  —  —  47,915 

Lease right-of-use assets —  14,454  —  —  —  14,454 

Other assets, net —  18,167  2,504  493  —  21,164 

Investments in subsidiaries 780,472  (16,544)  (494,201)  —  (269,727)  — 

Intercompany receivables —  —  269,831  —  (269,831)  — 

Total assets $ 780,472  $ 1,094,600  $ 472,194  $ 253,396  $ (539,558)  $ 2,061,104 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY            
Accounts payable $ —  $ 40,075  $ 13,007  $ 5,717  $ —  $ 58,799 

Accrued expenses —  108,407  2,988  96  —  111,491 

Notes payable —  589  —  93,926  —  94,515 

5 3/4% Senior Notes —  149,362  —  —  —  149,362 

7% Senior Notes —  346,740  —  —  —  346,740 

5 7/8% Senior Notes —  439,567  —  —  —  439,567 

Intercompany payables —  179,788  —  90,043  (269,831)  — 

Total liabilities —  1,264,528  15,995  189,782  (269,831)  1,200,474 

Equity            
William Lyon Homes 
stockholders’ equity 780,472

 
 (169,928)  456,199

 
 (16,544)  (269,727)  780,472

 

Noncontrolling 
interests —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 80,158

 
 —

 
 80,158

 

Total liabilities 
and equity $ 780,472

 
 $ 1,094,600

 
 $ 472,194

 
 $ 253,396

 
 $ (539,558)  $ 2,061,104
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
Year Ended December 31, 2018 

(in thousands) 
 

 Unconsolidated     

 
Delaware 

Lyon  
California 

Lyon  
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Eliminating 

Entries  
Consolidated 

Company 

Operating revenue            
Sales $ —  $ 667,395  $ 1,143,802  $ 270,524  $ —  $ 2,081,721 

Construction services —  —  5,450  —  —  5,450 

Management fees —  (8,534)  —  —  8,534  — 

 —  658,861  1,149,252  270,524  8,534  2,087,171 

Operating costs            
Cost of sales —  (522,491)  (952,530)  (219,743)  (8,534)  (1,703,298) 
Construction services —  —  (5,146)  —  —  (5,146) 
Sales and marketing —  (36,521)  (63,004)  (14,970)  —  (114,495) 
General and administrative —  (86,917)  (32,349)  (6)  —  (119,272) 
Transaction expenses —  (3,907)  —  —  —  (3,907) 
Other —  (2,262)  84  30  —  (2,148) 

 —  (652,098)  (1,052,945)  (234,689)  (8,534)  (1,948,266) 
Income from subsidiaries 91,596  33,538  —  —  (125,134)  — 

Operating income 91,596  40,301  96,307  35,835  (125,134)  138,905 
Equity in income of 
unconsolidated joint ventures —

 
 1,719

 
 1,399

 
 —

 
 —

 
 3,118

 

Other income (expense), net —  1,119  478  1,118  —  2,715 

Income before extinguishment 
of debt 91,596

 
 43,139

 
 98,184

 
 36,953

 
 (125,134)  144,738

 

Gain on extinguishment of debt —  1,015  —  —  —  1,015 

Income before provision for 
income taxes 91,596

 
 44,154

 
 98,184

 
 36,953

 
 (125,134)  145,753

 

Provision for income taxes —  (30,620)  —  —  —  (30,620) 
Net income 91,596  13,534  98,184  36,953  (125,134)  115,133 

Less: Net income 
attributable to 
noncontrolling interests —

 

 —

 

 —

 

 (23,537)  —

 

 (23,537) 

Net income available to 
common stockholders $ 91,596

 
 $ 13,534

 
 $ 98,184

 
 $ 13,416

 
 $ (125,134)  $ 91,596
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  CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 
(in thousands) 

 

 Unconsolidated     

 
Delaware 

Lyon  
California 

Lyon  
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Eliminating 

Entries  
Consolidated 

Company 

Operating revenue            
Sales $ —  $ 748,396  $ 844,611  $ 202,067  $ —  $ 1,795,074 

Construction services —  1,454  —  —  —  1,454 

Management fees —  (5,741)  —  —  5,741  — 

 —  744,109  844,611  202,067  5,741  1,796,528 

Operating costs            
Cost of sales —  (596,970)  (700,878)  (174,960)  (5,741)  (1,478,549) 
Construction services —  (1,317)  —  —  —  (1,317) 
Sales and marketing —  (30,637)  (44,849)  (10,740)  —  (86,226) 
General and administrative —  (73,748)  (16,457)  (1)  —  (90,206) 
Other —  (2,560)  308  (22)  —  (2,274) 

 —  (705,232)  (761,876)  (185,723)  (5,741)  (1,658,572) 
Income from subsidiaries 48,135  20,382  —  —  (68,517)  — 

Operating income 48,135  59,259  82,735  16,344  (68,517)  137,956 
Equity in income of 
unconsolidated joint ventures —

 
 2,135

 
 1,526

 
 —

 
 —

 
 3,661

 

Other income (expense), net —  2,029  264  (1,398)  —  895 

Income before extinguishment 
of debt 48,135

 
 63,423

 
 84,525

 
 14,946

 
 (68,517)  142,512

 

Loss on extinguishment of debt —  (21,828)  —  —  —  (21,828) 
Income before provision for 
income taxes 48,135

 
 41,595

 
 84,525

 
 14,946

 
 (68,517)  120,684

 

Provision for income taxes —  (62,933)  —  —  —  (62,933) 
Net income (loss) 48,135  (21,338)  84,525  14,946  (68,517)  57,751 

Less: Net income 
attributable to 
noncontrolling interests —

 

 —

 

 —

 

 (9,616)  —

 

 (9,616) 

Net income (loss) available to 
common stockholders $ 48,135

 
 $ (21,338)  $ 84,525

 
 $ 5,330

 
 $ (68,517)  $ 48,135
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 CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended December 31, 2016 
(in thousands) 

 

 Unconsolidated     

 
Delaware 

Lyon  
California 

Lyon  
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Non-Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  
Eliminating 

Entries  
Consolidated 

Company 

Operating revenue            
Sales $ —  $ 573,191  $ 680,138  $ 148,874  $ —  $ 1,402,203 

Construction services —  3,837  —  —  —  3,837 

Management fees —  (4,362)  —  —  4,362  — 

 —  572,666  680,138  148,874  4,362  1,406,040 

Operating costs            
Cost of sales —  (462,153)  (564,596)  (131,226)  (4,362)  (1,162,337) 
Construction services —  (3,485)  —  —  —  (3,485) 
Sales and marketing —  (27,329)  (36,170)  (9,010)  —  (72,509) 
General and administrative —  (60,141)  (13,256)  (1)  —  (73,398) 
Other —  (442)  100  (1)  —  (343) 

 —  (553,550)  (613,922)  (140,238)  (4,362)  (1,312,072) 
Income from subsidiaries 59,696  8,331  —  —  (68,027)  — 

Operating income 59,696  27,447  66,216  8,636  (68,027)  93,968 
Equity in income of 
unconsolidated joint ventures —

 
 4,369

 
 1,237

 
 —

 
 —

 
 5,606

 

Other income (expense), net —  4,640  (34)  (1,363)  —  3,243 

Income before provision for 
income taxes 59,696

 
 36,456

 
 67,419

 
 7,273

 
 (68,027)  102,817

 

Provision for income taxes —  (34,850)  —  —  —  (34,850) 
Net income 59,696  1,606  67,419  7,273  (68,027)  67,967 

Less: Net income 
attributable to 
noncontrolling interests —

 

 —

 

 —

 

 (8,271)  —

 

 (8,271) 

Net income (loss) available to 
common stockholders $ 59,696

 
 $ 1,606

 
 $ 67,419

 
 $ (998)  $ (68,027)  $ 59,696
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended December 31, 2018 

(in thousands) 
 
 

 Unconsolidated     
 Delaware 

Lyon  California 
Lyon  Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries  Eliminating 

Entries  Consolidated 
Company 

Operating activities            
Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities $ 8,746

  $ 166,429
  $ 38,781

  $ (149,584)  $ (36,769)  $ 27,603
 

Investing activities 
Cash paid for acquisitions, net —  —  (479,328)  —  —  (479,328) 

Purchases of property and equipment —  (7,368)  —  9  —  (7,359) 

Investments in subsidiaries —  (27,088)  467,749  —  (440,661)  — 
Net cash (used in) provided by 
investing activities —

  (34,456)  (11,579)  9
  (440,661)  (486,687) 

Financing activities            
Proceeds from borrowings on notes 
payable —

  —
  235

  183,659
  —

  183,894
 

Principal payments on notes payable —  —  (1,308)  (125,797)  —  (127,105) 

Proceeds from issuance of 6% Senior 
Notes —

  350,000
  —

  —
  —

  350,000
 

Principal payments on 5.75% Senior 
Notes —

  (150,000)  —
  —

  —
  (150,000) 

Proceeds from borrowings on revolver —  492,446  —  —  —  492,446 
Payments on revolver —  (447,446)  —  —  —  (447,446) 

Proceeds from stock options exercised —  276  —  —  —  276 
Principal payments on 5 7/8% Senior 
Notes —

  (8,125)  —
  —

  —
  (8,125) 

Shares remitted to, or withheld by the 
Company for employee tax 
withholding —

 
 (4,954)  —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 (4,954) 

Payments to repurchase common stock 
—

  (15,366)  —
  —

  —
  (15,366) 

Payment of deferred loan costs —  (10,777)  —  —  —  (10,777) 

Cash contributions from members of 
consolidated entities —

  —
  —

  131,267
  —

  131,267
 

Cash distributions to members of 
consolidated entities —

  —
  —

  (83,957)  —
  (83,957) 

Advances to affiliates —  —  (7,553)  19,187  (11,634)  — 
Intercompany receivables/payables (8,746)  (488,011)  (15,844)  23,537  489,064  — 
Net cash (used in) provided by 
financing activities (8,746)  (281,957)  (24,470)  147,896

  477,430
  310,153

 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash 
equivalents —

  (149,984)  2,732
  (1,679)  —

  (148,931) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 
period —

  171,434
  156

  11,120
  —

  182,710
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ —  $ 21,450  $ 2,888  $ 9,441  $ —  $ 33,779 
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 

(in thousands) 
 
 

 Unconsolidated     
 Delaware 

Lyon  California 
Lyon  Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries  Eliminating 

Entries  Consolidated 
Company 

Operating activities            
Net cash (used in) provided by 
operating activities $ (35,251)  $ 84,840

  $ 89,914
  $ (7,300)  $ 35,251

  $ 167,454
 

Investing activities 
Purchases of property and equipment —  (3,668)  (555)  (77)  —  (4,300) 

Investments in subsidiaries —  13,190  (79,449)  —  66,259  — 
Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities —

  9,522
  (80,004)  (77)  66,259

  (4,300) 

Financing activities            
Proceeds from borrowings on notes 
payable —

  —
  —

  134,061
  —

  134,061
 

Principal payments on notes payable —  —  —  (142,211)  —  (142,211) 

Redemption premium of 8.5% Senior 
Notes —

  (19,645)  —
  —

  —
  (19,645) 

Principal payments of 8.5% Senior 
Notes —

  (425,000)  —
  —

  —
  (425,000) 

Proceeds from issuance of 5.875% 
Senior Notes —

  446,468
  —

  —
  —

  446,468
 

Proceeds from borrowings on revolver —  346,121  —  —  —  346,121 
Payments on revolver —  (375,121)  —  —  —  (375,121) 

Principal payments on subordinated 
amortizing notes —

  (7,225)  —
  —

  —
  (7,225) 

Proceeds from issuance of Class B 
Shares —

  29,908
  —

  —
  —

  29,908
 

Costs related to settlement of TEUs —  (63)  —  —  —  (63) 

Shares remitted to, or withheld by the 
Company for employee tax 
withholding —

 
 (1,544)  —

 
 —

 
 —

 
 (1,544) 

Payments to repurchase common stock 
—

  (3,112)  —
  —

  —
  (3,112) 

Payment of deferred loan costs —  (9,892)  —  —  —  (9,892) 

Cash contributions from members of 
consolidated entities —

  —
  —

  66,712
  —

  66,712
 

Cash distributions to members of 
consolidated entities —

  —
  —

  (62,513)  —
  (62,513) 

Advances to affiliates —  —  6,947  1,862  (8,809)  — 
Intercompany receivables/payables 35,251  59,973  (16,973)  14,450  (92,701)  — 
Net cash provided by (used in) 
financing activities 35,251

  40,868
  (10,026)  12,361

  (101,510)  (23,056) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents —

  135,230
  (116)  4,984

  —
  140,098

 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 
period —

  36,204
  272

  6,136
  —

  42,612
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ — $ 171,434 $ 156 $ 11,120 $ — $ 182,710 
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year Ended December 31, 2016 

(in thousands) 
 
 

 Unconsolidated     
 Delaware 

Lyon  California 
Lyon  Guarantor 

Subsidiaries  Non-Guarantor 
Subsidiaries  Eliminating 

Entries  Consolidated 
Company 

Operating activities            
Net cash (used in) provided by 
operating activities $ (5,295)  $ 64,276

  $ (778)  $ (42,296)  $ 5,295
  $ 21,202

 

Investing activities 
Proceeds from repayment of notes 
receivable —

  6,188
  —

  —
  —

  6,188
 

Purchases of property and equipment —  (1,004)  85  (110)  —  (1,029) 

Investments in subsidiaries —  (2,455)  12,104  —  (9,649)  — 
Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities —

  2,729
  12,189

  (110)  (9,649)  5,159
 

Financing activities            
Proceeds from borrowings on notes 
payable —

  2,211
  —

  137,572
  —

  139,783
 

Principal payments on notes payable —  (18,125)  —  (129,762)  —  (147,887) 

Proceeds from borrowings on revolver —  258,000  —  —  —  258,000 
Payments on revolver —  (294,000)  —  —  —  (294,000) 

Principal payments on Subordinated 
amortizing notes —

  (6,841)  —
  —

  —
  (6,841) 

Purchase of common stock —  (942)  —  —  —  (942) 

Excess income tax benefit from stock 
based awards —

  (182)  —
  —

  —
  (182) 

Payments of deferred loan costs —  (1,085)  —  —  —  (1,085) 

Noncontrolling interest contributions —  —  —  38,334  —  38,334 
Noncontrolling interest distributions —  —  —  (19,636)  —  (19,636) 

Advances to affiliates —  —  (252)  11,784  (11,532)  — 
Intercompany receivables/payables 5,295  (14,672)  (13,611)  7,102  15,886  — 
Net cash provided by (used in) 
financing activities 5,295

  (75,636)  (13,863)  45,394
  4,354

  (34,456) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash 
equivalents and restricted cash —

  (8,631)  (2,452)  2,988
  —

  (8,095) 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at 
beginning of period —

  44,835
  2,724

  3,148
  —

  50,707
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ —  $ 36,204  $ 272  $ 6,136  $ —  $ 42,612 
 
 
 

 



WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

 

F-37 

Note 10—Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure, (“ASC 820”) the Company is 
required to disclose the estimated fair value of financial instruments. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company used the 
following assumptions to estimate the fair value of each type of financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate: 

 
•  Notes Payable—The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value of the notes payable because of floating 

interest rate terms and/or the outstanding balance is expected to be repaid within one year. 
 

•  5  3/4% Senior Notes—The 5  3/4% Senior Notes are traded over the counter and their fair value was based upon 
published quotes; 
 

•  7% Senior Notes—The 7% Senior Notes are traded over the counter and their fair value was based upon published 
quotes; 
 

•  6% Senior Notes—The 6% Senior Notes are traded over the counter and their fair value was based upon published 
quotes; 
 

•  5 7/8% Senior Notes—The 5 7/8% Senior Notes are traded over the counter and their fair value was based upon published 
quotes; 

 

The following table excludes cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable, which had fair values 
approximating their carrying amounts due to the short maturities and liquidity of these instruments. The estimated fair values of 
financial instruments are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 December 31, 2018  December 31, 2017 

 Carrying 
Amount  Fair 

Value  Carrying 
Amount  Fair 

Value 

Financial liabilities:        
Notes payable $ 198,019  $ 198,019  $ 94,515  $ 94,515 

5 3/4% Senior Notes due 2019 —  —  149,362  151,500 

 7% Senior Notes due 2022 347,456  350,000  346,740  362,250 

6% Senior Notes due 2023 343,878  315,000  —  — 

5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2025 431,992  378,611  439,567  459,000 

ASC 820 establishes a framework for measuring fair value, expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements and 
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820 requires the Company to maximize the use of observable 
market inputs, minimize the use of unobservable market inputs and disclose in the form of an outlined hierarchy the details of 
such fair value measurements. The Company utilized Level 3 inputs to determine the fair value of its Notes Payable, and Level 
2 inputs to measure the fair value of its Senior Notes. ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether 
the inputs to a fair value measurement are considered to be observable or unobservable in a marketplace. The three levels of the 
hierarchy are as follows: 

•  Level 1—quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets; 
•  Level 2—quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 

liabilities in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which significant inputs and significant value 
drivers are observable in active markets; and 

•  Level 3—valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value 
drivers are unobservable.  
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Note 11—Related Party Transactions 

 On March 9, 2018, California Lyon completed its private placement with registration rights of the 6.00% Notes in an 
aggregate principal amount of $350 million (see Note 9), for which Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC (“Credit Suisse”) 
served as an initial purchaser and joint book-running manager, along with several other banks, and received customary 
underwriting fees as a member of the underwriting syndicate. On November 5, 2018, Eric A. Anderson commenced his service 
as a member of the Company's Board of Directors. Mr. Anderson had previously held the position of Vice Chairman, 
Investment Banking of Credit Suisse until November 3, 2018, at which point, Mr. Anderson was appointed as a Senior Advisor 
to Credit Suisse, a non-employee role pursuant to which he provides certain consultant services to Credit Suisse as an 
independent contractor. As of and following the November 3, 2018 transition date, Mr. Anderson did not and will not receive 
any fees or compensation of any kind for any transactional relationships between Credit Suisse and the Company. 

 In November 2017, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “PSA”) with an entity (“Seller”) 
managed by an affiliate of Paulson & Co., Inc. (“Paulson”) and purchased certain real property from the Seller located in 
Oceanside, California for a proposed residential homebuilding development (the “St. Cloud Transaction”). The PSA provided 
for an overall purchase price of $22.8 million, including an aggregate deposit amount of $1.2 million (the “Deposit”).  The 
balance of the purchase price was paid in connection with closing of the St. Cloud Transaction in March 2018. WLH Recovery 
Acquisition LLC, which is affiliated with, and managed by affiliates of, Paulson, previously held over 5% of Parent’s 
outstanding Class A common stock, which stock was sold in its entirety in September 2017.  One of the former members of 
Parent’s board of directors served at that time as a Partner of Paulson and a Portfolio Manager for the Paulson Real Estate 
Funds, which was an affiliate of Paulson.  The Company believes that the St. Cloud Transaction was on terms no less favorable 
than it would have agreed to with unrelated third parties. 

 Pursuant to the preemptive rights granted under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation, upon the issuances of the shares of Class A Common Stock underlying the TEUs, Lyon Shareholder 2012, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, and the sole holder (the “Class B Holder”) of the Company’s Class B Common Stock, 
had the right to purchase up to the number of additional shares of Class B Common Stock needed to maintain its voting power 
at the time of such issuances of Class A Common Stock. On December 14, 2017, in connection with the exercise of such 
preemptive rights by the Class B Holder, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) 
with the Class B Holder. The Purchase Agreement provided for the purchase by the Class B Holder from the Company of 
1,003,510 newly issued shares of Class B Common Stock, subject to the terms and conditions specified therein, which shares 
were issued and sold to the Class B Holder, and are beneficially owned by William H. Lyon, the Company’s Executive 
Chairman and Chairman of the Board of Directors. The aggregate consideration received by the Company for the Class B 
Common Stock was $29.9 million. Refer to Note 14 for further details regarding the transaction. 

 In December 2016, the Company sold an unentitled remnant parcel of land located in Portland, Oregon for an overall 
purchase price of approximately $550,000 in cash to the Division President of our Oregon segment.  The purchase price was 
supported by an unaffiliated third party appraisal received by the Company, and the Company believes that the transaction was 
on terms no less favorable than it would have agreed to with unrelated parties. 

 In August 2016, the Company acquired certain lots within a master planned community located in Aurora, Colorado, 
for an overall purchase price of approximately $9.3 million, from an entity managed by an affiliate of Paulson.  At the time of 
the transaction, WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC, which is affiliated with, and managed by affiliates of, Paulson, held over 5% 
of Parent’s outstanding Class A common stock, which stock was sold in its entirety in September 2017.  A portion of the 
acquisition price for the lots was paid in the form of a seller note with a principal amount of approximately $3.0 million (see 
Note 9).  During the year ended December 31, 2018, the seller note was paid in full prior to maturity, along with all accrued 
interest to date. The Company believes that the transaction, including the terms of the seller note, was on terms no less 
favorable than it would have agreed to with unrelated parties. 
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 On September 3, 2009, Presley CMR, Inc., a California corporation (“Presley CMR”) and wholly owned subsidiary of 
California Lyon, entered into an Aircraft Purchase and Sale Agreement (“PSA”) with an affiliate of General William Lyon to 
sell an aircraft. The PSA provided for an aggregate purchase price for the Aircraft of $8.3 million, (which value was the 
appraised fair market value of the Aircraft), which consisted of: (i) cash in the amount of $2.1 million to be paid at closing and 
(ii) a promissory note from the affiliate in the amount of $6.2 million. The note was secured by the Aircraft and required 
semiannual interest payments to California Lyon of approximately $132,000. The note provided for a maturity date in 
September 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the promissory note was paid in full by the borrower prior to the 
September 2016 maturity date, along with all accrued interest to date. 
 
Note 12—Income Taxes 

 Since inception, the Company has operated solely within the United States. 

 The following summarizes the provision from income taxes (in thousands): 

 
Year Ended 

December 31,  
Year Ended 

December 31,  
Year Ended 

December 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

Current      
Federal $ (23,633)  $ (25,974)  $ (26,978) 
State (6,314)  (9,122)  (4,077) 

Deferred      
Federal (454)  (26,663)  (1,395) 
State (219)  (1,174)  (2,400) 

 $ (30,620)  $ (62,933)  $ (34,850) 

 Income taxes differ from the amounts computed by applying the applicable federal statutory rates due to the following 
(in thousands): 
 

 
Year Ended 

December 31,  
Year Ended 

December 31,  
Year Ended 

December 31, 

 2018  2017  2016 

Provision for federal income taxes at the statutory rate $ (30,613)  $ (42,240)  $ (35,986) 
(Increases)/decreases in tax resulting from:      

Provision for state income taxes, net of federal 
income tax benefits (5,236)  (6,692)  (4,210) 
Rate adjustment - state 38  —  — 

Rate adjustment - new tax reform legislation 258  (23,126)  — 

Domestic production activities deduction —  2,868  2,481 

Nondeductible items-other (80)  (94)  (58) 
Non-controlling interests 4,943  3,366  2,895 

Tax credits 730  (160)  166 

Stock based compensation 454  281  27 

Other, net (1,114)  2,864  (165) 
 $ (30,620)  $ (62,933)  $ (34,850) 

    

 On December 22, 2017, President Donald Trump signed into law “H.R.1” (the “Tax Cuts and Jobs Act”), which among 
other items reduces the federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018.  Also on December 22, 2017, the 
Securities & Exchange Commission Staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”), which provides guidance for 
accounting for effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for which the accounting under ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740”) is 
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incomplete.  Under SAB 118, to the extent that accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act is 
incomplete but that the Company is able to determine a reasonable estimate, it must record a provisional estimate in its 
consolidated financial statements.  If a reasonable estimate cannot be determined, ASC 740 should continue to be applied on the 
basis of the tax laws that were in effect prior to the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. 

 The Company has completed its analysis of the income tax effects for the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The Company had 
recognized the tax impact related to the revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, resulting in $23.1 million of additional 
income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 and recorded an additional $0.3 million during the year ended 
December 31, 2018 due to the accounting re-measurement of our deferred tax assets based on the lower federal corporate 
income tax rate under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. In accordance with SAB 118, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act-related income tax 
effects that we initially reported as provisional estimates were refined as additional analysis was performed. In addition, the 
provisional amounts were affected by additional regulatory guidance/interpretations issued by the Internal Revenue Service, 
changes in accounting standards, or federal or state legislative actions. 

 The Company’s effective income tax rate was 21.0%, and 52.1% for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. The significant drivers of the effective tax rate are revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities discussed 
above, allocation of income to noncontrolling interests and the domestic production activities deduction. 
 
 Temporary differences giving rise to deferred income taxes consist of the following (in thousands): 
 

 December 31, 

 2018  2017 

Deferred tax assets    
Impairment and other reserves $ 31,345  $ 33,883  

Compensation deductible for tax purposes when paid 4,380  5,093  

AMT credit carryover 1,384  1,384  

Unused recognized built-in loss 9,957  10,706  

Net operating loss 3,239  3,488  

Effect of book/tax differences for general and administrative 5,911  4,508  

Other 1,427  806  

 57,643  59,868  
Deferred tax liabilities    

Effect of book/tax differences for joint ventures (1,316)  (1,343 ) 
Effect of book/tax differences for capitalized interest (3,699)  (6,478 ) 
Fixed assets and intangibles (1,354)  (1,850 ) 
Goodwill and other intangibles (3,748)  (1,998 ) 
Other (285)  (284 ) 

 (10,402)  (11,953 ) 
Total deferred tax assets, net $ 47,241  $ 47,915  

  

 Management assesses its deferred tax assets to determine whether all or any portion of the asset is more likely than not 
unrealizable under ASC 740.  The Company is required to establish a valuation allowance for any portion of the asset that 
management concludes is more likely than not to be unrealizable. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent 
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. The 
Company's assessment considers all evidence, both positive and negative, including the nature, frequency and severity of any 
current and cumulative losses, taxable income in carry back years, the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, tax planning 
strategies, and projected future taxable income in making this assessment.  At December 31, 2018 the Company had no 
valuation allowance recorded. 
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 As of December 31, 2012, the Company had generated significant deferred tax assets through its operations, but as a 
result of the Company's ongoing assessments had determined that it was not more likely than not that the Company would be 
able to utilize these assets.  As a result, the Company had recorded a full valuation allowance against the $200.0 million 
deferred tax asset balance.  During the quarter ended December 31, 2013, the Company determined that it would be able to 
utilize $95.6 million of its deferred tax assets, and recognized an income tax benefit in its results of operations in this 
amount.  This conclusion was based upon the operating results of the Company, most notably three consecutive quarters of net 
income, reduced interest expense as a result of the 2012 restructure, and eight consecutive quarters of period over period growth 
in net new home orders, home closings, and dollar value of backlog, in addition to continued improving conditions in the single 
family home market. Since 2013, the Company's operating results have demonstrated consistent improvement with significant 
growth in revenues and net income, which has allowed it to realize approximately $20.0 million in deferred tax assets through 
December 31, 2018. 

 The Company's analysis demonstrated that even under the stress tested forecasts of future results which considered the 
potential impact of the negative evidence noted above, the Company would continue to generate sufficient taxable income in 
future periods to realize the majority of its deferred tax assets.  This fact, coupled with other positive evidence described above, 
significantly outweighed the negative evidence and based on this analysis management concluded, in accordance with ASC 
740, that it was more likely than not that the majority of its deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2013 would be realized. At 
December 31, 2018, the Company had no remaining federal net operating loss carryforwards and $46.4 million remaining state 
net operating loss carryforwards. State net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2031. In addition, as of December 31, 
2018, the Company had unused federal and state built-in losses of $44.9 million and $7.5 million, respectively.  The 5 year 
testing period for built-in losses expired in 2017 and the unused built-in loss carryforwards begin to expire at the end of 2032.  
The Company had AMT credit carryovers of $1.4 million at December 31, 2018, which if not previously utilized are allowable 
as refundable credits under the Jobs and Tax Act through 2022.  However, the refundability of the credit will be determined 
through additional guidance to properly interpret the interaction between Internal Revenue Code Section 383 with the Tax Cuts 
and Jobs Act. 

ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement criterion for the financial statement recognition and 
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position 
must be considered more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The Company records interest 
and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of the provision for income taxes. As of December 31, 2018 and 
2017, the Company had no significant uncertain tax positions. 

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.  
Due to the Company’s net operating losses incurred, the Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations for 
calendar tax years ended 2012 and forward and subject to various state income tax examinations for calendar tax years ended 
2008 and forward.  The Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service for the 2013 and 2014 tax 
years and a California examination is pending for the 2014 tax year.
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Note 13—Income Per Common Share 

Basic and diluted income per common share for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 were calculated as 
follows (in thousands, except number of shares and per share amounts): 
 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2018  
Year Ended 

December 31, 
2017  

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2016  
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding (1) 37,832,073  37,040,137  36,764,799 
Effect of dilutive securities:      

Preferred shares, stock options, and warrants 1,586,986  1,623,530  815,171 

Tangible Equity Units —  —  894,930 

Diluted average shares outstanding 39,419,059  38,663,667  38,474,900 

Net income available to common stockholders $ 91,596   $ 48,135  $ 59,696 

Basic income per common share $ 2.42   $ 1.30  $ 1.62 
Dilutive income per common share $ 2.32   $ 1.24  $ 1.55 

Potentially antidilutive securities not included in the 
calculation of diluted income per common share (weighted 
average):      

Unvested stock options 80,000  240,000  240,000 

 
(1) For the year ended December 31, 2017, basic weighted average number of shares outstanding includes 5,113,475 
shares of the Company’s Tangible Equity Units, of which 670,811 and 4,442,664 were settled and issued on 
November 27, 2017 and December 1, 2017, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2016, basic weighted 
average number of shares outstanding included the minimum number of shares that were issuable under the Company’s 
Tangible Equity Units.  As this period was prior to the settlement of the TEUs, these calculations assumed 5,113,475 
shares included from the respective issue dates of the Company’s Tangible Equity Units. See Note 14. 

 
Note 14—Equity 

Common Stock 

 Pursuant to the preemptive rights granted under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation, upon the issuances of the shares of Class A Common Stock underlying the TEUs, Lyon Shareholder 2012, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company and the sole holder of the Company’s Class B Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 
had the right to purchase up to the number of additional shares of Class B Common Stock needed to maintain its voting power 
at the time of such issuances of Class A Common Stock. On December 14, 2017, in connection with the exercise of such 
preemptive rights by the Class B Holder, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement with the Class B Holder. The 
purchase agreement provided for the purchase by the Class B Holder from the Company of 1,003,510 newly issued shares of 
Class B Common Stock, subject to the terms and conditions specified therein, which reflects the maximum number of shares 
that could be purchased pursuant to such preemptive rights in connection with the settlement of the TEUs. Accordingly, the 
Company issued and sold to the Class B Holder 1,003,510 shares of Class B Common Stock. The aggregate consideration 
received by the Company for the Class B Common Stock was $29,908,028, for an average purchase price of approximately 
$29.80 per share. 

 Pursuant to the terms of the Certificate of Incorporation, each share of Class B Common Stock is convertible into a 
share of Class A Common Stock. Each share of Class B Common Stock will automatically convert into one share of Class A 
Common Stock if holders of a majority of the shares of Class B Common Stock then-outstanding vote in favor of such 
conversion. Further, if, at any time, any share of Class B Common Stock is not owned, beneficially or of record, by either 
General William Lyon or William H. Lyon, their siblings, spouses and lineal descendants (including by step-, adoptive and 
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similar relationships), any entities wholly owned by one or more of the foregoing persons, or any trusts or other estate planning 
vehicles for the benefit of any of the foregoing, then such share of Class B Common Stock will automatically convert into one 
share of Class A Common Stock. A holder of Class B Common Stock may also elect at any time to convert any or all of their 
shares into Class A Common Stock at the rate of one share of Class A Common Stock for each share of Class B Common 
Stock. 

All of our outstanding shares of common stock have been validly issued and fully paid and are non-assessable. The rights 
of the holders of common stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of preferred stock, 
of which there are no shares issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2018 or 2017. Holders of our common stock have no 
preference, exchange, sinking fund, redemption or appraisal rights and have no preemptive rights to subscribe for any of our 
securities, with the exception of holders of our Class B Common Stock, which do have certain preemptive rights. 

The Company does not intend to declare or pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any determination to pay 
dividends to holders of our common stock will be at the discretion of our board of directors. The payment of cash dividends is 
restricted under the terms of certain of the agreements governing our outstanding indebtedness, including the indentures 
governing our senior notes. 

Share Repurchase Program 

As announced on February 22, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved a stock repurchase program, 
authorizing the repurchase of up to an aggregate of $50 million of the Company's Class A common stock. The program allows 
the Company to repurchase shares of Class A common stock from time to time for cash in the open market or privately 
negotiated transactions or other transactions, as market and business conditions warrant and subject to applicable legal 
requirements.  The stock repurchase program does not obligate the Company to repurchase any particular amount of common 
stock, and it could be modified, suspended or discontinued at any time. As of December 31, 2018, the Company repurchased 
920,110 shares, for an average purchase price of approximately $20.07 per share since inception, and had $31.5 million 
remaining available for repurchase. 

Warrants 

The holders of Class B common stock hold warrants to purchase 1,907,551 shares of Class B common stock at an 
exercise price of $17.08 per share. The expiration date of the Class B Warrants is February 24, 2022. The warrants were 
assigned a value of $1.0 million in conjunction with the adoption of fresh start accounting and are recorded in additional paid-in 
capital. 

Tangible Equity Units 

 On November 27, 2017, the Company issued 670,811 shares of Class A Common Stock to certain holders who elected 
for early settlement of their purchase contracts. On December 1, 2017 (the "mandatory settlement date"), the Company issued 
the balance to the remaining holders, for an aggregate issuance of 5,113,473 shares of Class A Common Stock, which reflected 
the minimum number of shares of Class A Common Stock, or 4.4465 shares per each of the previously outstanding 1,150,000 
tangible equity units that were issuable by the Company under the purchase contracts (as adjusted for fractional shares).  As of 
December 31, 2017, the amortizing notes were settled in full. The net proceeds from the issuance of the TEUs were allocated 
between the purchase contract and amortizing note based on their relative fair values.  As a result, $90.7 million was allocated 
to additional paid-in capital in connection with the issuance of the TEUs during 2014. 

Note 15—Stock Based Compensation 

In 2012, the Company adopted the William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan was approved 
by the Board of Directors and the Company’s stockholders, and is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board. 
The provisions of the Plan allow for a variety of stock-based compensation awards, including stock options, stock appreciation 
rights, or SARs, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, deferred stock awards, deferred stock unit awards, 
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dividend equivalent awards, stock payment awards and performance awards and other stock-based awards, to certain 
executives, directors, and non-executives of California Lyon. The Company believes that such awards provide a means of 
compensation to attract and retain qualified employees and better align the interests of our employees with those of our 
stockholders. Option awards are granted with an exercise price equal to the market price at the date of grant. 

During 2017, the Company amended the Plan to reflect a broad range of compensation and governance practices 
necessary to attract and retain the services key individuals essential to the Company’s long -term growth and success.  Among 
other things, the amendment served to increase the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for issuance under 
the prior plan by 900,000 shares. 

Under the Plan, 4,536,363 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock have been reserved for issuance. In 2018, the 
Company granted an aggregate of 676,423 restricted shares of Class A common stock, which consisted of 250,348 shares of 
time-based restricted stock and 426,075 shares of performance based restricted stock. In 2017 and 2016, the Company granted 
an aggregate of 813,586 and 857,460 restricted shares of Class A common stock, respectively. With respect to time-based 
restricted stock granted to employees during 2018, 116,484 of such shares vest in three equal annual installments on March 1st 
of each of 2019, 2020 and 2021, 4,767 of such shares vest in two equal annual installments on March 1st of each of 2019 and 
2020, 26,321 of such shares vest in three equal annual installments on each anniversary of the grant date, 36,821 of such shares 
vest in two equal annual installments on each anniversary of the grant date, and 44,027 of such shares vest in one installment on 
the second anniversary of the grant date, in each case subject to each grantee’s continued service through each vesting date, 
and 21,928 of such shares vest in four equal quarterly installments on each three-month period beginning June 1st of 2018, 
subject to each grantee’s continued service on the board through each vesting date. 

The Company accounts for share-based awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation, 
which requires the fair value of stock-based compensation awards to be amortized as an expense over the vesting period. Stock-
based compensation awards are valued at the fair value on the date of grant. Compensation expense for awards with 
performance based conditions is recognized over the vesting period once achievement of the performance condition is deemed 
probable. 

The Company granted performance-based restricted stock awards to certain executive employees during each of 2018, 
2017 and 2016.  With respect to the performance based restricted stock awards granted during 2018, the actual number of such 
shares of restricted stock that will be earned (the “Earned Shares”) is subject to the Company’s achievement of pre-established 
performance targets as of the end of the 2018 fiscal year. Of the aforementioned awards, 373,432 of such Earned Shares vest in 
three equal annual installments on March 1st of each of 2019, 2020 and 2021, subject to each grantee’s continued service 
through each vesting date. The remaining 52,643 of such Earned Shares vest in three equal annual installments on each 
anniversary of the grant date, subject to each grantee’s continued service through each vesting date. During 2018, the Company 
achieved approximately 92% of its performance target. With respect to the performance based restricted stock awards granted 
during 2017 and 2016, the performance based restricted stock awards vests as follows: one-third of the shares of performance 
based restricted stock will vest on March 1 of each of the first, second, and third years following the grant date, and all but one 
of such grants were subject to the Company’s achievement of pre-established performance targets as of the end of the given 
fiscal year, and subject to each grantee's continued service through each vesting date. During 2017, the Company achieved 
111% of its performance target. During 2016, the Company achieved 96% of its performance target related to certain metrics, 
resulting in earned shares based on the term of the award agreements, but did not achieve its target level for another metric 
applicable to certain individuals. 

The Company uses the fair value method of accounting for stock options granted to employees which requires us to 
measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for the stock options, based on the grant date fair value of the 
award. The fair value of the awards is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The resulting cost is recognized 
on a straight line basis over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, 
usually the vesting period. During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not grant stock 
options. 

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has 1,216,779 shares available for grant under the Plan. 
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Summary of Stock Option Activity 

Stock option activity under the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 was as follows: 

 
Year Ended December 31, 

2018  
Year Ended December 31, 

2017  
Year Ended December 31, 

2016 

 Options  

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price  Options  

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price  Options  

Weighted 
Average  
Exercise  

Price 

Options outstanding at beginning of year 592,778  $ 15.61  596,313  $ 15.57  611,313  $ 15.40 
Granted —  N/A  —  N/A  —  N/A 
Exercised (31,866)  $ 8.66  (3,535)  $ 8.66  (15,000)  $ 8.66 
Canceled —  N/A  —  N/A  —  N/A 

Options outstanding at end of year 560,912  $ 16.00  592,778  $ 15.61  596,313  $ 15.57 
Options vested and expected to vest 560,912  $ 16.00  592,778  $ 15.61  596,313  $ 15.57 
Options exercisable at end of year (1) 480,912  $ 8.66  352,778  $ 8.66  356,313  $ 8.66 
Price range of options exercised $ 8.66    $ 8.66    $ 8.66   
Price range of options outstanding $8.66-

$25.82    
$8.66-
$25.82    

$8.66-
$25.82   

 
 
(1) The fair value of options vested during the year ended December 31, 2018 was $0.4 million. No options vested 
during the years ended December 31, 2017 or 2016. 

The following table summarizes information about stock options granted to executives, directors, and non-executives that 
are outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2018: 

Outstanding  Exercisable 

Exercise Price  Number of Shares  

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Term 
(in years)  

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value  

Number of 
Shares 

$8.66-$25.82  560,912  4.82  $ 1,138,651  480,912 

 

Summary of Restricted Shares Activity 
 
 During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, the Company had the following activity relating to grants 
of time-based restricted common stock: 

 
Year Ended December 31, 

2018  
Year Ended December 31, 

2017  
Year Ended December 31, 

2016 

 
Number of 

Shares  

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair 
Value  

Number of 
Shares  

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair 
Value  

Number of 
Shares  

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair 
Value

Non-vested shares at beginning of year 419,295  $ 17.38  346,924  $ 16.91  225,687  $ 23.65 
Granted 250,348  25.82  259,677  18.14  291,368  14.14 

Vested (247,550)  18.22  (181,812)  17.62  (126,073)  21.81 

Canceled (1) (5,330)  22.04  (5,494)  16.23  (44,058)  19.06 

Non-vested shares at end of year 416,763  $ 21.89  419,295  $ 17.38  346,924  $ 16.91 
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(1) Represents shares that were canceled as result of terminations of employment. 
 

 During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 the Company had the following activity relating to grants 
of  performance based restricted common stock: 

 
Year Ended December 31, 

2018  
Year Ended December 31, 

2017  
Year Ended December 31, 

2016 

 
Number of 

Shares  

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair 
Value  

Number of 
Shares  

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair 
Value  

Number of 
Shares  

Weighted 
Average Grant 

Date Fair 
Value

Non-vested shares at beginning of 
year 712,565

 
 $ 17.01

 
 655,133

 
 $ 17.81

 
 480,757

 
 $ 24.18

 

Granted 426,075  26.21  553,909  18.00  566,092  13.88 

Vested (254,891)  17.89  (147,477)  21.49  (190,977)  20.58 

Canceled (1) (85,918)  16.83  (349,000)  19.55  (200,739)  23.38 

Non-vested shares at end of year 797,831  $ 20.85  712,565  $ 17.01  655,133  $ 17.81 

(1) Represents shares that were canceled as a result of achievement of performance targets as outlined in the respective 
grant agreement at below the maximum levels, as well as a result of terminations of employment. 

In conjunction with the issuance of the equity grants in the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company 
recorded stock based compensation expense of $11.3 million, $10.1 million, and $6.4 million, respectively, which is included in 
general and administrative expense in the consolidated statement of operations.  As of December 31, 2018, $9.2 million of total 
unrecognized stock based compensation expense is expected to be recognized as an expense by the Company in the future over 
a weighted average period of 1.0 years. The total value of restricted stock awards which fully vested during the years ended 
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $8.8 million, $8.0 million, and $5.1 million, respectively. For the years ended 
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized an income tax benefit of $3.5 million, $3.8 million and $4.1 
million related to stock based compensation, respectively. 
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Note 16—Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company’s commitments and contingent liabilities include the usual obligations incurred by real estate developers in 
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, these matters will not have a material effect on the Company’s 
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits related to its normal business activities. We believe that the accruals we 
have recorded for probable and reasonably estimable losses with respect to these proceedings are adequate and that, as of 
December 31, 2018, it was not reasonably possible that an additional material loss had been incurred in an amount in excess of 
the estimated amounts already recognized on our consolidated financial statements.  We evaluate our accruals for litigation and 
regulatory proceedings, and as appropriate, adjust them to reflect (i) the facts and circumstances known to us at the time, 
including information regarding negotiations, settlements, rulings and other relevant events and developments; (ii) the advice 
and analyses of counsel; and (iii) the assumptions and judgment of management. Similar factors and considerations are used in 
establishing new accruals for proceedings as to which losses have become probable and reasonably estimable at the time an 
evaluation is made.  The outcome of any of these proceedings, including the defense and other litigation-related costs and 
expenses we may incur, however, is inherently uncertain and could differ significantly from the estimate reflected in a related 
accrual, if made. Therefore, it is possible that the ultimate outcome of any proceeding, if in excess of a related accrual or if no 
accrual had been made, could be material to our consolidated financial statements. 

In some jurisdictions in which the Company develops and constructs property, assessment district bonds are issued by 
municipalities to finance major infrastructure improvements. As a land owner benefited by these improvements, the Company 
is responsible for the assessments on its land. When properties are sold, the assessments are either prepaid or the buyers assume 
the responsibility for the related assessments. Assessment district bonds are recorded as liabilities in the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheet, if the amounts are fixed and determinable.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company is not 
obligated under any assessment district bonds. 

The Company also had outstanding performance and surety bonds of $336.0 million at December 31, 2018 related 
principally to its obligations for site improvements at various projects. The Company does not believe that draws upon these 
bonds, if any, will have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. As of 
December 31, 2018, the Company had $463.8 million of project commitments relating to the construction of projects. 

The Company has provided unsecured environmental indemnities to certain lenders, joint venture partners and land 
sellers. In each case, the Company has performed due diligence on the potential environmental risks including obtaining an 
independent environmental review from outside environmental consultants. These indemnities obligate the Company to 
reimburse the guaranteed parties for damages related to environmental matters. There is no term or damage limitation on these 
indemnities; however, if an environmental matter arises, the Company could have recourse against other previous owners. 

See Note 9 for additional information relating to the Company’s guarantee arrangements. 

The Company has entered into various purchase option agreements with third parties to acquire land. As of December 31, 
2018, the Company has made non-refundable deposits of $147.3 million. The Company is under no obligation to purchase the 
land, but would forfeit remaining deposits if the land were not purchased. The total purchase price under the purchase option 
agreements is $799.5 million as of December 31, 2018. 

 
Land Banking Arrangements 

The Company enters into purchase agreements with various land sellers. As a method of acquiring land in staged 
takedowns, thereby minimizing the use of funds from the Company’s available cash or other corporate financing sources and 
limiting the Company’s risk, the Company transfers the Company’s right in such purchase agreements to entities owned by 
third parties (“land banking arrangements”). These entities use equity contributions and/or incur debt to finance the acquisition 
and development of the land. The entities grant the Company an option to acquire lots in staged takedowns. In consideration for 
this option, the Company makes a non-refundable deposit of 15% to 25% of the total purchase price. The Company is under no 



WILLIAM LYON HOMES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued) 

 

F-48 

obligation to purchase the balance of the lots, but would forfeit any existing deposits and could be subject to penalties if the lots 
were not purchased. The Company does not have legal title to these entities or their assets and has not guaranteed their 
liabilities. These land banking arrangements help the Company manage the financial and market risk associated with land 
holdings. As discussed above, with exception of the arrangement discussed below, these amounts are included in the total 
remaining purchase price mentioned above. 

 

The Company participated in three land banking arrangements during the year ended December 31, 2018 that were not 
variable interest entities in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”), but were consolidated in 
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 470, Debt (“ASC 470”). Under the provisions of ASC 470, the Company had determined it 
is economically compelled, based on certain factors, to purchase the land in the land banking arrangements. Therefore, the 
Company has recorded the remaining purchase price of the land of $315.6 million as of December 31, 2018, which was 
included in Real estate inventories not owned and Liabilities from inventories not owned in the accompanying balance sheet. 

Summary information with respect to the Company’s consolidated land banking arrangements is as follows as of the 
period presented (dollars in thousands): 

 December 31, 2018 

Total number of land banking projects consolidated 3 

Total number of lots 5,184 

Total purchase price $ 452,967 

Balance of lots still under option and not purchased:  
Number of lots 4,241 

Purchase price $ 315,576 

Forfeited deposits if lots are not purchased $ 78,923 

 
Lease Obligations 

Lease obligations, as included in Accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets, were $14.6 million as of 
December 31, 2018 and $14.5 million as of December 31, 2017. The Company has non-cancelable operating leases primarily 
associated with office facilities, real estate and office equipment, in addition to one related sublease for an office facility. The 
determination of which discount rate to use when measuring the lease obligation was deemed a significant judgment. Lease 
cost, as included in general and administrative expense in our consolidated statements of operations for the respective periods, 
and additional information regarding lease terms are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

  Year Ended December 31, 2018  Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Lease cost     
Operating lease cost  $ 8,275   $ 6,835 

Sublease income  (117)  (117) 
Total lease cost  $ 8,158   $ 6,718 

     
Other information     

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement 
of lease liabilities for operating leases:     

Operating cash flows  $ 7,085   $ 5,551 

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new 
operating lease liabilities  $ 6,495 

 
 $ 5,925

 

Weighted-average discount rate  7.3%  6.6%
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  December 31, 2018  December 31, 2017 

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in 
years)  4.23  3.58 

The table below shows the future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2018 (in 
thousands). 

Year Ending December 31,  
2019 $ 5,163 

2020 5,015 

2021 4,765 

2022 3,437 

2023 2,303 

Thereafter 1,927 

Total $ 22,610 

 Note 17—Subsequent Events 

No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2018 that would require recognition or disclosure in the Company’s 
financial statements. 
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Note 18— Unaudited Summarized Quarterly Financial Information 

Summarized unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows (in 
thousands except per share data): 

 Three Months Ended 

 March 31, 
2018  June 30, 

2018  September 30, 
2018  December 31, 

2018 
Home sales $ 372,385  $ 518,432   $ 533,514  $ 657,390 
Cost of sales (307,308)  (425,572)  (436,311)  (534,107) 
Gross profit 65,077  92,860  97,203  123,283 
Other income, costs and expenses, net (52,489)  (65,624)  (65,389)  (79,788) 
Net income 12,588  27,236  31,814  43,495 

Net income available to common stockholders $ 8,328  $ 22,455   $ 26,558  $ 34,255 

Income per common share:        
     Basic $ 0.22  $ 0.59   $ 0.70  $ 0.91 
     Diluted $ 0.21  $ 0.57   $ 0.68  $ 0.89 

 
 Three Months Ended 

 March 31, 
2017  June 30, 

2017  September 30, 
2017  December 31, 

2017 
Home sales $ 258,854  $ 422,633   $ 490,304  $ 623,283 
Cost of sales (218,455)  (353,057)  (401,700)  (505,337) 
Gross profit 40,399  69,576  88,604  117,946 
Other income, costs and expenses, net (49,695)  (49,325)  (58,544)  (101,210) 
Net (loss) income (9,296)  20,251  30,060  16,736 

Net (loss) income available to common 
stockholders $ (10,000)  $ 18,954 

 
 $ 27,418

 
 $ 11,763

 

(Loss) Income per common share:        
     Basic $ (0.27)  $ 0.51   $ 0.74  $ 0.32 
     Diluted $ (0.27)  $ 0.49   $ 0.71  $ 0.30 
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Officers' certificate, dated October 24, 2013, delivered pursuant to the Indenture, and setting forth the terms 
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Indenture (including form of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2019), dated March 31, 2014, among William Lyon 
Homes, Inc., William Lyon Homes, certain of William Lyon Homes' subsidiaries (as guarantors) and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 1, 2014). 

   



 

 
 

Exhibit 
Number  Description 

4.4 

 

Indenture (including form of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022), dated August 11, 2014, among WLH PNW 
Finance Corp., the guarantors from time to time party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.5 

 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the 
subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 8.5% Senior Notes 
due 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.6 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 5.75% Senior Notes due 2019 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.7 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., William Lyon 
Homes, the subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 7.00% 
Senior Notes due 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 
13, 2014). 

   
4.8 

 

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the 
subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes 
due 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the Company's Form 8-K filed August 13, 2014). 

   
4.9 

 

Indenture, dated November 21, 2014, between William Lyon Homes and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to William Lyon Homes’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the SEC on November 21, 2014). 

   
4.10 

 

First Supplemental Indenture (including form of 5.50% Senior Subordinated Amortizing Notes due 
December 1, 2017), dated November 21, 2014, between William Lyon Homes and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to William Lyon Homes’ Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2014). 

   
4.11 

 

Purchase Contract Agreement (including form of unit and form of prepaid stock purchase contract), dated 
November 21, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as purchase contract agent and as attorney-in-fact for the holders from time to 
time as provided therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to William Lyon Homes’ Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2014). 

   
4.12 

 

Officers’ Certificate, dated September 15, 2015, delivered pursuant to the Indenture dated August 11, 2014 
relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022, and setting forth the terms of the Additional Notes 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed September 15, 2015) 

   
4.13 

 

Indenture dated January 31, 2017, among California Lyon, the Guarantors and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed January 
31, 2017) 

   
4.14 

 
Form of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Form 8-
K filed January 31, 2017) 

   
4.15 

 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated January 31, 2017, among California Lyon, Parent, the guarantors party 
thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the 
Company’s Form 8-K filed January 31, 2017) 

   



 

 
 

Exhibit 
Number  Description 

4.16 

 

Indenture, dated March 9, 2018, among California Lyon, the Guarantors and U.S. Bank National Association, 
as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 15, 2018). 

   
4.17 

 
Form of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K 
filed March 15, 2018). 

   
4.18 

 

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2018). 

   
4.19 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 6.00% Senior Notes due 2023 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2018). 

   
4.20 

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., the subsidiary 
guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, relating to the 5.875% Senior Notes due 2025 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2018). 

   
10.1 

 

Form of Indemnity Agreement, between William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, and the directors and 
officers of William Lyon Homes (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 1999 (File No. 333-88569)). 

   
10.2 

 
The Presley Companies Non-Qualified Retirement Plan for Outside Directors (incorporated by reference to 
William Lyon Homes’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 2002). 

   
10.3 

 

Aircraft Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of September 3, 2009, by and between Presley CMR, Inc., 
and Martin Aviation, Inc., or its designee (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10, 2009). 

   
10.4 

 

Secured Promissory Note dated September 9, 2009 from Martin Aviation, Inc., a California corporation 
payable to William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10, 2009). 

   
10.5 

 

Aircraft Mortgage and Security Agreement between Martin Aviation, Inc., a California corporation and 
William Lyon Homes, Inc., dated as of September 9, 2009 (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 10, 2009). 

   
10.6 

 

Form of Class A Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and 
among William Lyon Homes and the Holders (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to the 
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.7 

 

Class B Common Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and between 
William Lyon Homes and the Purchaser (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.8 

 

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Class B Common Stock of William Lyon Homes, dated as of February 25, 
2012 (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission 
on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.9 

 

Class B Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among 
William Lyon Homes and the Holders (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 
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10.10 

 

Form of Convertible Preferred Stock and Class C Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon Homes and the Holders party thereto (incorporated by 
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.11† 

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon 
Homes, Inc. and General William Lyon (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.12† 

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon 
Homes, Inc. and William H. Lyon (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed with the Commission on March 6, 2012). 

   
10.13† 

 
William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration 
Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.14† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by 
reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 
6, 2012). 

   
10.15† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated 
by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on 
December 6, 2012). 

   
10.16† 

 
Form of Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.17 

 

Class A Common Stock and Convertible Preferred Stock Subscription Agreement, dated October 12, 2012, 
by and between William Lyon Homes and WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC (incorporated by reference to the 
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.18 

 

Amendment of and Joinder to Class A Common Stock Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 12, 
2012, by and between WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC and William Lyon Homes (incorporated by reference 
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the Commission on December 6, 2012). 

   
10.19 

 

Amendment of and Joinder to Convertible Preferred Stock and Class C Common Stock Registration Rights 
Agreement, dated October 12, 2012, by and between WLH Recovery Acquisition LLC and William Lyon 
Homes (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed with the 
Commission on December 6, 2012).

   
10.20† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (performance-
based) (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Form S-1 Registration Statement filed April 9, 
2013 (File No. 333-187819)). 

   
10.21† 

 
Revised Form of Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 2013 (incorporated by reference to William Lyon 
Homes’s Form S-1 Registration Statement filed April 9, 2013 (File No. 333-187819)). 

   
10.22† 

 

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated March 6, 2013, by and between William Lyon Homes, Inc., 
and Matthew R. Zaist (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Form S-1 Registration Statement 
filed April 9, 2013 (File No. 333-187819)). 

   
10.23 

 
Amendment No. 1 to Warrant to Purchase Shares of Class B Common Stock (incorporated by reference to 
William Lyon Homes’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 28, 2013). 
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10.24 
 
Form of indemnification agreement (incorporated by reference to William Lyon Homes’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 28, 2013). 

   
10.25† 

 

Amendment No. 1 to the William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.23(a) to the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statement filed May 6, 2013 (File No. 333-
187819)). 

   
10.26 

 

Credit Agreement among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, as Parent, The 
Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as Administrative Agent, dated as of August 
7, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
period ended September 30, 2013).

   
10.27† 

 

Amendment No. 2 to the William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 99.3 of the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement filed August 12, 2013 (File No. 333-
190571)) 

   
10.28† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (performance-
based) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration Statement filed 
December 27, 2013 (file no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.29† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.43 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration Statement filed December 27, 2013 
(file no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.30† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.44 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration Statement filed December 27, 2013 (file 
no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.31† 

 

William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Amendment No. 1 to Stock Option Agreement 
(Five-Year Options) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of the Company's Form S-4 Registration 
Statement filed December 27, 2013 (file no. 333-193112)). 

   
10.32 

 

Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2014, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, 
William Lyon Homes, as Parent, the Lenders from time to time party thereto, and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed 
August 13, 2014).

   
10.33 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, as Parent, The Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as Administrative 
Agent, dated as of August 7, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 10-Q 
filed on November 12, 2014). 

   
10.34† 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon 
Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and General William Lyon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of 
the Company's Form 8-K filed December 31, 2014). 

   
10.35† 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2012, by and among William Lyon 
Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William H. Lyon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the 
Company's Form 8-K filed December 31, 2014). 
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10.36 

 

Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of March 27, 2015 among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a 
California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, each 
subsidiary of the Borrower party thereto, the lenders listed on Schedule 1 thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as 
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q filed May 8 2015)

   
10.37† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William H. 
Lyon, dated as of March 31, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed April 2, 2015) 

   
10.38† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and Matthew R. 
Zaist, dated as of March 31, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed April 2, 2015) 

   
10.39† 

 
Offer Letter by and between William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William Lyon, dated as of March 31, 2015 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Form 8-K filed April 2, 2015) 

   
10.40 

 

Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 21, 2015 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as 
of March 27, 2015 among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, 
as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 of the Company's Form 10-K filed March 
11 2016)

   
10.41† 

 
William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Performance 
Based) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed May 9, 2016) 

   
10.42† 

 
William Lyon Homes 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed May 9, 2016) 

   
10.43† 

 
Offer letter by and between William Lyon Homes, Inc. and General William Lyon, dated as of March 22, 
2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed March 24, 2016) 

   
10.44 

 

Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of July 1, 2016 among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a 
California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, each 
subsidiary of the Borrower party thereto, the lenders listed on Schedule 1 thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as 
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed July 7, 
2016)

   
10.45 

 

Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 27, 2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
dated as of July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William 
Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit 
Suisse AG, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of the Company's Form 10-K 
filed March 9 2017)

   
10.46† 

 
William Lyon Homes Amended and Restated 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Appendix A of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017) 

   
10.47 

 

Amendment No. 2 dated as of June 16, 2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated 
as of July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, 
as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed August 
8, 2017) 
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10.48 

 

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 14, 2017, by and between the Company and Lyon 
Shareholder 2012, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed 
December 14, 2017) 

   
10.49 

 

New Lender Supplement dated as of November 28, 2017 to the Second Amended and Restated Credit 
Agreement dated as of July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as 
Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party 
thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 of the 
Company's Form 10-K filed February 22, 2018). 

   
10.50 

 

Amendment No. 3, dated March 9, 2018, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated 
July 1, 2016, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, as Parent, the subsidiary 
guarantors party thereto, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Credit Suisse AG, as administrative 
agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 15, 2018). 

   
10.51 

 

Credit Agreement, dated May 21, 2018, among William Lyon Homes, Inc., as Borrower, William Lyon 
Homes, as Parent, each subsidiary of the Borrower party thereto, The Lenders from time to time party 
thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed May 25, 2018). 

   
10.52+ 

 

New Lender Supplement dated as of November 9, 2018 to the Credit Agreement dated as of May 21, 2018, 
among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware 
corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
Administrative Agent. 

   
10.53+ 

 

Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 18, 2018 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 21, 2018,, 
among William Lyon Homes, Inc., a California corporation, as Borrower, William Lyon Homes, a Delaware 
corporation, as Parent, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as 
Administrative Agent.

   
10.54† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and Matthew R. 
Zaist, dated as of January 18, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed January 23, 2019). 

   
10.55† 

 

Employment Agreement by and among William Lyon Homes, William Lyon Homes, Inc. and William H. 
Lyon, dated as of January 18, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Form 8-K 
filed January 23, 2019). 

   
12.1+ 

 
Statement Regarding the Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for the Years Ended December 
31, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014. 

   
21.1+  List of Subsidiaries of the Company. 

   
23.1+  Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

   
31.1+ 

 
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended 

   
31.2+ 

 
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended 

   



 

 
 

Exhibit 
Number  Description 

32.1* 
 
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

   
32.2* 

 
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

   
101.INS* **  XBRL Instance Document 

   
101.SCH* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 

   
101.CAL* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 

   
101.DEF* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 

   
101.LAB* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 

   
101.PRE* **  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  

 

+ Filed herewith 
  
† Management contract or compensatory agreement 
  
* The information in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor 
shall they be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the 
Exchange Act (including this Report), unless the Registrant specifically incorporates the foregoing information into 
those documents by reference. 

  
** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the XBRL information will not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and will not be deemed filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus 
for purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, or otherwise subject to liability under those Sections. 
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